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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of Zuari Infrawarld India Limited.

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Zuari Infraworld India Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Profit and Loss statement (including Other Comprehensive
Income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, profit and other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Instituta of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirernents that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidznce we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. We draw attention to Note 7.7 of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
regarding the advances paid to a sub-contractor aggregating to Rs 2,246.49 lakhs and interest accrued on the
same for Rs. 33.72 lakhs in respect of which the Management is in negotiation with that party for its recovery.
The Management of the Company is confident that this advance will be fully recovered and hence no provision
is considered necessary at this stage.

2.  We draw attention to Note 7.4 of the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
regarding advance paymers aggragating to Rs. 635,61 lakhs to an agent under the Development Management
Agreement, against whom Corporate Insolvency Kesolution Process has been initiated by one of its operating
creditor. The Managemert of the Cempany is confident that this advance will recovered / adjusted in full
without any material adjusiment and hence no provision is considered necessary at this stage.

3., We draw attention to Note No. 32 of the standalene financial statements, which describes the evaluation of
the impact of Cloba! pandemic COVIC-1% and the recoverability of the carrying value of investments in
subsidiaries and loans given to subsidiaries, carried out =y the management of the company, on the company’s
business aperations, financial position, carrying value of various assets including investment in subsidiaries and
the uncertainties associated with such an evaluation in the present circumstances and that the impact may be
different from that assessed as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

Our Opinion is not modified in the respect of tt}eﬁi\ﬁ}gw
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Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Board of Directors report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. '

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance
of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is nct a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
econamic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
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s |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

=  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act ,we give in the Annexure A
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Statement, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books'qf_:accgf at.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

(h)

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure B.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
company has complied with provisions of section 197 of the Act to the extent applicable in respect of
managerial remuneration paid during the year and this is subject to approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing annual general meeting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 29 of the standalone financial statements;

(ii) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

for VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0045325

K P SRINIVAS
Place: Bangalore ; Partner
Date: 14 \bl2020 AT~ M. No. 208520

UDIN. 20208%20AAAAHTSOATS
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in Paragraph (1) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
of our Independent Auditors Report of even date on the Standalone financial statements of Zuari Infraworld India
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2020.

(i) (a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and equipment;

(b)  We have been informed that the Property, Plant and Equipment of the company have been physically
verified by the management during the year, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regards to the
size of the Company and nature of its assets and that no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c)  According to the information and explanation given to us by the company, the title deeds of
immovable property of the company which is part of the inventory is held by the Company in its own
name. As stated in the Note 13 of the standalone financial statements the immovable property has
been mortgaged with the banks/ financial institutions as a security for the facilities availed.

(ii) The company does not carry inventory of the nature covered by Ind AS-2. Thus paragraph 3(ii) of the order
does not apply to the company.

(iii) The company has granted loans and given guarantee to the parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 “the Act”, further:

(a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of loans granted by the
company to one party covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act, (total loan
amount granted during the financial year Rs.1,815.00 lakhs and fair value of the loan outstanding as
at baiance sheet date is Rs.5,227.01 lakhs) are not prejudicial to the interest of the company.
Further, the company has also given corporate guarantee to one of the banks for extending facilities
to a step-down subsidiary outside India.

(b)  In respect of above loans, interest along with principal amount is payable after three years from the
date of its disbursement and no amount was overdue in respect of principal and interest.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, no amounts are overdue for more than 90 days.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted by
us in respect of loans, investments, guarantee’s and security provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act
have been complied with.

(v) The company has not accepted deposits in accordance with directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules
framed there under are not applicable to the company.

(vi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the maintenance of cost records under 148 (1) of
the Act read with Companies (Cost records and Audit) Rq\]is, 2014 are not applicable to the company.
AR '__':_":.;'_,I:E{’\ S
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(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per our verification of the records of
the company, The Company has been fairly regular, in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employees ‘state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Service tax, duty of customs,
labour cess and any other statutory dues, to the extent applicable with the appropriate authorities and
no material statutory dues are outstanding for more than six months from the due date as at the year-
end, except for labour cess under Building and Other Construction Workers Act, 1996 amounting to
Rs.1,79,118, which has been subsequently paid.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unpaid dues of income tax or
Goods and Service Tax disputed taxes as on March 31, 2020 except for the following:

Name of the | Nature of Dues Amount Period Forum where dispute is pending

Statute (In Rs.)

Income  Tax | Income Tax 59,86,305 | FY 2016-17 | Rectification rights pending before
| Act, 1961 Assistant Information System (AIS)

Demand of Rs. 5,94,040 towards Tax Deducted at Source as per TRACES portal of Income Tax
Department, against which company is in process of filing rectification.

{viii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks or financial institutions except for minor delays
in repayment of interest on the borrowing from financial institutions after considering moratorium as
detailed below. The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings from Government and
there are no dues to debenture holders during the year.

Particulars Nature of Dues Amount of Default
default (Rs) (in days)
LIC Housing Finance Limited | Repayment of Interest on the borrowings 1,47,34,269 6 days

As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has exercised the option under RBI
circular dated 27-03-2020 on COVID-19 regulatory package availing the facility of moratorium period for the
repayment of term loan and interest from bank/financial institutions.

{ix)  The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer and hence clause
(ix) is not applicable to the company to that extent. According to the information and explanations provided
to us, the Company has utilised the monies raised by way of term loans for the purpose for which the loan
was obtained.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company examined by us,
no frauds by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has paid/provided managerial
remuneration in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act and this is
subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company as prescribed under Section 406 of tﬂhe;At\Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
I 1,

applicable. <
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(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the
Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not
applicable. As stated in Note 13.7 of the standalone financial statements, the redemption period for the
preference shares which was due during the year was extended.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered
under section 451A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not
applicable.

for VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0045325

[GPUTY T

K P SRINIVAS

Place: Bangalore Partner
Date: lh\hllf-)lo M. No. 208520
Page 7 of 9

# 424, 4th C Main, 6th Cross, OMBR Layout, Banaswadi, Bangalore 560043
Tel : +91+80+42444899, Email: bangalore@varmaandvarma.com

4

[




/{'_

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in Paragraph (2) (g) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Independent Auditors Report of even date on the standalone financial statements of Zuari
Infraworld India Limited for the year ended March 31, 2020.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Zuari Infraworld India Limited (“the
Company"”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s managerment is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk tnat a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
coliusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinior, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financia! controls over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financiai reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,
2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company including basis of
allocating expenses to various projects considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

for VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0045325

K P SRINIVAS

Place: Bangalore . %\ Partner
Date: 2¢ |t |20%0 I (BANGALORE) * M. No. 208520
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2020

b (All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
. Note As at As at
No. 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
. ASSETS
i Non-current assets
(a.) Property, plant and equipment 3.1 200.60 135.42
(b.) Other intangible assets 3.2 0.99 1.36
(c.) Right-of-use assets 3.3 213.92 -
(d.) Financial assets:
(i.) Investments 4 12,029.34 11,418.48
(ii.) Loans 5 5,227.01 2,917.56
(iii.) Other financial assets 6.1 33.40 31.16
(e.) Income tax assets (net) 43.96 51.38
(f.) Other assets 7.1 870.42 1,077.44
18,619.64 15,633.80
Current assets
(a.) Inventories 8 28,410.76 26,506.29
(b.) Financial assets
(i.) Trade receivables 9 580.36 618.52
(ii.) Cash and bank balances 10 680.18 685,50
(iii.} Other financial assets 6.2 578.77 437.45
(c.) Other assets 7.2 3,355.85 3,428.05
33,605.92 31,675.81
52,225.56 47,309.61
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a.) Equity share capital 11 4,655.00 4,655.00
(b.) Other equity 12 10,251.85 10,238.35
14,906.85 14,893.35
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a.) Financial liabilities
(i.) Borrowings 13.1 22,789.05 18,937.23
(ii.) Lease liabilities 14.1 491.75 -
(iii.) Trade payables 15.1
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - .
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 40.07 39.01
(iv.) Other financial liabilities 16.1 - 24.92
(b.) Provisions 17.1 44.33 53.72
(c.) Deferred tax liability (net) 18 271.16 220.60
23,636.36 19,275.48
Current liabilities
(a.) Financial liabilities
(i.) Borrowings 13.2 1,000.31 1,058.11
(ii.) Lease liabilities 14.2 65.92 -
(iii.) Trade payables 16.2
- Tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 2.08 4.56
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,685.49 1,117.77
(iv.) Other financial liabilities 16.2 2,212.19 2,437.06
(b.) Other liabilities 19 8,714.69 8,517.83
(c.) Provisions 17.2 1.68 5.44
13,682.35 13,140.77
52,225.56 47,309.61

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuari Infraworld India Limited

| [N ﬁ/

As per our report of even date attached
For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants

FRN 0045325

Caisavan - \L P

S RAGHAVAN K P SRINIVAS
Director Partner
DIN:00362555 M. No. 208520

Place: Gui goan -

Place. Bangalore
Date; 24 \ [0\10 20
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! ANSHUL A. BANSAL NISHU KAKKAR
Directdr & CEO Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
DIN: 01371033 M.No. A-46334

Place: f%m@mcfz
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
STANDALONE PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(Al Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue from operations 20 2,703.85 2,185.30
Other income 21 1,175.55 1,144.54
Total Income 3,879.39 3,329.84
EXPENSES:
Purchase of materials, sub contract charges and other project costs 22 3,981.23 2,443.19
Changes in construction work-in-progress 23 (1,950.08) (1,150.67)
Employee benefit expenses 24 298.14 274.25
Finance costs 25 786.19 959.17
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 70.71 19.93
Other expenses 27 449.99 608.46
Total expenses 3,636.17 3,154.32
Profit before tax 243.22 175.52
Tax expense 28
Current tax expense 60.28 4.00
Tax expense of earlier years 9.63 2.60
Deferred tax 78.97 139.41
Total tax Expense 148.88 146.00
Profit for the year 94.34 29.52
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (Gratuity) (0.08) 5.40
Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.02 (1.40)
Total Other Comprehensive Income (0.086) 4.00
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 94.29 33.51
Earning per equity share (in Rs.) 31
Basic & Diluted 0.20 0.06
Weighted average number of shares used in computing Earnings per share 4,65,50,000 4,65,50,000

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuari Infraworld India Limited

f.[ﬁ’m'.hur Gre Ac s
R'S RAGHAVAN
Director
DIN:00362555

Place: Guygacn
Date: 11 Jouwe, 2020

lop e ahi= N Kalda

ANSHUL A. BANSAL NISHU KAKKAR

Director & Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
DIN: 01371033 M.No. A-46334
Place: Pomgalete

Date: |y Jun e, Fo2e

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0045325

Cuinivan -0 -
K P SRINIVAS

Partner

M. No. 208520

Place: Bangalor
Date: 2.4 |y, \1010
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital
|Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year

B. Other equity
|Particulars

|

_IEIaIance as at 1 April 2018

|Adjustment pursuant to adoption of Ind AS 115

'Income tax effect on above adjustment

|Balance as at 1 April 2018 after adj. under Ind AS 115
Profit for the year

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations

'Balance as at 31 March 2019

Adjustmsnt pursuant to adoption of Ind AS 116

|Income tax effect on above adjustment

'Balance as at 1 April 2019 after adj. under Ind AS 116

| Profit for the year
{Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations
|Balance as at 31 March 2020

Note No.

1

: Securities

| premium account |  of convertible

[ preference shares

—{

10,305.00 | 415.96
| 10,305.00 ‘ 415.96
! 5 =
10,305.00 | 415.96
! - -
| 10,305.00 | 415.96
| = >
10,305.00 | 415.96 |

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the standalone financial statements

! Equity Compol"lent" :

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
4,655.00 4,655.00
Retained earnings | Total
|
{135.3&}! 10,585.59 |
(514.53), (514.53)
133.78 | 133.78
(516. 12)‘ 10,204.84
29.52 29.52
4.00 | 4.00
(482.61)| 10,238.35
(109.18) (109.18)
28.39 28.39
(563. 4o;| 10,157.56
94.34 | 94.34
(0.06)| (0.06),
(469.1 _1_}_! 10,251.85 |

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuari Infraworld India Limited

ﬂ \\’)rrmf we Nof
R S RAGHAVAN
Director

DIN:00362555

Place: Gux g oan
Date: 11 Juhe , 2020

@ur_,m BANSAL

Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 01371033

Place: F’:anq.alt,-r e
Date: 11 Qune, 2010

N e K alddeas -

NISHU KAKKAR
Company Secretary
M.No. A-46334

As per our report of even date attached
For VARMA & VARMA

Chartered Accountants

FRN 0045328

K P SRINIVAS
Partner
M. No. 208520

Place: Bangalore
Date: 2ylb| 1020
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

I. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Profit for the year 243.22 175.52
Adjustments to reconcile profit and loss to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation & amortisation expense 101.55 29.42
Interest Income (537.86) 206.37
Balances no longer required, net 1.15 11.55
Net gain on invesiments (610.46) (825.30)
Interest expense 2,858.14 2,852.08
Fair value adjustment to security deposits, net. (2.24) (1.23)
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans through OCI (0.08) 5.40
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,053.42 2,453.82
Adjustment for net changes in :

Trade receivables 38.16 1,249.84
Financial and other assets (15.36) 84.49
Inventories {1,904.47) (1,150.67)
Trade payables 566.18 (184.75)
Provisions (13.16) 12.66
Financial and other liabilities 1,499.16 (2,188.41)
Net cash generated from operations 2,223.92 276.99
Income taxes paid, net of refunds (62.49) 76.38
Net cash generated from operating activities 2,161.43 353.37

Il. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Additions to property, plant and equipment (123.57) (9.52)
Investments in Mutual Funds (3,774.60) (5,523.08)
Proceeds from sale of Investments in Mutual Funds 3,775.21 7.250.51
Loans to subsidiaries, net of repayments (1,815.00) (2,283.15)
Deposits held with banks - (500.00)
Receipts from net investment in right-of-use assets 42.94 -
Interest received 5.25 0.64
Net cash from Investing activities (1,889.77) (1,064.61)
ll. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Borrowings, net of repayments 2,156.07 2,934.31
Interest paid (including interest transferred to work-in-progress) (2,471.21) (2,492,45)
Net cash used in financing activities (315.14) 441.86
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ZUARI! INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Net Changes in Cash and Cash equivalents during the year (43.48) (269.38)

Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 185.50 454.88

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 10) 142.02 185.50

Disclosure pursuant to Ind-AS 7 as amended:

Particulars As at 01 April 2019 Cash Flow Trf. to Non-Cash Adij. As at 31 March 2020
Securities (Fair Value
Premium Adjustrments)
Redeemable Preference 928.51 - - 130.15 1,058.66
Shares (Debt portion) (814.76) 4 2 (113.75) (928.51)

Cash flows from operating activities are reported using the indirect method.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuari Infraworld India Limited

|
U \&'):hfn d e A
S RAGHAVAN

Director
DIN:00362555

Place: G uv o an

Date: z 2670

B b Kot
ALOK B ANSHUL A. BANSAL NISHU KAKKAR
Director: Chief Financial Officer ~ Company Secretary
DIN: 01371033 M.No. A-46334
Place: Boangalere
Date: U dyne  2pe

As per our report of even date attached

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants

FRN 0045325

F i = A
Soaoovan - K ? d

K P SRINIVAS
Partner
M. No. 208520

Place: Bangalore
Date: 24|k \1:.\ 20
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

1

(a.)

(b.)

(ii.)

(iii.)

Corporate information:

Zuari Infraworld India Limited (“the Company” or "ZIIL") [CIN: U45309KA2007PLC043161] is a wholly owned subsidiary of Zuari Global
Limited ("ZGL") The company is a public limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act applicable in India.The Company is primarily into the business of developing residential cum commercial properties intended for sale.

The standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors passed on meeting held
through video conference and other visual means (VC) dated June 11, 2020.

Significant accounting policies:
Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except
for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values in-accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and in accordance with the reporting
requirements under Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), to the extent notified.

These Accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company in the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements except where a newly issued/ notified accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy which was in use.

Current and Non-current classification

All Assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set
out in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. As the Company is engaged in developing a residential cum commercial project, the
normal operating cycle is based on the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle at least 12 months after the reporting date for the purpose of Current - Non-
current classification of assets and liabilities, which is considered appropriate.

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all the amounts disclosed in the financial statements have been
rounded off to the nearest lakhs pursuant to the requirements of schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013., except when otherwise
indicated.

Use of accounting estimates, accounting judgements, and assumptions:

Preparation of these financial statements in conformily with Ind AS requires the management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions. Such estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the year.

The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of
such assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in the ensuing notes. Accounting estimates could change from year
to year and also actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as Management becomes
aware of changes in circumstances surrounding these estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the
year in which changes are made and their effects, if material, are disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions :

Useful life of Property, plant & equipment:
The determination of estimated useful lives and expected residual values are based on the technical evaluation carried by the Company
and these are reviewed by the Management of the Company at each reporting date.

Impairment of financial assets and evaluation of impairment indicators:

The evaluation of applicability of impairment indicators for an assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which
could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. As at the balance sheet date based on the historical default rates
absorbed over the expected useful life, the Management assess the fair value of various financial assets and liabilities and their resultant
fair values.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

Impairmrient exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transaction conducted at arms' length for similar assets or observable market prices / guidance value less incremental cost
for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from budget for the future
years and do not include any restricting activities not committed for or significant future investments that will enhance the performance of
the assets of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rates used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash flows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(iv.) Contingencies:

(v.

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal. By their
nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates
regarding the outcome of future events, which may or may not accur.

Construction work-in-progress

The Company holds inventories stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Such inventories include land, work in progress and
completed units. Considering the nature of the activity and, in particular the scale of its developments and the length of the development
cycle, the Company has to allocate project-wide development costs between units being built, It also has to forecast the costs to complete
on such developments.

In making such assessments and allocations, there is a degree of inherent estimation uncertainty; in particular due to the need to take
account of future direct input costs, sales prices and the need to allocate project-wide costs on an appropriate basis to reflect the overall
level of development risk, including planning risk. The Company has established internal controls designed to effectively assess and
review inventory carrying values and ensure the appropriateness of the estimates made. These assessments and allocations evolve over
the life of the development in line with the risk profile, and accordingly the margins reflects these evolving estimates. Similarly, these
estimates impact the carrying value of inventory at each reporting date as this is a function of costs incurred in the year and the allocation
of inventory to costs of sales on each property sold.

(vi.) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated
in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality
tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Fulure salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

{vii.) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices
in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these modeis are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

(viii.) Leases

(c)
(i.)

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116 on Leases. |dentification of a
lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals)
and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts
and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the
option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The
discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with
similar characteristics. The Company reassess the option when significant events or changes in circumstances occur that are within the
control of the lessee.

Property, plant and equipment and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment

The Property, plant and equipment ('PPE') of the Company are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The cost comprises of the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its current working condition for the intended use. Any discounts or rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added to its book value only if it increased the future benefits from the existing
assets beyond its previously assessed standard performance.

Recognition principle:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if:

(i.) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company; and
(ii.) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

De-recognition principle:
Gain/ (losses) arising from the de-recognition of a PPE are measurgd as\a difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the PPE. The resultant gain/(losses) aref,reqbgmaadJ tf:/g Rrofit or Loss statement when the PPE is de-recognised.

/
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(ii.) Depreciation

(d.
(i.

(ii.)

(e.)

(i.

)

—

—

Depreciation is calculated on the Straight Line basis over the estimated useful life of the PPE after retaining estimated residual value not
exceeding 5% of the original cost, except for Leasehold improvements and aluminium panels used for construction. Depreciation on
assets used for the project has been considered as part of construction and development cost. The residual values, useful lives and
methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if considered
appropriate.

Upon adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment at the Previous GAAP carrying
amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1 April 2015.

The Company has estimated the useful lives which Is detailed as under for each category of PPE:

Name of Assets Useful Lives
\Office Equipment _|Syears
{Plant & Machinery (P&M) 8 years

\Furniture & Fixtures 10 years
\Computer and servers _ |5and6 years
|Motor Vehicles 10 years

Leasehold Improvements Over the primary lease period (10 years)
Aluminium panel used for construction (P&M) 4 years
Temporary structure 1 year

Intangible Assets and Amortisation

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible assets
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of intangible asset is recognised as an asset if, and only if:

(i.) itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company; and
(ii.) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

De-recognition:

Gain/ (losses) arising from the de recognition of intangibles are measured as the difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the intangibles. The resultant gain/(losses) are recognised in the Profit and Loss statement when the intangible asset is
de-recognised.

Amortisation

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on the
Straight Line basis over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the profit and loss
statement unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not
amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life
is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to
finite is made on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets representing computer software is amortised on the straight line basis over a estimated useful economic life of five

years.

Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company had elected to measure all its intangible assets at the Previous GAAP carrying amount
as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1 April 2015.

Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

The Company as a Lessee:

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract
and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components,

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease
commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or
restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-
use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the lease term or useful life of right-of-use
asset, whichever is earlier. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant
and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever- is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the smtemgﬁ(gﬁipﬁt‘j} dn
/, '

/4

(f

i\ Page 8 of 41




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

{ii.

)

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable
lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.
The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in
statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 on Leases to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term
of 12 months or leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease contracts entered by the Company maijorly pertains for buildings taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary course. The
Company does not have any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as per the contract.

The Company as a Lessor:

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. The Company
recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance
lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net
investment in the lease.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the
lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying
asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease
as an operating lease and recognises lease income accordingly.

If an arrangement or contract contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with
customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

(iii.) Transition

(f)
(i)

(ii.)

(g.

—

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which supersedes the existing lease standard, Ind AS
17 Leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases for both lessees and lessors.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective from the financial year beginning April 1, 2019 and applied the standard to its leases,
using the modified retrospective method with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard, recognised on the date of initial application
(i.e., April 1, 2019). Accordingly, the Company has not restated comparative information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard has been recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as on 1 April 2019.

Refer note 2(e) — Significant accounting policies — Leases in the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019,
for the accounting policy pursuant to Ind AS 17.

Impairment

Financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109
requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. In determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the
Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on historical credit
loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the
receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an
amount equal to the 12-months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Non-financial assets (Tangible and intangible assets)

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost
to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss statement.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing
cost also includes exchange differences, if any to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction of development property are capitalized as part of the cost till such time
the property is ready for its intended sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur.

Borrowing costs during an extended period in which it suspends the activities necessary to prepare an asset for its intended use or sale.
Such costs are costs of holding partially completed assets and do not-gualify for capitalisation. However, the Company does not normally
suspend capitalising borrowing costs during a period when it garries ou su‘p%%}ial technical and administrative work. The Company also
does not suspend capitalising borrowing costs when a lemborary delay~con: ering the nature of industry, is a necessary part of the

rocess of geiting an asset ready for its intended use or sale... / 7\
P geting 4 e \ 3 Page 9 of 41

| '\. AN I {"Al-r / 'IJ
W2\ /2]

<




ZUARI! INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(h.) Foreign Currency Translation

(i.)

18]

(ii.)

(k.

—

The Company's financial statements are prepared and presented in Indian Rupees, which is also it's functional currency.

Initial Recognition:
Foreign currency transactions, if any, are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction/ realisation.

Conversion / Reinstatement:

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the initial
transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value denominated in a foreign currency are, translated using the exchange rates that
existed when the fair value was determined.

Exchange Differences:

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company’s monetary items at rates different from those
at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as
expenses in the year in which they arise

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI) or profit and loss are also recognized in OCI or profit and loss, respectively).

Inventories

The cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase including cost of land, costs of conversion and other costs including borrowing
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Inventories (comprising Land under Development and Construction Work-in-Progress) are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost includes expenses, net of taxes recoverable, specifically attributable to construction and development of property intended for sale.
The allocation of common costs is based on the normal level of the activities.

Construction work-in-progress of constructed properties include the cost of land, internal development costs, external development
charges, construction costs, overheads, borrowings cost, development/construction materials and is valued lower of cost/estimated cost
and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and estimated
cost necessary to make the sale.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the profit and loss statement net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely
rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from development and sale of residential cum commercial properties and related services,
maintenance and consulting. Effective 1 April 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers"using the
cumulative effect transition method being applied to contracts that were not completed as of 1 April 2018.

Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has been approved by the parties,
in writing, to the contract, the parties to contract are committed to perform the irrespective obligations under the contract, and the contract
is legally enforceable. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control overthe promised products or services ("performance obligations")
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company | has'r O‘Q!ved or expects to receive in exchange for these products
or services ("transaction price”). When there is uncertainty as to coilectab"lit ré\ranue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is
resolved.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

To determine whether to recognize revenue, the Company follows a five step model as envisaged in Ind AS 115 given below:
Identifying the contract with a customer

Identifying the performance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allocating the transaclion price to the performance obligations

Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

(i.) Identify the Contract with Customer
The Company evaluates whether a valid contract is satisfying all the following conditions:
- All parties have approved the agreement (may be oral or written)
- All parties are committed to approve their obligations.
- Each party's rights are identifiable.
- The contract has commercial substance.
- Collectability is probable.

{ii.) Identifying the performance obligations
The Company evaluates the separability of the promised goods or services based on whether they are 'distinct’. A promised good or
service is ‘distinct’ if both:
- the customer benefits from the item either on its own or together with other readily available resources, and
- it is 'separately identifiable’ (i.e. the Company does not provide a significant service integrating, modifying or customizing it)

(iii.) Determining the transaction price
The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction
price excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The consideration promised include fixed amounts, existence of any financial
component and any other non-cash consideration, or both.

Where the Company has a right to consideration from a customer in an amount that corresponds directly with the value to the customer of
the performance completed to date, the Company recognizes revenue in the amount to which it has a right to invoice.

(iv.) Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations
The transaction price is allocated to the separately identifiable performance obligations on the basis of their standalone selling price. For
services that are not provided separately, the standalone selling price is estimated using adjusted market assessment approach.

Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

(v.

Revenue is recognized either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Company satisfies performance obligations by transferring
the promised goods or services to its customers.

The main revenue streams for Zuari Infraworld India Limited relate are as under:
- Residential cum commercial properties (constructed properties)

- Development Management Services.

- Sales Commission,

Revenue from sale of residential cum commercial properties (constructed properties)

The Company develops and sells residential cum commercial properties. Revenue is recognised when control over the property has been
transferred to the customer. The properties have generally no alternative use for the company due to conltractual restrictions. Enforceable
right to payment does not arise until legal title or posession of the property is deemed to have been passed to the customer. Therefore,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the legal title has been passed to the customer or pocession of property is deemed to have
been passed to the customer. Each unit of the flats or properties are classified as a separate performance obligation and revenue is
recognised upon legal transfer of asset to buyer or when the pocession of property is deemed to have been passed to the customer.

The revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract. In most cases, the consideration is linked with the process of
construction and does not involve any significant financial component.

The Company has not adjusted the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component. In the view of
the Management of the Company, the contract with a customers would not have a significant financing component as there is no
difference between the promised consideration and the cash selling price of the residential units (as described in paragraph 61 and 62 of
Ind AS 115) had the same been sold on full cash basis.

Income from sale of services

Income from service contracts which is in the nature of fees for specified periods are recognised on accrual basis to the extent the
services have been rendered and invoices are raised in accordance with the contractual terms with the customers and recoveries are
reasonably certain.

Sales Commission from sale of plots/ residential units
Commission from sale of plots/ residential flats upon sale of the plots/ flats as per the terms of contract and recoveries are reasonably
certain.

Other income =
Other income comprises of interest income, dividend income ang@;ﬁ%
using the effective interest method. Dividend is recognised as ahd.wheh the

which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend. /.. /

[ {4 - o+ 1l
ii - l ' -—:-"',|I_|f_|:1‘-’|"_'| 1

stments. Interest income is recognized on accrual basis
\IQ receive payment is established by the reporting date,
b\
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(1)
(i)

(ii.)

Taxes on income

Current income tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities
using own estimates in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income lax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is setlled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss statement is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity).

{m.) Retirement and other Employee Benefits

(i.)

(ii.)

Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the Profit and Loss
statement of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution
payable under the scheme.

Gratuity
Gratuity liability under the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972, are defined benefit obligations and are provided for on the basis of actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method, made at the end of each financial year. The gratuity liability is not funded.

(ii.) Compensated Absences

(n.

(i.)

(ii.)

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates by the Management considering the entitlements outstanding as
at the reporting date. Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial
year. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements:

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through QCI in the period in
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss statement in subsequent periods. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assels are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to
hold these assets to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding and selling financial assets.

The Company has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent.changes In the fair value of equity investments not held for trading

in other comprehensive income. A& l/,q‘\nN
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(ii.) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are Immediately recognised in statement of profit and loss.

(iv.) Financial liabilities

(v.

—

(vi.)

{o.

—

—

(p.

(q.)

(r.)

i{s.

(t)

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments recognised by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received net off direct issue cost.

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders (after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating

diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. Chief
operating decision maker reviews the performance of the Company according to the nature of business which primarily comprises of

development of real estate projects , both residential and commercial.

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting financial
statements of the Company as a whole.

Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capital represents the nominal (par) value of shares that have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are
deducted from share premium, net of any related income tax benefits.

Retained earnings are adjusted for the following:

- Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability-comprises the actuarial losses from changes in demographic and financial assumptions
and the return on plan assets

All transactions with owners of the parent are recorded separately within equity.

Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities when the dividends have been approved in a general
meeting prior to the reporting date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprises cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with an original
maturity periods of three months or less.

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net
of outstanding bank overdrafts if any as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Investments

Investments in subsidiary, Joint Ventures and Associates are accounted at their cost in the separate financial statements. Investment in
preference shares in Associates and mutual funds are accounted for at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) at the reporting date.

Recent Accounting pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') notifies new standards or” ammepgﬁﬁ s to the existing standards. There were no such new
standards or ammendments which have been notified or made ,ﬁ’pphcabtewf .é t from 01 April 2020.
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ZUARI! INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
3  Property, plant and equipment

3.1 Tangible assets

|Particulars | Plant and : Office | Leasehold | Computers |Furniture and | Temporary | Vehicles Total

. [ Equipment | Equipment | Improvements Fixtures | Structures |

Deemed Cost : ' ’
As at 01 April 2018 6.77 | 40.92 129.21 | 15.98 45.22 0.85 | 0.65 239.59
Additions - 4.58 3.65 | - 1.29 | = - 9.52
Disposal - - - B - - - -
As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 6.77 | 45.49 | 132.86 | 15.98 46.51 | 0.85 0.65 249.11
Additions 121.39 | 1.69 | - 0.49 = | - E 123.57
Disposal | - - - - < | - - -

" As at 31 March 2020 | 12846 4749 | 132.86 | 16.47 46.51 | 0.85 | 0.65  372.68
Accumulated depreciation . . |
As at 01 April 2018 | 3.58 24.52 31.73 9.13 15.70 | 0.00 | 0.05 84.70
Charge for the year 1.02 6.26 13.97 | 2.33 5.34 | - 0.08 28.99
Disposals/adjustments - - - - - . - -
As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 4.59 30.78 | 45.70 | 11.46 21.04 | 0.00 0.12 113.69
Charge for the year 29.83 6.60 14.55 1.48 5.86 | - 0.08 58.40
Disposals/adjustments - - = - - - . .

| As at 31 March 2020 | 3442 37.38 | 60.25 | 12.93 26.90 | 0.00 020 172.08
Carrying amount (net) [ | !

| As at 01 April 2018 | 3.19 16.40 | 97.47 | 6.85 29.52 | 0.85 0.60 154.89

| Additions ' - 4.58 3.65 | - 1.29 | - - 9.52
| Disposal ; - - - - - - - -

| Depreciation (1.02)| (6.26) (13.97)| (2.33) (5.34) - | (0.08) (28.99)

| As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 2.18 | 14.72 87.16 ‘ 4.52 25.47 0.85 ‘ 0.52 135.42 |

| Additions | 12139 1.69 - 0.49 = - 12387

| Disposal - - = |l - - ‘ - - |
Depreciation (29.83)| (6.60) (14.55)| (1.48) (5.86) - | (0.08) (58.40)
As at 31 March 2020 93.74 | 9.81 72.61 | 3.54 19.61 0.85 | 0.45 200.60 '
Note:

Also refer Note 26 of the standalone financial statements for amount of depreciation transferred to construction work-in-progress.

3.2 Other Intangible Assets )
[Particulars | Computer

|

| | Software | Totn) :

|Deemed Cost | ‘ [

| As at 01 April 2018 22.06 22.06

| Additions - -
Disposal - -
As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 22.06 22.06
Additions =l E
Disposal - -

| As at 31 March 2020 i 22.06 | 22, 06 r
Accumulated depreciation |
As at 01 April 2018 20.26 20. 26
Charge for the year 0.43 | 0.43 |
Disposals/adjustments = -
As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 20.69 20.69 |
Charge for the year | 0.37 0.37 |
Disposals/adjustments - s
As at 31 March 2020 | 21.06  21.06 |
Carrying amount (net) f |
As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 1.36 1.36 |
As at 31 March 2020 | 0.99 | 0.99 |
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3 Property, plant and equipment

3.3 _Right of Use Assets (RoU)
|Particulars - ROU  Total
Deemed Cost
As at 01 April 2018 - -
Additions - -
D|sposal - |
' As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 256.70 256.70 |
| Additions ‘ - =
| Disposal - -
| As at 31 March 2020 _ | 256.70 |  256.70 J
Accumulated depreciation i
As at 01 April 2018 | - -
Charge for the year | - -
Disposals/adjustments - -
As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 - -
Charge for the year 42.78 | 42,78 |
Disposals/adjustments - | #
As at 31 March 2020 i 42.78 | 42.78 |
Carrying amount (net) |
As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019  256.70 256.70
As at 31 March 2020 | 21392 | 21392

This space has been intentionally left blank
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4  Investments As at As at
31 March 2020 March 31 2019
4.1 Non-current

(i)

@in

(iii)

Invesiments in equity instruments carried at cost
Unquoted equity Instruments

Investment in Subsidiaries (refer note 4.2 below)

Zuari Infra Middle East Limited - wholly owned subsidiary (refer note 4.2.below)
[10,000 (2019:10,000) Equity Shares of AED 1 each (1 AED = Rs.16.64))

Investment in Associates

Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited

[10,00,000 (2019:10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs10 each, issued at a premium of Rs 179.40/-]
Darshan Nirman Private Limited

[2,500 (2019: 2,500) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each]

Pranati Niketan Private Limited

[2,500 (2019:2,500) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each]

Investments in redeemable non-cumulative optionally convertible preference shares

Unquoted Investments in preference shares in associate carried at fair value through Profit or Loss: (fully paid)

Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited (Refer Note 4.5, below)
[5,00,000 shares of Rs 100 each, fully paid, Date of Maturity 30 November 2023]
(1% Redeemable Non-Cumulative optionally convertible preference shares)
(Initial Cost : Rs.500 lakhs)

Investments in mutual funds (Quoted) (refer note 4.4 below)
Investments at fair value through Profit or Loss:

ICICI Prudential Fixed Maturity plan Series (77-1473 Days Plan C)
[Nil units (2019:50,00,000 units) at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity May 25, 2019]

ICICI Prudential Fixed Maturity plan Series (78-1130 Days Plan T)
[Nil units (2019:1,00,00,000 units) at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity April 25, 2019]

ICICI Prudential Fixed Maturity plan Series (78-1156 Days Plan T)
[Nil units (2019:50,00,000 units) at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity May 29, 2019]

SBI Debt Fund Series B-36 (1131 Days)
[Nil units (2019:85,00,000 units) at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity May 06, 2019)

SBI Debt Fund Series C - 1 (1100 Days) Direct Growth
[1,50,00,000 units (2019; 1,50,00,000 units) at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity June 26, 2020]

ICICI Prudential Corporate Bond Fund - Direct plan - Growth
[1,30,81,249 units (2019: Nil units) at Rs 20 per unit]

SBI Debt Fund Series C - 23 (1100 Days) Direct Growth
[2,00,00,000 units (2019: 2,00,00,000 units) at Rs10 per unit, Date of Maturity September 03, 2021]

SBI Magnum ultra short duration fund Direct Growth
[Nil units (2019: 6.06 units) at Rs.3,845/- per unit ]

SBI Debt Fund Series C - 16 (1100 Days) Direct Growth
[1,26,70.900 units (2019:1,26,70,900 units) at Rs.10 per unit, Date of Maturity June 01, 2021]

SBI Magnum low duration fund Direct Growth
[43,965 units (2019: Nil units) at Rs.10 per unit]

1.66 1.66
1,894.00 1,894.00
0.25 0.25
0.25 0.25
1,896.16 1,896.16
672.00 696.25
672.00 696.25
+ 686.65
- 1.264.47
4 628.33
- 1,067.19
1.676.27 1,685.04
2,813.79 -
2,319.42 2,123.28
E 0.25
1,495.43 1,371.85
1,156.27 -
9,461.17 8,827.06
12,029.34 11,419.48

Note: The above balance of investments in mutual funds are as per_lhe_!--sltata[@t accounts from that fund.

-
P
SA
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

4.2

4.3

44

4.5

The foreign subsidiary in Dubai, UAE has accumulated losses which exceed it's networth as at the year end. The subsidiary and the step
down subsidiary company is engaged in the business of the development of long term real estate project which is in its initial stage.

As per the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 of Zauri Infra Middle East Limited, the said subsidiary, the
Management has considered that Company as a going concern for the following reasons:

(a) The parent entities and JV Partners have resolved not to dissolve the group and continue its operations availing funding from the banks
and or venture capital against the securities of the parent entities.

(b) The management will obtain the approvals for the project which were lapsed due to significant delays in commencment of project,
submitting required applications and documents.

(c) The parent entities have full confidence in the successful completion of the project and have agreed to provide and or make an
alternative financial and the business arrangements for the successful completion of the project and to meet with its financial requirements.

(d) The management is confident about off plan sale of units under new brand name by the second half of the financial year to end 31
March 2022 enabling the group to generate cash flow to meet with the development cost.

(e) The existing creditors and lendor of unsecured loans have agreed to extend their support and once the project construction work is
commenced, the creditors support will be further gained.

(f) As per the revised forecast prepared by the management, the operating and financial performance are positive and profitable.

(g) Key executive management is in place with the company and its parent entities and upon commencement of the additional project
manager / officials will be inducted.

(h) There are no changes in government legislation that may adversely affect the company.

Considering the above, the Management of the Company is confident that carrying value of investement and Loans given to subsidiary as
stated in Note 5 are fully recoverable and hence no provision for impairment in the carrying value of the investment in this subsidiary or
adjustments in respect of the carrying value of loan is considered necessary by the Management of the Company in the standalone
financial statements.

Summary of Investment and their valuation (Also, refer note 35): ) .
|Investment Class Method of Valuation | As at As at
| | 31 March 2020 | March 31 2019
| Unquoted equity Instruments Carrled at cost (deemed cost) 1,896.16 | 1,896.16
' Unquoted preference Instruments ) Drscounted cash flows method* (fair value) ‘ 672.00 696.25 |
| Mutual funds [Market aobservable inputs (fair value) | 9,461.17 | 8,827.06 |
I 12,029.34 | 11,419.48

* based on the valuation report issued by the independent firm of Chartered Accountants.

Investments in mutual funds

Investments in mutual funds are held under lien in favour of Yes Bank Limited, GIFT City for providing finance facility to Zuari SJM
Properties LLC, Dubai, a step down subsidiary. All the investments in mutual funds are carried as non-current as they are expected to
either be renewed / re-invested on their maturity. Further, Investment of funds in mutual funds will not meet the contractual cash flow test
(i.e. SPPI test) as the contractual cash flows (i.e. Dividends or redemption amount represented by the NAV) will not just be solely interest
and principal. Therefore, the same has been classified as Fair Value through profit and loss (FVTPL). (Also refer note 30.3 of the
standalone financial statements)

The details of Investments in mutual funds sold during the year are given below:

|Descriptions | For the year ended March 31, 2020 i For the year ended March 31, 2019
Carrylng value | Sale Proceeds Gain/income | Carrying value | Sale Proceeds | Gainlincome
ICICI Prudential | leed Matunty ~ 68B6.65 | l 694.41 7.76 [ - A -| -
| ICICI Prudential Fixed Maturity | 1,264.47 5 1,270.23 5.76 | = = =
| 628.33 | 635 35 I 7.02 | = - -
_ und Series | 1,067.19 | 1 074 61_ | 742 | = -
| SBI Magnum Ultra Short Fund | 0.25 | 0.27 | 0.02 | - s
SBI | Liquid Fund [ Dlrect Growth | 100 00 1_ A (}O_.SSJ 0.33 | | =
' LGD Yes Liquid Fund = I - E 1,000. oo| 1,006.72] 6.72
. SBI Debt Fund Series. = - | il 1,254.93 | 1,267.09 12.16
| ICICI Liguid Money Market Fund | L = =1 206.00 | 206.15, 0.15
| SBI Magnum Ultra SDF 1 - [ d0aeTs | 1.099.08) 49.33
| SBI Short Term Fund i - = | = I 3 558, 39 3,671.45 113.06
f 3,746.89 ~ 3,775.21| 28.32] 7,069. 07; 7,250.51, 181.44

investments in Redeemable optionally convertible Non-cumulative Preference Shares:

Company has made investment in 1% Redeemable optionally convertible Non-cumulative Preference Shares of Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private
Limited, an associate. These investments in shares does not satis contractual cash flow test as they are optionally convertible into equity
shares and their dividends are linked to profits earned. Ar;cor;:lgg\’M % any has classified these investments in shares at Fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL). The fair valuation for this pur, an Independent firm of Chartered Accountants.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(Al Amounts in Indian Rupess in lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

5

Loans

As at

As at

31 March 2020 March 31 2019

Unsecured, Considered Good

Non - Current

Loan to subsidiary (carried at amortised cost) (also refer note 4.2)

5,227.01

2,917.56

5,227.01

2,917.56

5.1 Unsecured Loan to Zuari Infraworld Middle East Limited, Dubai, a wholly owned subsidiary is to meet working capital requirements of that
company and carries interest rate of 14% per annum. These loans along with interest are repayable in equivalent Indian Currency with
three year moratorium for payment of interest and principal from the date of disbursement. These loans are expected to be rolled over
along with interest dues for further period and hence calssified as non-current. For detailed schedule of repayment terms refer table below:

Amounts in lakhs

| Details of loan and date of | Loan Repaid during Fair value Fair value of Due Date of | Amount |
| disbursement | Amount the year | adjustment loan as at 31 repayment disbursed
| _ ' March 2020 {In foreign
| LS ! = S . Currency)
Loan 2 - 03 May, 2017 _ 28714 - | 116.44 | 40358 | 02May, 2020 | AED 18.09
Loan 3 - 12 Jul, 2017_ 35.58 — - 1332 4890 | 11Jul, 2020 | AED2.00 |
Loan 4 - 16 Aug, 2017 ! - | 16515 625.05 | 15Aug, 2020 |  AED26.00
Loan 5 - 25 April, 2018 ; 3 s T 60.96 301.15| 24 Apr, 2021 | AED 13.19
|Loan 6 - 23 May, 2018 ! - 45.54 233.21 | 22 May, 2021 AED 10.00
Loan7-25June, 2018 | — -] 6513 34880 24Jun,2021 |  AED 1520
Loan 8 - 21 Sept, 2018 I 391 23.91| 20Sep, 2021 | AED1.00
Loan 9 -24 Oct, 2018 - 200.30 129542 | 230ct,2021 | AED54.00
Loan 10 - 03 April, 2019 - [ 185 16.85 | 02Apr,2022 | AEDO0.80 |
Loan 11- 25 April, 2019 RS S 57.82 §57.82 | 24Apr,2022 | USD7.04
Loan 12- 19July, 2019 | - _ A7A4]  217.14 | 18J0u, 2022 | USD2.86 |
Loan 13 - 31 Oct, 2019 [ 00| = ’_ 55.19 1,155.19 | 300ct, 2022 |  USD 15.49 |
Total T asae ] | 802.75 5,227.01 ] |
6 Other financial assets As at As at
31 March 2020 March 31 2019
Unsecured, Considered Good
6.1 Non-current
Security deposits (carried at amortised cost)* 31.00 28.76
Security deposits (carried at cost)* 2.40 240
33.40 31.16
6.2 Current
Security deposits - Current (Carried at cost)* 44.62 26.04
Interest accrued and due - Others (refer note 7.7. below)* 33.72 33.72
Interest Accrued but not due on deposit with bank 5.43 5.09
Advance to employees* 10.95 9.44
Expenses recoverable (refer note 6.5. below) 192.99 189.23
Net Investment in sublease of right-of-use asset (also refer note 14) 201.07 -
Unbilled Revenue - Service Contracts 90.00 173.93
578.77 437.45
* These balances are subject to confirmation.
6.4 Includes service income accrued and not billed as at the reporting date to related parties;
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, UAE - Commission towards financial guarantee 90.00 -
Zuari Global Limited, India - Sales and Development Management Commission - 57.05
90.00 57.05
6.5 includes expenses recoverable from related parties;
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited, India 157.33 157.33
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, UAE 35.66 31.91
192.99 189.23
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7  Other Assets As at As at
31 March 2020 March 31 2019
Unsecured, Considered Good

7.1 Non-Current
Advances recoverable in cash or kind (refer note 7.3 & 7.4 below) 639.61 846.63
Capital Advance (towards acquisition of software license) 10.60 10.60
Goods and Service Tax Refund (refer note 7.6. below) 188.19 188.19
Karnataka VAT - refund receivable 32.01 32.01
Service tax - refund receivable 10.35 10.35
Less: Provision towards service tax refund (10.35) (10.35)

870.42 1,077.44

7.2 Current
Advance to vendors (refer note 7.7. below) 2,507.81 2,576.84
Goads and Services tax input credit (refer note 7.5. below) 508.24 463.27

Prepaid expenses (refer note 7.8. below) 241.19 286.70
Other receivable (Refer Note 7.9. below) 98.61 98.30
Prepaid lease-current (security deposit paid) 0.00 1.94

3,355.85 3,428.05

7.3 Includes mobilisation advance to a sub-contractor aggregating to Rs. Nil (2019: Rs 207.02 lakhs) in respect of which the sub-contractor
vendor has furnished bank guarantee to the extent of Rs Nil (2019: Rs 210.56 lakhs). This bank guarantee which was valid up to 30 June
2019 was encashed by the company during the year and was adjusted against the advance.

7.4 Includes advance payments made by the Company under the Development Management Agreement to agencies which are entitied to
certain percentage of income calculated in the manner specified therein, The advance payments made aggregated to Rs. 639.61 lakhs as
at 31 March 2020 (2019: Rs. 639.61 lakhs) and these will be adjusted in the year when the agency becomes entitled to share of income as
per the agreement. One of the operating creditors of one of the Agency company has initiated insolvency proceeding against that
Company. The management doesnot expect any significant effect of the same on its carrying balance and expects to adjust/recover the
same in full and accordingly no adjustment is considered necessary at this stage and these balances are subject to confirmation from that
party.

7.5 Goods and Service Tax Input credits carried in the books includes input tax credits aggregating to Rs. 52.02 lakhs (2019: 36.83 lakhs)
relating to advance payments to vendors and unpaid vendors bills beyond time period stipulated under GST Law, which will be claimed in
the returns in the subsequent periods when the company is eligible to claim such credits under the provisions of the GST Law.

7.6 Represents Goods and Service Tax paid on export of services which is expected to be claimed as refund. The Company is in the process
of filing refund application and expects to realise the same in full.

7.7 Includes recoverable advances paid to a sub-contractor amounting to Rs.2,246.49 lakhs (2019: Rs 2,246.49 lakhs). The Management is in
negotiation with that party for its recovery including interest accrued Rs.33.72 lakhs (2019: Rs.33.72 lakhs) as disclosed in Note 6.2 and is
confident that this advance will be ultimately fully recovered by the Company or through other companies of the Adventz Group. Hence in
the view of the Management no provision is considered necessary at this stage.

7.8 Includes Rs.228.71 lakhs (2019: Rs.283.22 lakhs) on account of brokerage & sales commission paid to an agency for services, on gross
sale consideration receivable from customers. As per the agreement, in the event of non-completion of sale transaction, such commission
is refundable by the agency. The commission paid is charged to the Profit & Loss Statement as and when revenue is recognised on a
proportionate basis.

7.9 Represents amount recoverable from Indian Furniture Product Limited, a subsidiary of the holding company as per the unconditional

undertaking given by the said company in respect of sale of residential unit to one of the customer.
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8 Inventories As at As at
(valued at lower of cost or net realizable value) 31 March 2020 March 31 2019
Completed units { Refer Note 8.1. below) 2,395.34 4,392.84
Construction Work-In-Progress (includes cost of Land, Borrowing Cost and Project Construction 26,015.42 22,113.44
and Development Cost) (Refer Note 8.2. below)
28,410.76 26,506.29
8.1 Represents residential units in respect of which company has entered into agreement for sale with the respective customers, amounts

8.2

8.3

received against these agreements by the company has been reported as advance from customers in Note No. 19. Pending receipt of
balance consideration, if any and effecting the transfer of legal titte/deemed handover of the property, the same is reported as Inventory.

Includes Rs.2,980.86 lakhs (2019: Rs.2,630.63 lakhs) being cost incurred towards project in Goa managed by M/s. Zuari Global Limited
which is pending formalising the terms and conditions. These balances are subject to confirmation from that party however, the
Management of the company expects these costs to be recovered in full.

The Management has reviewed the carrying value of its construction work-in-progress by assessing the net realisable value of the project
which is determined by forecasting sales rates, expected sale prices and estimated costs to complete (including escalations and cost
overrun). This review by the management did not result in any loss and thus no adjustments/ provisions to the carrying value of project
work-in-progress was required and external valuation was not considered necessary by the Management. In respect of early stage projects,
the underlying fair value of land based on valuation report of chartered engineer was considered for the purpose of determining the net
realisable value and the carrying value of the construction work-in-progress was found to be less than the net realisable value so
ascertained.

Refer Note No. 13 for the information on construction work in progress pledged as security by the company.

9 Trade receivables As at As at
31 March 2020 March 31 2019
Unsecured, Considered Good
9.1 Current
Trade receivables - Related Parties (refer note 9.2. below) 524.22 594.35
Trade receivables - others* 56.14 2417
580.36 618.52
9.2 Receivables from the related parties;
Zuari Global Limited - 95.02
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 404,02 404.02
Zuari Infra SUM Properties LLC, Dubal 64.75 39.86
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, Dubai 55.44 55.44
524.22 594.35

9.3

9.4

The Management of the Company expects full realisation of these receivables from related parties, accordingly no allowance towards non
recovery is considered necessary by the Management.

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor
any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a
member.

*Subject to confirmation.
Note: Refer Note No.13 for the information on trade receivables pledged as security by the Company.

10

Cash and bank balances As at As at
31 March 2020 March 31 2019

Cash and cash equivalent

Balances held in banks in current account 142.02 185.50

Other earmarked balances held with bank

Deposits held with banks with more than 3 months but less that 12 months maturity period 538.16 500.00
680.18 685.50

Note: The above balances held with banks are as per the statement_ of account obtained from that bank.
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11 Share capital As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1141
(i) Authorised
5,00,00,000 (2019:5,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 5,000.00 5,000.00
1,50,00,000 (2019:1,50,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 1,500.00 1,500.00
6,500.00 6,500.00
(i) Issued, subscribed & paid up
4,65,50,000 (2019:4,65,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 4,655.00 4,655.00
1,14,50,000 (2019:1,14,50,000) Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable 1,145.00 1,145.00
Preference Shares of Rs 10 each issued at premium of Rs. 90 each.
(Also, refer note 13.7. below )
5,800.00 5,800.00
11.2 Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
Particulars As at 31 March 2020 ' As at 31 March 2019 |
(shares of Rs. 10/- each) . Nos.  Amount(Rs)  Nos. Amount(Rs.)
At the beginning of the year | 4,65,50,000 | 4,655.00 4,65,50,000! 4,655.00
Issued during the year fi = e | nelll . = -
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,65,50,000 | 4,655.00 4,65,50,000| 4,655.00)
11.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company as at 31 March 2020
Name of the Shareholder ‘ As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
No's. % holding No's. % holding
Zuari Global Limited, the Holding Company 4,65,50,000 | 100% 4,65,50,000/ 100.00%
(Including 10,000 equity shares jointly held) ! I ! B
Note: As per the records maintained by the Company including the registers of members/ shareholders, the above share holding
represents both legal and beneficial ownership.
11.4 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:
Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares are entiled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of the equity shares held by the
Shareholder,
11.5 The company has not issued any securities convertible into equity/preference shares.
11.6 For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared :
No shares were allotted as fully paid up pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash.
No shares were allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares.
No shares were bought back.
11.7 There were no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment,
11.8 There were no calls unpaid or forfeited shares.
Refer Note 13.7. below for details of Cumulative Compulsorily redeemable preference shares issued by the Company.
12 Other equity As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
12.1 Deemed equity on fair-value adjustment to Non-convertible cumulative redeemable preference Shares:
Equity component of redeemable Preference Shares 562.11 562.11
Income tax effect on the interest portion on Preference shares (146.15) (146.15)
415.96 415.96
Also refer note 13.7. below for detailed disclosure on preference shares.
12.2 Security Premium Account:

As at the beginning and end of the year 10,305.00 10,305.00
10,305.00 10,305.00

Security premium represents premium on issue of cumulative compulsorily redeemable preference shares.
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12.3 Balance in profit and Loss Statement

As at the beginning of the year. (482.61) (135.36)
Adjustment pursuant to adoption of Ind AS 115 - (514.53)
Income tax effect on above adjustment - 133.78
Adjustment pursuant to adoption of Ind AS 116 (109.18) -
Income tax effect on above adjustment 28.39 -
Add: Profit for the year before OCI 94.34 29,52
Add: Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans, not reclassified to profit or loss* (0.06) 4.00
Net deficits in the profit and loss statement (469.11) {482.61)

10,251.85 10,238.35
“The Remeasurements gains in respect of employee benefits included above are as under;
As at the beginning of the year. 13.24 9.24
Remeasurements gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans (0.08) 5.40
Income tax effect on above 0.02 (1.40)
Balance carried forward 13.18 13.24

13 Borrowings As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
13.1 Long-term borrowings:

(i)

(i)

13.2

13.3

Secured Loans

Term Loans from banks:
Yes Bank Limited (refer 13.3. below)
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 16.2. below)

Term Loans from others:
LIC Housing Finance Limited (refer 13.4. below)

Unsecured Loans

Inter-Corporate Deposits from related parties (refer note 13.5. below)
Zuari Global Limited (carried at amortised cost)

Inter-Corporate Deposits from others

Adventz Finance Private Limited (carried at amortised cost)

Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 16.2. below)

Liability component of compound financial instrument
Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
(Also, refer note 13.7. below)

Short -term borrowings:

Unsecured loans

Inter-Corporate Deposits from (refer note 13.5. below)
Anchor Investment Private Limited (carried at Amortised cost)
Meenakshi Tea Co Limited (carried at Amortised cost)

Sree Ram Plywood Manufacturing Co Pvt Ltd (carried at Amortised cost)
Texmaco Infrastructure & Holdings Limited (carried at Amortised cost)

Yes Bank Limited - Term LLoan

1,010.19 1,010.19
(1,010.19) -
- 1,010.19
16,419.59 15,425.84
16,419.59 16,436.03
3,577.79 2,309.99
1,733.00 1,572.69
. (2,309.99)
5.310.79 1,572.69
1,058.66 928.51
22,769.05 18,037.23
- 309.65

. 206.44

400.00 .
600.31 542.02
1,000.31 1,058.11

Term Loan facility with a sanctioned limit of Rs.1,000 lakhs to refinance the promoter loans and Inter Corporate deposits with a maximum
tenor of 24 months and repayable on 19 July 2020. The said term loan facility is secured by charge on Development fee receivables and
Corporate Guarantee from Zuari Global Limited, the holding company executed in favour of the bank. The outstanding balance as at 31

= T—

March 2020 is Rs. 1,010.19 lakhs (2019:Rs. 1,010.19 lakhs). _ —
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13.4

13.5

0]

(ii)

13.6

LIC Housing Finance Limited

Term loan facility of Rs.20,000 lakhs for takeover of outstanding loan of Rs.13,000 lakhs from Federal bank limited and as a top up for
construction finance for Zuari Garden City Phase |, Il & Il project which is repayable over a period of 60 months with 36 months
moratorium for repayment of principal from the date of first disbursement with right to accelerate payment based on the review of cash
flows. This loan is secured by equitable mortgage on the Land and Building to be constructed under project name 'Zuari Garden City' in
area measuring to 50 Acres and 35 Guntas (excluding sold units), Project receivables and further secured by Corporate Guarantee issued
by Zuari Global Limited, the Holding Company. There are other conditions and financial covenants attached to this bank facility, which are
in ordinary course of business. The loan outstanding as at 31 March 2020 is Rs.16,419.59 lakhs (as at 31 March 2019 : Rs.15,425.84
lakhs).

Unsecured Inter-Corporate Deposits from related parties
Zuari Global Limited, Holding Company
Unsecured term loan from Zuari Global Limited, the holding company to meet the working capital needs of the Company. The unpaid

loans which was due for payment during the year was rolled over and renewed for a further period up to 31 December 2021, without any
changes to the existing terms and condition, detailed as under,

Terms of Repayment: = ;
Particulars | Outstanding | Loans during Repaid Interest |  Outstanding | Due Date*
01 April 2019 the Year | accrued and | 31March2020 |
| | due (including interest |
L S : ! | —— accrued) |
Loan 1-4 at 8% p.a. 73300 - ‘ — = | 16.57 | 749.57 31-Dec-21
Loan 5 at 8% p.a. 339.99 | - | - 24.55 | 364.54 31-Dec-21
Loan 22 at 12% p.a. ~ 500.00 | - 186.62 | 2273 | 335.91| 31-Dec-21
Loan 30 at 12% p.a. 412.00 - - 44.62 | 456.62| 31-Dec-21.
Loan 31-32 at 12% p.a. 32500 - 0 - 35.20 | 360.20; 31-Dec-21|
Loan 33-36 at 14% p.a. - | 1.94000|  697.10 68.07 | 1,310.97| 31-Dec-21
Total 2,309.99 1,940.00 883.93 211.73 | 3,577.79]

* Due dates after considering roliover/ renewal during the year.

Adventz Finance Private Limited

Unsecured general purpose loan for working capital purposes for Rs.2,000 lakhs from Adventz Finance Private Limited, a group company
carries interest rate of 14% p.a. The loan along with interest which was due on 30 June 2020 was rolled over during the year for a further
period up to 31 December 2021 and accordingly is reclassified as non-current during the year. The loan outstanding including interest
accruals as at 31 March 2020 is Rs.1,733.00 lakhs (31 March 2019 : Rs.1,572.79 lakhs).

Other Unsecured Inter-Corporate Deposits

Unsecured short-term inter corporate deposits from the following parties to meet working capital requirements of the Company. The details
of the same is given below.

Party Name ‘ Amount Amount Repaid i'Rate of Interest! Date / due date | Interest Accrued | As at 31 March 2020
borrowed during the year | I for Repayment and not due | (including accrued

o ] ) ‘during the year | { | interest)

Apchor Investments Private B} 300.00 14.50% 01-May-19 | i I

Limited | - o ‘ l | |

Meenakshi Tea Company | } i T | I I

tmted | | AW s | e | |

SanghiStoeliidyeg Nvate | 500.00 500.00 | 14.50% 25-Jul-19 4 =

Limted | _ } . |

Sree Ram Plywood |

Manufacturing Co Private | 1,050.00 | 650.00 15.00% 12-Aug-20 | - 400.00

Limited | | | . .

Texmaco Infrastructure & - Repayable on 1l

Hoangs mies | woos|  wew| wew |MREEM 00 amm s

Total _ ! 2,050.00 |  2,150.00 | | 100.31 1,000.31
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13.7 Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares:

(i) Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year )

Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 10 each, issued at As at [ As at
premium Rs 90 per share | 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
At the beginning of the year 1,14,50,000| 1,14,50,000°
Issued during the year | | -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,14,50,000| 1,14,50,000

(i) Shares holding more than 5% as at the beginning and end of the reporting year —

Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference As at 31 March 2020 ’ As at 31 March 2019

|Shares of Rs 10 each, issued at premium Rs 90 per share. In No's In % _ In No's _ In %

Mr. Saroj Kumar Poddar § . | 85,00,000 74% l 85,00,000/ 74%,
Texmaco Infrastructure & Holdings Limited . 29,50,000 26% | 28,50,000] 26%
Outstanding at the end of the year | 1,14,50,000 100% | 1,14,50,000/ 100%

(i) Rights, preferences & restrictions attached to Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares:

The Company has only one class of non-convertible preference share having a par value of Rs 10 per share, carrying coupon rate of 8.5%
per annum which are cumulative in nature and redeemable on 31 March 2025 (70,00,000 Shares), 31 March 2021 (15,00,000 Shares) and
31 March 2022 (29,50,000 Shares) respectively. During the year the Company has extended the redemption period of 70,00,000
preference shares which was due on 31 March 2020 to 31 March 2025. Each holder of preference shares is entitled to one vote per share
on resolutions placed before the company. These shares are redeemable at a price band of Rs 125 - Rs 150 per preference share.

(iv) Pursuant to Schedule |ll of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act"), for companies whose financial statements are drawn up in compliance of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Indian Accounting Standard 32 - Disclosure of Financial Instruments,
Non-convertible redeemable preference shares which are settled in cash needs to be classified as 'financial liability' and not 'equity’.
Accordingly company has computed the fair value of these preference shares considering the effective interest rate (EIR) at 14% and the
portion computed as 'Borrowing' amounting to Rs.1,058.43 lakhs (2019 : Rs.928.51 lakhs) has been classified under 'Long-term
Borrowings' and the portion computed as the deemed equity amounting to Rs. 415.96 lakhs (2019 : Rs.415.96 lakhs), net of taxes has
been reported under 'Other Equity'.

With respect to premium received on issue as well as the additional premium payable on redemption of preference shares no
adjustments/ disclosures has been carried out as contemplated in Ind-AS 32 and Ind-AS 109 read with Schedule Il of the Act, since such
classification of the 'securities premium account’ into 'borrowings’ or 'other equity' will be inconsistent with the provisions of section 52 of
the Act which stipulates the manner in which the securities premium account can be utilised. Also the additional premium payable on the
redemption has not been recognised in the absence of the accumulated profits since recognition of such a liability will be violative of
section 55 of the Act.

Considering above, the Company has been legally advised that no further recognition or adjustments to the premium amounts are
required in view of the specific provisions of section 52 and 55 of the Act. Accordingly, no adjustments as required under Ind-AS 32 and
Ind-AS 109 read with Schedule Il of the Act are made in respect of the premium payable on redemption

14 Lease Liabilities As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

14.1 Non-Current

Lease Liability 491.75 -
491.75 -

14.2 Current

Lease Liability 65.92 -
65.92 -
557.67 -

14.3 Other Notes on leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 118, effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2019 and applied the standard to its leases,
retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard, recognised on the date of initial application (April 1, 2019).
Accordingly, the Company has not restated comparative information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard has
been recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as on April 1, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of Rs.256.70 lakhs, 'Net investment in
sublease' of ROU asset of Rs.214.78 lakhs and a lease liability of Rs.580.66 lakhs. The cumulative effect of applying the standard was
debited to retained earnings, which amounted to Rs.80.79 lakhs (net of tax effect on the same Rs. 28.39 lakhs). The adoption of this
standard has resulted in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and corresponding increase in cash outflows from financing
activities on account of lease payments. The details of leases for the Eﬁ@pg premises in this regard are as under.

3
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(i)

(ii.)

(iii.)

(iv.)

The movement in lease liabilities is as follows:
Particulars

| For the year ending

March 312020

The movement in net investment in subl is as follows:

Balance at the beginning* - o 580.66
Finance cost accrued during the year B 78.17
Payment/payable towards lease liabilities 128,20_'
Balance as at the end _ ~ 530.63
*excluding refundable rent deposit of Rs.27.03 carried at amortised cost.

The detalls of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2020 on an undiscounted basis are as follows :
Particulars | As at

o o P - March 31 2020
Less than one year 136.09
One year to five years 614.89
more than five years = -
Total 750.98 |

Particulars

| For the year ending

March 312020

Particulars

The details of the contractual maturities of net investment in sublease of right-of-use asset

Balance at the beginning 214.78 |
Interest income accrued during the year 29.23
Lease receipts 42.94 |
Balance as at the end 201.07

| For the year ending

31 March 2020

Less than one year - - B - 47.24
One year to five years _ = _ I8 241.14
more than five years | -
Total 288.38
(v.) The Company has incurred Rs.13.24 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2020 towards expenses relating to short term leases.
15 Trade payables As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
151 Non-Current
Retention Money - non current (carried at cost) * 40.07 39.01
40.07 39.01
15.2 Current
Retention Money - current (carried at cost)* refer note 15.4. below 29222 234.59
Dues to related parties (carried at cost) refer note 15.3. below 39.91 39.42
Dues to micro & small enterprises (carried at cost)* refer note 15.5. below 2.08 4.56
Dues to creditors other than micro & small enterprises (carried refer note 15.4. below 1,353.36 843.76
at cost)*
% 1,687.56 1,122.33
156.3 Due to Related Parties comprises of due to;
Simon India Limited 36.93 36.93
Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited 1.52 162
Zuari Finserv Limited (Formerly known as Zuari Finserv Private Limited) 1.46 0.97
39.91 39.42
15.4 Includes retention money Rs.131.23 lakhs (2019 : Rs.131.23 lakhs) and other trade payables Rs.25.48 lakhs (2019: Rs.25.48 lakhs) to
one of the sub contractors in respect of which the Management is in negotiation with party for full and the final settlement. The said
balance is subject to confirmation from that party.
15.5 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 based

on the information available with the Company are as under:

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act

Interest accrued and due to suppliers on above amount

Payment made to suppliers beyond appointed day during the year

Interest paid to suppliers during the year

Interest due and payable to suppliers towards payment already made during the year

* Balances are subject to confirmation N —

1.68
0.06
6.93

0.34

4,28
0.10
4.31

0.18
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16

Other Financial Liabilities

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

16.1 Non-Current
Other financial liabilities (carried at amortised cost)
Rent Deposit (Refer note 14.3) - 12.93
Deferred Rental on security deposits (fair value adjustment) - Non-current (Refer note 14.3) - ;193
- .9
16.2 Current
Other financial liabilities (carried at cost)
Current maturity of long term loans (refer note 13) 1,010.19 2,308.99
Refundable deposit (refer note 16.4 below) 1,000.00 -
Other Deposits 14.96 14.96
Due to employees 149.28 97.14
Due to related parties (refer note 16.3 below) 37.31 11.67
Due to others 0.44 0.91
Others:
Deferred Rental on security deposits (fair value adjustment) - Current portion (Refer note 14.3) B 2.37
2,212.19 2,437.06
16.3 Refundable deposits received from M/s. Mathias Construction Private Limited for the proposed development of land/property owned by
Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited in respect of which Zuari Infraworld India Limited will acquire the right of lease of the land/property.
16.4 Due to related parties comprises of dues to;
Mr. Alok Banerjee 26.47 8.57
Mr. Anshul Amit Bansal 10.50 242
Mr. C G Ramegowda - 0.68
Ms. Nishu Kakkar 0.35 -
37.31 11.67
17 Provisions As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
17.1 Non-Current
Provision for gratuity obligation 31.97 38.59
Provision for compensated absences 12.35 15.14
44,33 53.72
17.2 Current
Provision for gratuity obligation 1.16 2.9
Provision for compensated absences 0.51 2.53
1.68 5.44
Also, refer note 37 for detailed disclosures on employee benefit plans.
18 Deferred tax (Asset) / liability (net) As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
18.1 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Unrealised gain on investment in mutual funds carried at fair value through profit or loss 265.07 314.58
Unrealised gain on Investment in preference shares carried at fair value through profit or loss 44.72 51.03
Lease liabilities 8.71 -
Timing differences on benefit obligations through OCI 0.02 1.40
Financial liabilities and assets carried at amortised cost;
- Interest on preference shares 98.44 56.29
- Unwinding of security deposit received - 0.53
416.96 423.83
18.2 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 2227 18.23
Provision for employee benefits obligations 11.98 15.38
MAT Credit Entitlement 50.17 50.17
Financial liabilities and assets carried at amortised cost;
- Unwinding of security deposit received - 0.08
Others 61.37 119.37
145.79 203.23
Unused Tax Losses 267.88 271.92
Less: Not considered for deferred tax purposes (267.88) (271.92)
271.16 220.60

Also, refer note 28 for other tax related disclosures.
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18.3 The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set-off current tax assets and current tax
liabllities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

18.4 As the management expects that the interest on Non convertible cumulative redeemable Preference shares will not be allowed as a
deduction, the income tax impact on the same has been recognised in Other Equity, since the initial recognition was in Other Equity.

19 Other liabilities As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current
Statutory dues 105.32 89.71
Advances from customers relating to;
- Completed units pending registration or transfer of possession 2,304.66 4,339.82
- Construction work-in-progress 5,194.86 3,415.08
- Maintenance charges 14.73 46.79
- Other customer advances (refer note 19.2. below) 1,035.18 626.43
Advances from related party 59.94 -
8,714.69 8,517.83

19.1 Advance from related party comprises of;
Zuari Global Limited 59.94 -

19.2 Includes advances of Rs.446.23 lakhs (2019:Rs.279.52 lakhs) in respect of cancelled residential units in respect of which the Company is

in negotiation with parties for selling units of other projects against which these amounts are expected to be adjusted and Rs.318.00 lakhs
(2019: Rs.313.50 lakhs) collected from the buyers towards club membership charges fees which will be adjusted against the expenses
incurred in this regard.
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20 Revenue from operations For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2020 March 2019
Sale of residential units 2,275.08 1,346.57
Development management fees 310.02 632.51
Sales commission on sale of plots/residential units 38.10 177.37
Maintenance charges* 75.67 1.07
Other operating revenue 4.99 27.78
2,703.85 2,185.30
* Net of expense Rs. Nil (2019: Rs.47.44 lakhs),
21 Other income For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2020 March 2019
Interest Income on ;
Deposits with Bank 43.41 5.72
Inter-Corporate Deposits to subsidiary 494.45 230.85
Income tax refund - 18.76
Rent from sub-lease* (Refer note 14) - 297
Gains from redemption of Mutual Fund 28.32 181.44
Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through Profit and loss 582.15 638.66
Adjustment on amortisation of security deposit 2.24 2.07
Unwinding of financial liability, security deposit from sub lease - 1.25
Finance Guarantee Commission 24.90 62.37
Balances no longer required - 0.45
Other miscellaneous income 0.09 -
1,175.55 1,144.54
* Rent from sub-lease reported above are net of expenses Rs.Nil (2019:Rs.36.07 lakhs)
22 Project construction and development expenses For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2020 March 2019
Architect Fees 14.65 9.61
Depreciation on assets - Projects 30.84 4.82
Civil Work 1,509.82 144.26
Site Office Expenses 9.94 0.02
Project Staff Costs 120.77 0.91
Property Tax 4.00 7.56
Infrastructure Expenses 4.60 16.10
1,694.62 183.27
Add: Borrowing cost transferred to construction work in progress 2,071.95 1,893.36
Add: Employee benefit expenses transferred to construction work in progress 161.82 262.41
Add: Other expenses transferred to construction work in progress 52.83 104.15
3,981.23 2,443.19
23 Changes in construction work-in-progress For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2020 March 2019
Completed units of stock
Completed units at the beginning of the year pursuant to Ind AS 115 4,392.84 5,639.61
Completed units at the end of the year 2,395.34 4,392.84
Changes in completed units during the year 1,997.51 1,246.77
Construction Work-in- progress
Construction work-in-progress at the beginning of the year 22,113.44 17,408.05
Add: adjustment pursuant to adoption of Ind AS 115 - 2,307.95
Less: Recovery of cost incurred towards project manged by holding company (45.61) -
Adjusted Inventory at the beginning of the year 22,067.83 19,716.00
Add: Construction cost incurred during the year (refer note 22) 3,981.23 2,443.19
Less: Recovery =
Less: Modification/ rework expenses charged to profit and loss (33.64) (45.75)
Construction work-in-progress at the end of the year 26,015.42 22,113.44
Changes in construction work in progress (3,947.59) (2,397.44)
Total (Increase) / Decrease (a+h) (1,950.08) (1,150.67)
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24 Employee benefit expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended 31

31 March 2020 March 2019

Salaries and wages 411.90 486.64
Contribution to provident and other funds 24,71 23.80
Gratuity 1347 13.91
Compensated absences 3.84 8,58
Staff welfare expenses 6.05 3.72

459.97 536.66
Less: Employee benefit expenses transferred to construction work in progress (161.82) (262.41)

298.14 274.25

25  Finance costs

For the year ended

For the year ended 31

31 March 2020 March 2019
Interest expense:
Interest on borrowings 2,679.20 2,738.33
Interest on dues to micro & small enterprises 0.11 0.28
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer note 14) 48.68 S
Interest on security deposits - 0.16
Interest on non-convertible cumulative redeemable preference shares 130.15 113.75
2,858.14 2,852.52
Less: Borrowing cost transferred to construction work in progress (2,071.95) (1,893.36)
786.19 959.17

25.

Py

Capitalisation of the Borrowing cost is not required to be suspended when substantial technical and administrative work is carried out or

when there is a temporary delay which is a necessary part of the process of getting an asset ready for sale. The Management is of the
view that the slow progress of various real estate projects are temporary in nature considering the nature of the industry and the
economic conditions prevailing across the industry. Accordingly, capitalisation (transfer to inventory) of interest cost is not suspended
during the year except for certain early stage projects in respect of which interest cost is suspended with effect from March 2020

considering various developments.

26  Depreciation and amortization expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended 31

31 March 2020 March 2019
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment 58.40 28.99
Amartisation of intangible assets 0.37 0.43
Amortisation of right-of-use-assets 42,78 =
101.55 29.42
Less: Depreciation on leasehold improvements attributable to sub-lease - (4.68)
income adjusted against sublease income,
Less: Depreciation transferred to construction work-in-progress (30.84) (4.82)
70.71 19.93

27  Other expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended 31

31 March 2020 March 2019
Rent 13.24 100.12
Travel and conveyance 27.12 15.08
Legal and professional fees 45.13 52.30
Communication and internet charges 1.77 12.84
Office Expenses 57.56 67.64
Repairs and maintenance 8.26 6.60
Auditors remuneration 11.67 6.25
Recruitment expenses, net 0.55 5.37
Advertising and publicity 78.98 83.02
Rates and taxes 14.50 12.85
Commission & Brokerage 66.86 214.49
Maintenance and Security 143.03 97.32
Insurance 17.87 12.40
Directors sitting fees 4.70 5.35
Miscellaneous expenses 4.42 9.41
Balances no longer required, net 1.15 11.55
) 502.81 712.61
Less: Other expenses transferred to construction work in progress (52.83) (104.15)
449.99 608.46
27.1 Remuneration to Auditors’ reported above includes

Statutory Audit Fees (relating to previous year Rs.0.87 lakhs (2019:Nil)) 917 5.00
Tax Audit Fees (relating to previous year Rs.0.23 lakhs (2019:Nil)) 1.20 0.75
Certification fees 1.30 0.50
11.67 6.25
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28 Income Tax For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2020 March 2019
Income tax expense 60.28 4.00
Income tax of earlier year 963 2.60
Deferred tax charge/(credit) 78.95 139.41
148.86 146.00
28.1 income tax expense for the year reconciled to the accounting profit For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2020 March 2019
Profit before tax 24322 175.52
Income tax expense calculated at 26% (2019:26%) 63.24 45,64
Adjustments for:
Gain on fair value adjustments to preference shares - 40.08
Expenses not considered for tax purposes. (1.03) -
Gain on fair value adjustments to Mutual funds taxable at differential rate (192.46) 50.47
Interest portion fair value adjustment to preference shares issued 76.00 -
Other adjustments 67.43 1.27
Tax effect on unused tax losses not recognised 65.78 10.32
Tax expenses of earlier year debited to profit and loss 9.63 2.60
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) of earlier year debited to profit and loss 60.28 (4.37)
148.86 146.00
28.2 The tax effects of timing differences that resulted in changes in deferred tax For the year ended For the year ended 31
are as follows: 31 March 2020 March 2019
Fair valuation of investment in mutual funds (49.52) 112.44
Unwinding of security deposit paid 0.08 0.04
Interest accrued on preference shares issued (Adjustment pursuant to Ind-AS) 42.16 (29.58)
Difference between accounting base and tax base of tangible & Intangible assets (4.04) (0.24)
Unwinding of security deposit received {0.53) 0.28
Temporary differences on benefit obligations 2.02 (3.29)
Fair valuation of investment in Preference shares (6.31) 51.03
Gain on sale of flats recognised as per Ind AS 115 58.00 17.10
Lease Liabilties 37.10 -
MAT Credit Entitlement s (8.37)
78.95 139.40

28.3 Deferred tax assets arising from the carry forward of unused tax losses not are recognised in these financial statements as there is no
convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future against which the unused tax losses can be utilised by the

Company, which is considered appropriate by the Management.
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29 Disclosure of Interest in subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates:

29.1 Disclosure of Interest in the following subsidiaries;

Name Country Ownership Interest of ZIIL (%) . Method used to
' of As at | As at account for
I ; | Incorporation | 31March 2020 | 31 March2019  investments
|Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, Dubai L UAE | 100% 100% At Cost

29.2 Disclosure of Interest in the following associates:

Name i Country | Ownership Interest of ZIIL (%) . Method used to
of As at | As at | account for
. | Incorporation | 31March2020 | 31March2019 | jnvestments
|Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited | _India i 25% 25% _At Cost
{Darshan Nirman Private Limited | India 25% | 25% At Cost
|Pranati Niketan Private Limited il India | 25% 25% | At Cost

Note: As at 31 March 2020 Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited holds 50% of Darshan Nirman Private Limited and 50% of Pranati Niketan
Private Limited.

30 Commitments and Contingencies

30.1 Contingent Liabilities (not provided for)

|Particulars N B | March 312020 | March 312019 |
Dividend on Non Convertible redeemable cumulative preference shares not yet declared 439.31 | 411.94
|Income Tax demand for FY 2016-17 against which company has filed rectification, pending 59.86 | -
rectification no provision is considered necessary at this stage. R __J | !
|Tax demand for defaults under Section 201 of Income Tax Act, 1961 as per TRACES portal of| 5.94 | 6.13
Income tax website, against which company is in the process of filing rectification. ! ‘ .
Customer claims not acknowledged as debt by the Company : 37.98 | 32.68 |
Total | 543.09 | 450.75 |

30.2 Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Project construction and development, net of advances aggregates to
Rs.6,745.10/- lakhs (2019:Rs.3,489.92/-/- lakhs).

30.3 Corporate Guarantees and pledge of assets:

The Company has executed Corporate Guarantees jointly with the Zuari Global Limited, the holding company in favour of Yes Bank
Limited for extending financing facility to Zuari SUM Properties LLC, Dubai, a Step-down subsidiary of the Company. The amount of
finance facility extended is USD 630 lakhs (In Indian Rupees 47,061 lakhs, considering 1 USD = Rs 74.70 as at the reporting date (2019:
USD 630 lakhs (In Indian Rupees 44,056 lakhs, considering 1 USD = Rs 69.93).
i(a) The Company's share of the value of Corporate Guarantee is USD 200 lakhs (using
|closing exchange rate of Rs.74.7 per USD as at reporting date (2019; USD 200 lakhs using
closing exchange rate of Rs.69 perUSD)). I | - |
|(b) The company has also provided security by way of pledge of mutual funds held in the| 9,461.17 8,826.81
\name of the Company (fair value as at reporting date) for the loan referred to in (a) above.

I 14,940.00 | 13,986.00

1

31 Earnings Per Share ("EPS")

Basic earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity halders of the parent by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. There are no dilutive potential equity shares, accordingly the

Diluted EPS are also calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during as at the end year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the computation of basic and diluted EPS -

— _ s — (No. of shares in absolute numbers)

[Particulars March 312020  March 312019
Profit before OCI attributable to equity holders of the parent company 94.34 29.52

\Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing EPS (Basic & Diluted) | 46550000 4,65,50,000 |
|Eamning/(Loss) Per Share (Basic and Diluted) (Rs.) ; 0.20 | 0.06
Face value per share (Rs.) 10.00 | 10.00
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32

Impact of Covid-19

The outbreak of Global pandemic Covid-19 has resulted in the Government of India undertaking drastic measures for containment of the
disease including enforcing compulsory full lockdown. In view of these measures, the operations at the company was fully shutdown from
March, 23 2020 and the company was able to resume its operations during May 2020 with limited manpower in phased manner with
necessary approvals from the appropriate authority. The incremental costs incurred by the company to adhere to the standard operating
procedures notified by the Government / Authorities was not significant.

The current lockdown owing to the coronavirus crisis has hugely impacted the world economy as well as a majority of sectors across the
globe, including real estate. The management has considered the possible effects that may result from the Covid-19 pandemic on the
carrying value of various assets including inventory, investments and loans to the subsidiaries (also refer note 4.2 of the standalone
financial statements) after taking into account various internal and external information upto the date of approval of these financial
statements and have concluded that they are recoverable based on the expected future performance of the Company and it's
subsidiaries. The Company has also assessed various scenarios and assumptions and based on the current estimates, the management
of the Company expects that the carrying amount of these assets, as reflected in the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, are fully
recoverable and that no provision/ adjustment is required.

Further, considering the effect of ongoing pandemic situation the regulatory authorities have extended the timelines for completion of
ongoing projects under RERA regulations and the Management of the Company is confident of meeting the extended timelines for
completion.

Considering the present financial position of the Company and its ability to raise funds, the Management of the Company doesnot forsee
any adverse impact on its ability to continue as going concern and meeting its liability as and when they fall due.

The impact assessment of Covid-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainities associated with its nature as well as its duration and

the Management will continue to monitor any events/changes to future economic conditions. Accordingly, the impact may be different
from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.
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33 Related Party Disclosures

33.1 Details of related party and their relationship with the Company:
"'sl. | Name of the related party N
No | =
1 | Zuari Global Limited

| Holding Company

i Nature of relationship with the Compény

2| Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, UAE

3 | Zuari Infraworld SJM Properties LLC, UAE (formerly SJM Elysium
Properties LLC)

4 | Burj District Development Limited, Cayman Islands
5 | Burj District One Limited, UAE

4
5
6 | Zuari Management Services Limited
il
8

| Simon India Limited -
Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited

| Subsidiary
Step down Subsidiary

Joint Venture of Step down subsidiary
Subsidiary of
Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

' Joint Venture of Step d dowu subsidiary

Zuari Finserv Limited (formerly known as Zuari Finserv Private Limited)
| 10 | Brajbhumi Nirmaan Privat

Pranali Niketan Private Limited ] o
13 | Narayanan Suresh Krishnan, Director (resigned w.e.f. March 02, 2020)

| Fellow Subsidiaries

| Associates
Associates
Key Managemenl Personnel

14 | R 8 Raghavan, Director " (appointed w.e.f. March 02, 2020)
15 | L M Chandrashekaran (appointed w.e.f. March 02, 2020)
| 16 | Sunil Sethy, Independent C Director (resigned w.e.f. March 19, 2020)

17 | Krishan K Gupta, Independent Director
! |(resigned w.e.f. March 19, 2020)

18 [ Alok Banerjee, CEO & Director {addihonally appointed as Director w.e.f.
| [March 02, 2020)
Anshul Amit Bansal, Chief Financial officer

Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel

| Key Management Personnel

”K'ay Méﬁaga_ment Personnel

i Key Management Personnel

20 | C G Ramegowda, Company secretary (resigned w.e.f. September 05,

‘Company secretary (appointed v w.e.f. February 20, 2020)
nar Poddar

33.2 Details of transactions with related parties:

| Key Management Personnel

1 | Key Management Personnel
l Director of holding company

| Sl. |Particulars Year ended Year ended 31 |
| 31 March 2020 March 2019 ‘
1 |Payment made on our behalf by the Company: |
| |Zuari Global Limited | 7 5.77 |
| 2 |Service Charges { Management Fees Paid | |
I ___|Zuari Finserv Limited {Formerly known as Zuari Finserv Private Limited) 0.45 0.90 |
| =3 Furchasa of furnitures (PPE)
{ ]Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited | - 1.29
4 |Recovery of cost incurred towards project handled by
| |2uari Global Limited o N 45.61 =
| 5 |Service Charges / Management Fees Income
Zuari Global Limited - Development Management Commission 184.87 93.52 |
|Zuari Infra Middle East Limited- Development Management Commission 90.00 400.00
|Zuari Global Limited - Sales Commission 26.27 45.99
(Zuari Infraworld SJM Properties LLC - Finance Guarantee charges 24.90 39.86
| Zuari Infra Middle East Limited - Finance Guarantee charges - 22.51 |
6 |Inter-Corporate Deposits Given- Asset
|Zuari Infra Middle East Limited
| -Given - - - [ 1,815.00 1,826.65
| 7 |Inter-Corporate Deposits Taken - Liability |
Zuari Global Limited '
- Accepted 1,940.00 4,358.00
_ |- Repayment - . — 883.93 | 4,256.01 |
| 8 [interest on ICD (Expenses) !
| |Zuari Global Limited o o 203.50 20165 |
| 9 |Interest on ICD given - Income (incl. adjustment on amortisation)
,_|Zuarl Infra Middle East Limited — 494.45 22565 |
10 |Reimbursement of Expenses received/receivable
|Zuari Infra Middle East Limited 3.75 111.14
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33.3 Compensation paid to Key management personnel compensation;

"'sl. |Particuiars
No

1 [Short-term employee benefits

|Alok Banerjee, CEO & Director (additionally appointed as Director w.e.f. March 02, 2020)
|Anshul Amit Bansal, Chief Financial officer
C G Ramegowda, Company secretary (resigned w.e.f 05 September 2020)
|lehu Kakkar Company secretary (appointed w.e.f. 20 February 2020}
| 2 |Retirement benefits (Provident fund and Gratuity)
Alok Banerjee, Chief Executive Officer
Anshul Amit Bansal, Chief Financial officer
C G Ramegowda, Company secretary (resigned w.e.f 05 September 2020)
Nishu Kakkar Company secretary (appointed w.e.f. 20 February 2020)

3 [Sitting fees

Directors sitting fees to Non-executive Directors

,"'I'o'tajl cqmpgngg_{ion i

33.4 Year-end balances
Sl |Padiculars

Year ended

| 31March 2020

83.98 |

28.08
542 |
0.47 |

4.70

150.46 |

As at
31 March 2020 |

Year ended 31
March 2019

97.37
23.92
13.23

2216
4.46 |
1.82

5.35
168.32 |

As at [
31 March 2019

i Simon India Limited 36.93 36.93 |
| |Forte Fumiture Products India Private Limited 1.52 | 1.52 |
| |2uari Finserv Limited (Formerly known as Zuari Finserv Private Limited) 1.46 | 0.97
2 |Other payable | [
| Alok Banerjee 2647 | 8.57 |
Anshul Amit Bansal 10.50 | 2.42
| C G Ramegowda, Company secretary (resigned w.e.f 05 September 2020) - 0.68
| INishu Kakkar Company secretary (appointed w.e.. 20 February 2020) 035 | - |
' 3 |Advances paid
| |Zuari Global Limited 59.94 =_|
| 4 |Trade receivable i [
| Zuari Infra Middle East Limited 55.44 | 55,44 |
Zuari Infra SIM Properties LLC 64.75 39.86
| Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 404.02 404.02 |
| Zuari Global Limited - 95.02 |
| 5 |[Expenses Recoverable
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 157.33 167.33
| |zuari Infra Middle East Limites 3566 | 3191 |
| 6 |Loans to related parties
_|Zuari Infra Middle East Ltd. (including interest accrual) 5,227.01 | 2,917.56 |
| 7 |Loans from related parties: ' |
| Zuari Global Limited 3,577.79 | 2,309.99 |
i 8 |Other year-end balances
(a) Included in Project Work-in-Progress
Zuari Global Limited 2,980.86 2,630.63
| (b) Service Income accrued and not billed i |
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited 80.00 | =
f Zuarl Global Limited S| 57.05
33.5 Other Year end balances
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited
(i} Corporate Guarantee (USD 200 lakhs at closing exchange rate of Rs.74.70 per USD as al 14.940.00 13,986.00
reporting date (2019: USD 200 lakhs using closing exchange rate of Rs.69.93 per USD))
(i) Pledge of mutual funds held in the name of the Company 9,461.17 8,826.81

33.6 Terms and conditions

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactlions and in the normal course

of business.
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34 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, security deposits and
employee dues. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to provide guarantees
to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables and cash and short-
term deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company's senior management is supported by the finance team that advises on financial risks
and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. Further, the company is primarily operating in the real
estate sector which is subject to The Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 (RERA).

34.1 Market risk
Market risk s the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and
commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and investments in mutual
funds.

(i) Interest rate risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. Term
Loan facility from LIC Housing Finance Limited and Yes Bank Limited is subject to floating rate of interest based on MCLR, while
the borrowings from the related entities carry interest at a fixed rates.

[Interest sensitivity analysis Outstanding | Increase/ Effect on profit

i | Loan facility decrease in before tax |
subject to basis points |

e = — S | floatina rates | ‘

For the year ended 31 March 2020 - =1} | m—

| Increase in base points — 17,429.78 | +50 | 87.15 |

| Decrease in base points N - 17,429.78 | -50 : (87.15)]

[For the year ended 31 March 2019 S . S | !

Increase in base points - - : 16,436.03|  +50 | 8218

| Decrease in base points 1 16.,436.03 | -50 , (82.18)

(i) Foreign currency risk:
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's
operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Company's net investments in
foreign subsidiaries.

(iii) Equity price risk
The Company's non-listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of
the investment securities. The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves all Investment decisions.

34.2 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments.

Trade raceivables

(i) Sale of units (Villas/ Villaments & Apartments):
Customer credit risk is managed by "CRM team" subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer dues with respect to Customers demands are regularly monitored for
proactive actions.

(i) Development Management Fees:
Apart from real estate activities, the Company also provides Project Development services. The Trade Receivables includes dues
from these activities aggregated to Rs. 404.02 lakhs (2019: Rs 499.04 lakhs)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for these entities. The Company does not hold
collaterals as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect fo trade receivables as Nil, as its customers
are related and are part of the same group and with respect of sale of flats & villas the sale deed is executed only after the
realisation.
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34.3 Liquidity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds regularly and is directly monitored by CFO of the company .
The Company's objective is to maintain balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans and
Debt Preference Shares.

The management expects to renew/rollover all of the short term debts/barrowings that are falling due in next 12 months. Further
the Company is confident of increased operational cash inflows from bookings of flats/villas/apartments and is also ensured of
continued support from its Holding/ Associates Companies and the Promoters.

The management also obtained consent from the preference shareholders for extension of the redemption of preference shares
which are due fer redemption on 31 March 2020. These preference shares are now due for redemption on 31 March 2025.

34.4 Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure
their ability to continue as going concern and maximise the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments as at 31 March 2020:

Particulars ‘ On demand | <3month lﬁ 012 months] 1to3years | >3years | Total
Borrowings ‘ 600.31 = | 1,548, 88 | 20,577.55 2,072.81 { 24,799.55 |
| (Incl. Debt portion of | | |
Preference Shares) | =~ | ) i |
[Trade payables | 34.30 | 423 50 ’ 1 229 77 ’ 40.07 = | 1,727.64 |
|Lease liabilities ) - 24, 21 }'_2__54__1_ 321,59 139.22 557 .67
[Other financial liabilities | 8.93 16. 13 161.53 | = | 1,01540 | 1,202.00
Total _ ] 643.54 463.84  3,012.82 | 20,939.21 | 3,22743 28,286.85

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments as at 31 March 2019:

;Particularé ) ; On demand | <3month [3to12months] 1to3 years | >3years | Total
|Borrowings ' 542,02 2.326.08 | 2,140.34 | 6,369.05 10,427 84 22,305.33
(Incl. Debt portion of :

|

t

|

|Preference Shares)

~0.65 849.50 ' ' '2'44‘_:_2_2__'!l 66.97 | = 1,161.34

|Trade payables 00 == ki S| !
|Other financial liabilities | o 108.1 81 _0.56 | 033 42.27 | 151.98 |
Total | 54266 378440  2,385.13] 6,436.36 10,470.11 | 23,618.66

i
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35 Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the financial instruments
Financial Assets . g -
Particulars ' ~ Carrying value
| Asat 31 March 2020 | As at 31 March 2019

|Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss

|Quoted mutual funds | 9,461.17| 8,827.06
|Preference Shares held in Associate Company | 572.00i 696.25/
Financial assets carried at amortised cost ' [

|Interest accrued and due | 33.72 33.72
| Interest accrued and not due . 543 5.09
|Expenses Recoverable - Related parties 192.99 189.23
|Unbilled Revenue - Service contracts | 90.00 173.83/
|Net investment (sub-lease) | 201.07 -
|Security deposits 31.00 28.76
Loan to Subsidiary | 5,227.01 2,917.56
Trade Receivables i 580.36 618.52
|Cash and bank balances | 680.18 685.50
|Advance to employees [ 10.95 9.44
|Financial assets carried at cost |

|Investments in Associate ' 1,896.16/ 1,896.16
iSecurity deposits 47,02| 28.44
|. as -— — ot 1 :

|Total _ { 19,129.06| 16,109.67

Financial liabilities
|Particulars ) Camrying value |
' ’_@_ at 31 March 2020 l As at 31 March 2019

IF_inanciJ liabilities carried at amortised cost !
16,419.59| 15,425.84

|LIC Housing Finance Limited

|Yes Bank Limited i - 1,010.18
|Preference shares (debt portion) | 1,058.66 928.51
|Security deposit towards sub lease 5 - 12.93
|Inter corporate deposits | 6,311.11 | 2,630.80
Deferred Rental on security deposits - 14.36
Current maturity of long term loans 1,010,19 2,309.99
|Refundable deposit ‘ 1,000.00| -
|Lease liability including current portion 557.67| -
Other payable to related parties ' 37.31| 11.67!
Other deposits : 14.96| 14.96
|Dues to employees - 149.28| 97.14
| Trade payables 1,728.08 1,162.26
|

| Total 28,286.85 23,618.66

Other Notes:

(i.) The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, retention money, inter corporate
deposits, loan to related party and trade payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

(i.) The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(a.) The fair values of the unquoted Preference shares have been estimated using a DCF model and considering the future cash outflow
in this regard, based on a independent valuation . The valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the model
inputs, including forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates within the range
can be reasonably assessed and are used in management's estimate of fair value for these unquoted Preference shares.

(b.) The fair values of the Company's interest-bearing borrowings and loans approximates to their carrying amounts i.e., cost as at the
end of the reporting year. The own non-performance risk as at reporting was assessed to be insignificant.
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36 Fair Hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets:

|Assets: | Total

| Investments in Mutual funds | 9,461.17
| (8.827.06)
i

|Prererence shares held in Associate | 672.00

- _ (696.25)

(i.) Amounts in the parenthesis represent previous year.

Quoted prices in

active markets
(Level 1)

[ Significant
| observable inputs |

(Level 2)

9,461.17 |
(8,827.06)
|

(i.) There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 3 during the year.

This space has been intentionally left blank

|

Significant
unobservable inputs |

(Level 3)

672.00
(696.25)
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37

(ii.)

(iii.)

(iv.)

(v.)

Gratuity (Employment benefit plan)

|Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
: Current Non-current Current | Non-current
Vg_l_n_.u_p of Plan Gratuity {Un Funded) ! 1.16 31.97 | 2.91 | 38.59
Gratuity:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets gratuity on

departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status

and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Net employee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost) for the year ended:

|Particulars As at [ As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 !
ICurrent Service Cost 10.47 ! 11.31 |
|Net Interest Cost 3.00 I 2.60
Expanse racagnisad in profit and loss statement 13.47 | 13.91
_Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation:
Particulars As at As at
o _ 31 March 2020 . 31March 2019
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions 0.28 |
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (4. 86). (0.05)
Experience (gains) / losses 4.65 ‘ (5.35)
Total actuarial (gain)/loss 0.08 | (5.40) |
Other comprehensive income . S ) ]
|Parﬁculars As at As at
31 March 2020 } 31 March 2019
|Actuarial (GamyLoss recognlzed for the  period 0.08 ! (5. 40)
|Asset limit effect = | ]
'Return on Plan Assets excluding net interest - -
|Unrecogn|zed Actuarial (Gain)/Loss from previous period B = =
| Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in (OCI) 0.08 | (5.40)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows:
[Particulars As at As at
| ] 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
|Opening defined obligation = 41.50 | 36.61
|Current service cost 10.47 11.31
|Interest cost 3.00 | 2.60
|Contrlbut|on paid {21.91) (3.63)
(Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations 0.08 | (5.40)
Defined benefit obligation - | ) 33.14 | 41.50
‘The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company's plans are shown below:
\Particulars As at ' As at
| - 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
‘Mortality IALM (2012-14) Ult. . |ALM (20086-08) Ul
Interest / Discount Rate 6.77% | 7.50%
[Rate of increase in compensation First two years - 8% 9%
| 3rd year onwards - 6.5%
|[Expected average remaining service 15.66 8.7
|Benefit of normal retirement considered as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Rs. 20 Lakhs i Rs. 20 Lakhs
|[Employee Attrition Rate (Past Service) PS: 0 to 18 years : 3% PS: 0 to 40 years: 8%
PS: 18 to 30 years : 2%
PS: 30 to 42 years : 1%
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(vi) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at the reporting date is as shown below:

|Gratuity Plan_ , As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2020

|Assumptions = il Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level | *1%increase | -1% decrease *1%increase |  -1% decrease
{Impact on defined benefit obligation : 30.11 36.75 36.02 | 30.67
Gratuity Pian B ; As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2019

Assumptions | Discount rate Future salary increases

[Sensitivity Level — +1% increase | -1% decrease +1%increase | -1% decrease |
{Impact on defined benefit obligation | ~39.20 | 44.11 43,95 | 398.30 |

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a
result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

(vii.) [mg_ following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

|Particulars As at ' As at

.- - - 31 March 2020 | 31March 2019

| Within the next 12 months 1.16 | 291

|Between 2 and 5 years 17.78 | 28.91

Between 5 and 10 years o 4.40 9.19
Totai expected payments 23.35 41.01

Note: The above disclosures are based on the valuation report by an independent actuary and relied upon by the auditors.

38 Segment Information
Information regarding Operating Segment Reporting as per Ind AS-108
The Chief Financial Officer monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Accordingly, the Company has identified only one segment i.e., real estate sector as its
reportable segment for the purpose of Ind AS 108.

Real Estate segment (RE) is into development, sale, management and operation of all or any part of townships, housing projects, including
leasing of self owned commercial premises and also rendering development management services and thus entire business has been
considered as a single operating component by the Management,

38.1 The following table presents assets and liabilities information for the Company'’s operating segments as at year end:

|Geographical information ]| _Non-current assets B Revenue from operations I
As at . As at for the year ended for the year ended

| |31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019 31March2020 31 March 2019

Undia | 1,329.89 2,613.85 1,785.30

Outside India (Dubai) i | - - 90.00 | 400.00

| S 1 1,329.89 | 1,26560| 2,703.85 | 2,185.30

Note:

Non-current assets disclosed above are excluding Investment in subsidiaries & Associates, financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post:
employment benefit assets etc.

38.2 Revenue from the customers contributing more than 10% of the total revenue are given below:

|Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

== ] o 31 March 2020 ] 31 March 2019 .
‘Customer A = 139.51
|Customer B _ ) { = Y 270.38
|Customer C o - | 400.00 |
[Total : - 809.89
Note:

There are no customers who individually contribute more than 10% of the total revenue of the Company. Accordingly, no disclosures has
been made in this regard.
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39 Disaggregation of revenue

|Particulars | For the year ended 31 March 2020 | For the year ended 31 March 2019
o - ' India | Outside India . India . Outside india
|Sale o residential units . 221508 | 1,346.57 & |
Development management fees ; 220.02 | 90.00 | 232.51 400.00
|Sales Commission on sale of plots/residential units - - 38.10 - . 177.37 | -
|Maintenance charges = — 75.67 - 1.07 | 2
Other Operating revenue i 4.99 a 27.78 | ;
|Total - | 2,613.85 90.00 | 1,785.30 | 400.00

40  Accounts of most of the trade payables, trade receivables, loans & advances and customer advances are subject to confirmation and
management does not except any material adjustments had the confirmation were received. In the opinion of the Management none of
the assets, other than property plant and equipment, have a value lower on realisation in the ordinary course of business than the
amount at which they are stated in these financial statements.

Signatures to notes 1-2 & 29-40
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of the even date attached

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of For VARMA & VARMA
Zuari Infraworld India Limited Chartered Accountants
[| FRN 0045325
\[-\ZL);‘.O'G'\*‘F/LQ \ gk_k.u\rru) W P
S RAGHAVAN -7 K P SRINIVAS
Director o Partner
DIN:00362555 M. No. 208520
Place: Gurgoan - Place: Bangalore
Date: 1 T e, 20 . Date: bTe
\ ilbl2zore
IR = Nughu Kaldes? |
LOK BAN ANSHUL ATBANSAL NISHU KAKKAR
Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
DIN: 01371033 M.No. A-46334

Place: Raqn _,Qa lote

Date: 1 ’J’uﬂ"\e‘ﬂ_o Xoa
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Chartered Accountanis

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of,
Zuari Infraworld India Limited,
Bangalore

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Zuari Infraworld india Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries listed in Annexure | (Holding Company and
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its associates listed in Annexure |, which comprise the
consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, the consolidated Profit and Loss statement (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flows
Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financizl statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associates as at 31 March 2020, of consolidated loss,
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group and its associates in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAl and the relevant provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audil evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

1. We draw attention to Note 7.7 of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
regarding the advances paid to a sub-contractor aggregating to Rs 2,246.49 lakhs and interest accrued on the
same for Rs. 33.72 lakhs in respect of which the Management is in negotiation with that party for its
recovery. The Management of the Company is confident that this advance will be fully recovered and hence
no provision is considared necessary at this stage.

2. We draw attention to Note 7.4 of the consoiidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
regarding advance payments aggregating to Rs.639.61 lakhs to an agent under the Development
Management Agraement, against whom Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process has been initiated by one
of its operating creditor. The Management of the “ompany is confident that this advance will recovered /
adjusted in full without any material adjustment and hence no provision is considered necessary at this stage.

3.  We draw attention tc Note No. 32 of the censclidated financial statements, which describes the evaluation
of the impact of Global pandemic COVID-19 carried out by the management of the company on the
company's business operations, financial positior, car*ymg value of variaus assets including investment in
subsidiaries and the uncertainties asscciated witr,s . _\@Iuat;on in tae present circumstances and that
the impact may be gifferent from that assesse?aﬁs ayel'reﬂg@’ay‘ approval of these financial statements.
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We draw attention to Note 8.4 and 32 of the consolidated financial statements and the following Emphasis of

4,
J Matter para lided in the aforesaid audit report on the consolidated financial statements of Zuari
Vagedinlss Tini by | | -
dle-fast 1mﬂ-ﬁ’, lly owned foreign subsidiary, issued by an independent firm of Chartered

Accountants of that subsidiary, which is relevant to our opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

chﬂf@ﬁfﬁﬁmﬁ?bﬁ“ﬁﬂ&éd by us as under;

“Without qualifying our audit opinion, we draw attention to notes 11 and 30 to the consolidated financial
statements, which state that there are no major construction work activities are carried out during the year
and due to uncertainties associated with the impact of Global pandemic COVID-19, management has not
considered it appropriate to carry out a detailed valuation of development work in progress as of 31 March
2020 by an external professional valuer which will be carried out before the end of second quarter of FY 2020-
21.

The consequent adjustments, if any, in the carrying value of the assets and equity deficit will be made upon
completion of valuation as mentioned above.”

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters,
Other Information

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board of Directors report but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is @ material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash
flows of the Group including its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group
and of its associates and jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors

either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Theclié?&%fﬁ;g ﬁ\ﬁ?ﬂ”&f‘ﬁf"é@tcrs of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly
controlled entities are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates
and jointly controlled entities.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes cur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may inveolve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

®  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and ielated disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s repaort. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its
associates and jointly controlled entities to cease to continue as a going concern,

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= QObtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of the financial statements of such entities inciuded in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other eniities included in the consolidated financial statements,
which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion P
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Chartered Accountanis B
We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of one subsidiary, which consists of itself, it's subsidiary,
one joint venture and a subsidiary of that joint venture, all of which are incorporated outside India, whose
consolidated financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 36,176.16 lakhs as at 31st March 2020, total revenues
of Rs. 415.42 lakhs and net cash out flows amounting to Rs. 15.28 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These consolidated financial statements of the subsidiary
have been audited by the auditors of that subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss of Rs. 1.75 lakhs for the year
ended 31st March 2020, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of three associates to
the extent recognised as detailed in Note 4.1, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These
financial statements of the associates have been audited by the auditors of those associates.

The reports of the auditors of the subsidiary and associates as mentioned above, have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associates, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of
Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associates, is based solely on the
reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books
and the reports of the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Statement, the consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated --f-ih,aﬁqiéj-;igtaggments comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with'Rule 7"6’_’?’}% Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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(e)

(f)

(h)

Place: g(_\_j\hf\m
Date: 3 4| b|2ore

Chartered Accountants
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st
March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its associate companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group
companies, its associate companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 197 of the Act is to the extent applicable with respect
to managerial remuneration paid during the year and this is subject to approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing annual general meeting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us;

(i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consalidated
financial position of the Group and its associates— Refer Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements. '

(ii) Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the applicable
law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its associate companies incorporated in India.

for VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 00453258

K P SRINIVAS
Partner
M. No. 208520

UPIN' 20208520 ARAPR HULSBE
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Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in Clause (g) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
of our Independent Auditors Report of even date on the Consolidated financial statements of Zuari Infraworld
India Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2020, We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Zuari Infraworld
india Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its associate companies which are
companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Interna! Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the of the Holding company and its associate companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl), These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
fer ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
poiicies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Audivar’s Resgonsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion en the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143({10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was 2stablished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to ohtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting includad obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in

terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Chartered Accountants
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Meaning of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
| assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
h procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

I In our opinion, the Holding Company and its associate companies which are companies incorporated in India,
have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the
internzl control over finaricial reporting criteria established by the Company including basis of allocating expenses
to various projects considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and aperating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to three associate companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the statutory auditors of such
I companies incorporated in India.

for VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0045328

K P SRINIVAS

Place: [’w_qn_a_‘f-blmu Partner

I Date : M. No. 208520
pIRTACT.LYS !
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Annexure-I

List of entities included in the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020:

_________________________ Wholy owned subsidiary

Il  Zuari Infraworld SIM Properties LLC,UAE  Step Down Subsidiary | l
 Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited _ Associate
"""""" _ Associate
| Subsidiary of Associate
prsdpediil Apelis Fovatesimieq ., Subsidiary of Associate
: Mayapur Commercial Private Limited K Subsidiary of Associate | Il
Il . Nexus Vintrade Private Limited . Subsidiary of Associate
_Bahubali Tradecomm Private Limited ..
Hopeful Sales Private Limited N Subsidiary of Associate
I _ Divine Realdev Private Limited - | Subsidiary of Associate
. Rushal Iniraproperty Private Limited | Subsidiary of Associate
- Beatle Agencies Private Limited . . Subsidiary of Associate

, Suhana Properties Private Limited ' subsidiary of Associate | I
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 March 2020
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
No. 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a.) Property, plant and equipment 3:1 290.91 234.42
(b.) Other intangible assets 3.2 0.99 1.36
(c.) Right-of-use assets 3.3 213.92 -
{d.) Goodwill on consolidation 58.75 58.75
(e.) Financial assets:
(i.) Investments 4 12,418.90 11,810.79
(ii.) Other financial assets 6.1 33.40 59.91
{f.) Income tax assets (net) 43.96 51.38
{g.) Other assets 71 5,196.42 5,031.21
18,257.24 17,247.82
Current assets
{a.) Inventories 8 58,785.94 48,477.42
(b.) Financial assets
(i.) Trade receivables 9 460.16 523.21
(ii.) Loans 5 288.40 -
(iii.) Cash and bank balances 10 686.77 706.40
(iv.) Other financial assets 6.2 526.48 451,59
(c.) Other assels 7.2 3,560.53 3,604.57
64,298.29 53,763.19
82,555.53 71,011.01
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a.) Equity share capital 11 4,655.00 4,655.00
(b.) Other equity 12 8,477.51 8,922.35
13,132.51 13,577.35
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a.) Financial liabilities
(i.) Borrowings 13.1 50,121.83 41,949.73
(ii.) Lease liabilities 141 491,75 -
(iii.) Trade payables 151
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - <
tolal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 40.07 39.01
(iv.) Other financial liabilities 16.1 - 253.68
{b.) Provisions 174 44,33 53.72
{c.) Deferred tax liability (net) 18 270.40 219.83
50,968.37 42,515.98
Current liabilities
(a.) Financial liabilities
(i.) Borrowings 13.2 1,188.54 1,642.30
(ii.} Lease liabilities 14.2 65.92 -
(iii.) Trade payables 16.2
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 2.08 4,56
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 4,854.55 1,169.80
(iv.) Other financial liabilities 16.2 3,540.84 3,509.12
(b.) Other liabilities 19 8,746.21 8,546.64
(¢.) Provisions 17.2 46.51 45.26
18,454.64 14,917.68
82,555.53 71,011.01

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuari Infraworld India Limited

| e ng
R S RAGHAVAN
Director
DIN:00362555
Place: C"l‘“a“"m ;
ate: 1| Jae;r0r0

BANE ANSHUL A. BANSAL NISHU KAKKAR
Director & CEO Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
DIN: 01371033 M.No. A-46334
Place: (3 av TTe
Date:  \\“@ung 20 32

As per our report of even date attached

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants

FRN 0045328

gki..l;k\"dh- WP

Date:

K P SRINIVAS
Partner
M. No. 208520

Place: Bangalore
14lkl2ec20
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

Particulars

Note For the year ended

For the year ended

No. 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue from operations 20 2,613.85 1,785.30
Other income 21 1,071.63 906.56
Total Income 3,685.48 2,691.86
EXPENSES:
Purchase of materials, sub contract charges and other project costs 22 12,385.28 12,619.20
Changes in construction work-in-progress 23 (10,354.13) (11,326.68)
Employee benefit expenses 24 282.54 130.84
Finance costs 25 789.75 1,065.28
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 94.35 42.39
Other expenses 27 594.33 688.85
Total expenses 3,792.11 3,219.87
Loss before share profit/(loss) in associates and tax expense (106.63) (528.01)
Loss before share in net profit/(loss) of associates (1.75) (20.26)
Loss before tax expense (108.38) (548.27)
Tax expense 28
Current tax expense 650.28 4.00
Tax expense of earlier years 9.63 2.60
Deferred tax 78.97 139.41
Total tax Expense 148,88 146.00
Loss for the year (257.26) (694.28)
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations (106.73) (55.23)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (Gratuity) (0.08) 5.40
Deferred tax on above defined benefit plans 0.02 (1.40)
Total Other Comprehensive Income (106.79) (51.24)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (364.05) (745.51)
Earning per equity share (in Rs.) N
Basic & Diluted (0.55) (1.49)
Weighted average number of shares used in computing Earnings per share 4,65,50,000 4,65,50,000

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidaled financial statements

As per our report of even date altached
For VARMA & VARMA

Chartered Accountants

FRN 0045325

!ﬂ \ J:’D.xn & fre. N 1 S aiiivas,
R'S RAGHAVAN K P SRINIVAS
Director Partner

DIN:00362555 M. No. 208520

Place: Gusiq2 s
Date: \\ w026

6"‘ @OK BAN EE

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuari Infraworld India Limited

Place: Bangalore
Date: 3 |k (1010

AR g Kl

ANSHUL A. BANSAL NISHU KAKKAR
Director & CEO Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
DIN: 01371033 M.No. A-46334
Place. Pangalele
Date: I Dune) 2630
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(Al Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless olherwise slaled)

A. Equity share capital

B. Other equity

\Balance as at 1 April 2018
Adjustment pursuant to adoption of Ind AS 115
Income tax effect on above adjustment

Balance as at 1 April 2018 after adj. under Ind AS 115

[Profit for the year

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations
| Adjustments for foreign currency translation
‘Balance as at 31 March 2019

Adjustment pursuant to adoption of Ind AS 116
|Income tax effect on above adjustment
(Balance as at 1 April 2019 after adj. under Ind AS 116
Profit for the year

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations
Adjustments for foreign currency translation
Balance as at 31 March 2020

!

Securities
premium
account

10,305.00

10,305.00

10,305.00

10,305.00

10,305.00

Note No
1"
Equity Retained
Component of earnings
convertible
preference
shares
41596 | (674.19)
- (514.53)
- 133.78
415.96 |  (1,054.95)
- (694.28)
- 4.00
- || -
41596  (1,745.23)
- (109.18)
S 28.39
415.96 | (1,826.02),
- (257.26)
- (0.06)
= -
415.96 | (2,083.34)

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As at
31 March
2020

4,655.00

OCI Reserve
(Foreign
Currency

Translation
resarve)

1.86 |

(55?23) |
(53.38)

(53.38),

(106}3}:
(160.11)

As at
31 March 2019

4,655.00

Total

10,048.62
(514.53)
133.78
9,667.87
(694.28)
4.00
(55.23)
8,922.35
(109.18)
28.39
8,841.56
(257.26)
(0.08)
(106.73)
8,477.51

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuari Infraworld India Limited

[i ’j-—"ahnﬁ'{\ff Aep
S RAGHAVAN =
Director

DIN: 00362555

Gi\;'.u.. oA

Place:
( Ayvu 20 38

Date:

ok =

ANSHUL A. BANSAL
Chief Financial Officer

‘ALOK BANERJE
Director & CEO
DIN: 01371033

Place: Bangjalere
Date: i vt o kb

As per our report of even date attached
For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants

sl Kadders~

NISHU KAKKAR

Company Secretary

M.No. A-46334

~

FRN 0045328

L_.'\IJ\V‘CH/'.'; - E ’
K P SRINIVAS
Partner

M. No, 208520

Place: Bangalore
Date: ) |k 2020
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

.

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Profit for the year

Adjustments to reconcile profit and loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation & amortisation expense

Foreign currency translation reserve

Interest Income

Balances written-off

Net gain on investments

Interest expense

Fair value adjustment to security deposits, net.
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans through OCI
Exchange difference on cash and cash equivalents
Adjustments for share of loss in subsidiary

Operating Profit/(Loss) before working Capital Changes

Adjustment for net changes in:

Trade receivables

Financial and other assets

Inventories

Trade payables

Provisions

Financial and other liabilities

Net cash generated from operations

Direct taxes paid ( net of refund incl. Interest on refund)
Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Additions to property, plant and eguipment
Investments in Mutual Funds

Proceeds from sale of Investments in Mutual Funds
Fixed deposits with bank

Loan given by subsidiary to its associate

Receipts from net investment in right-of-use assets
Interest received

Net cash from Investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Borrowings, net of repayments
Interest Paid (including amount transferred to work-in-progress)
Net cash used in financing activities

Net Changes in Cash and Cash equivalents during the year
Exchange difference on cash and cash equivalent

Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 10)

(108.38) (548.27)
125.19 51.88
(121.68) (55.23)
(43.42) (24.48)
1145 11.55
(610.46) (820.10)
5,195.30 8,092.49
(2.24) (1.23)
(0.08) 5.40
0.52 (1.20)
1.75 20,26
4,437.65 6,731.07
63.06 1,582.94
42,61 7,006.78
(10,308.52) (19,274.25)
3,582.31 (235.04)
(8.15) 32.33
1,141.70 (2,599.58)
(1,049.34) (6,755.75)
(62.49) 76.38
(1,111.83) (6,679.37)
(123.57) (10.78)
(3,774.60) (5,526.25)
3,775.21 7,250,51
: (500,00)
(288.40) :
42,94 4
5.26 0.64
(363.17) 1,214.12
6,298.39 11,829.52
(4,880.65) (6,633.76)
1,417.74 5,195.76
(57.27) (269.49)
(0.52) 1.20
206.40 474,69
148.62 206.40
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Disclosure pursuant to Ind-AS 7 as amended:
Particulars As at 01 April 2019 Cash Flow Trf. to Non-Cash Adj. As at 31 March 2019
Securities | (fair value adjustments)
Premium
Redeemable Preference 928.51 - - 130.15 1,058.66
Shares (Debt portion) (814.76) - - (113.75) (928.51)

Cash flows from operating activities are reported using the indirect method.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date atlached

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of For VARMA & VARMA
Zuari Infraworld India Limited Chartered Accountants
FRN 00453258
ﬂ] d‘% N ¢ AR q Wvas ot
R S RAGHAVAN K P SRINIVAS
Direcior Parlner
DIN:00362555 M. No. 208520
Place: (’7 w ‘}‘“n Place: Bangalore
Date: DAL § 20 3-8 patEty Gl Uy ia
! f"dj )—-4\’CLJ_L:.'L
?/ A N Kakdon
ALOK BANERJEE ANSHULMAL NISHU KAKKAR
Director & CEO Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
DIN: 01371033 M.No. A-46334

Place: BaugaleYe
Date: (i t’?u&f 100-8
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

1 Corporate information:

The Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Zuari Infraworld India Limited [CIN: U45309KA2007PLC043161)] and its Subsidiary
("hereinafter collectively referred as the "Company” / the "Group") and ils associates are for the year ended 31 March 2018, The Company
is domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Group's primary business is
pre-dominantly into the business of developing long term real estate projects (residential cum commercial property intended for sale).

The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors passed on meeting held
through video conference and other visual means (VC) dated June 11, 2020,

2 Significant accounting policies:
{a.) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except
for certain financial instruments which are measured al fair values in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) nolified under
Section 133 of the Acl read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and in accordance with the reporting
requirement under Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), to the extent notified.

These Accounting policies have been consistently applied by the group in the preparation and presentation of these financial statements
except where a newly issued/ notified accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a
change in the accounting policy which was in use.

Current and Non-current classification

All Assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set
out in Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013, As the Company is engaged in developing a residential cum commercial project, the
normal operating cycle is based on the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle at least 12 months after the reporting date for the purpose of Current - Non-
current classification of assets and liabilities, which is considered appropriate.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all the amounts disclosed in the financial statements have
been rounded off to the nearest lakhs pursuant to the requirements of schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,, excepl when otherwise
indicated.

(b.) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company, its subsidiaries, and its associates as at
31 March 2020. Control is achieved when the Group has power over the investee, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

- Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member's financial statements in
preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group's accounting policies.

—_—

{c.) Consolidation procedure

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared following the below mentioned procedures:

(1.) Subsidiary has been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by combining together the book values of the like items of assets, liabilities,
income, expenses, and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiary, offsetting (eliminating) the carrying amount of the parent's
investment in subsidiary and the parent's portion of equity of each subsidiary and after eliminating all significant intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions and also unrealized profits or losses.

(2.) Interests in the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the Associates over which the Group has significant influence but not
control have been consolidated using Equity method. Under the equity method of accounting , the investment in an associate is initially
recognised at cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of the investee
after the date of acquisition.

(3.) The difference of the cost to the Group of its investment in Subsidiary over its proportionate share in the equity of the investee Group
as at the date of acquisition of stake is recognized in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be. While
in the case of Associates such Goodwill or Capital Reserve is adjusted to the carrying value of investments.

(4.) The intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group
(including profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets) are
aliminated in full, Intragroup losses indicating an impairment are recognised in the consolidated financial statements. Pursuant to Ind
AS12 on Income Taxes the temporary differences that arise from the elir;n'i_'naiien-,gf. profits and losses resulting from intragroup

transactions are recognised. WA & L.i,“\\
24
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(5.) Profil or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the Parent Company of
the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. However the
minority interests has been restricted to zero on the transition date i.e. April 1, 2015 using the exemption provided by the Ind AS 101 and
the accumulated losses attributable to the minorities in excess of their equity on the transition date, in the absence of the contractual
obligation on the minorities, the same has been accounted for by the Parent Company.

(6.) The financial stalements of the group entities used for the purpose of consalidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the
Group i.e. year ended 31 March 2020,
List of Subsidiaries and Associates considered for consolidation:

(A) Following Wholly Owned Foreign Subsidiary has been consolidated on line by line basis:

Name of the Group Country of | Share of Ownership Share of Ownership
Incorporation Interest as at Interest as at
| | 31 March 2020 ! 31 March 2019
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited . Dubai, UAE : 100.00% 100.00%
The information relating to the subsidiary of Zuari Infra Middle East Limited is given below
Name of the Group Country of | Share of Ownership Share of Ownership
Incorporation Interest as at Interest as at
S — | 31March2020 31 March 2019

0,
(Refer Note below) UAE 100.00% 100.00%

Note: Shareholding in Zuari Infraworld SJM Properties LLC includes 51% held by a nominee shareholder as per the Shareholders
Agreement dated 18 August 2014. As per the terms of this agreement Zuari Infra Middle East Limited has complete control over the
management and accordingly this Company has been considered as a subsidiary with 100% interest and thus consolidated. The paid up
share capital corresponding to the 51% interest has been included under other current liabilities, which is considered appropriate by the
Management.

Going Concern

As per the consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2020 of Zauri Infra Middle East Limited, a subsidiary and also as
detailed in Note 4.6, although accumulated losses amounted to more than 50% of the subsidiary's paid up share capital, the
accompayning consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the group will continue as a going concern. The
Management of the subsidiary company has considered subsidiary company as a going concern for the following reasons:

(a) The parent entities and JV Partners have resolved not to dissolve the group and continue its operations availing funding from the
banks and or venture capital against the securities of the parent entities.

(b) The management will obtain the approvals for the project which were lapsed due to significant delays in commencment of project,
submitting required applications and documents.

(c) The parent entities have full confidence in the successful completion of the project and have agreed to provide and or make an
alternative financial and the business arrangements for the successful completion of the project and to meet with its financial
requirements.

(d) The management is confident about off plan sale of units under new brand name by the second half of the financial year to end 31
March 2022 enabling the group to generate cash flow to meet with the development cost,

(e) The exisling creditors and lendor of unsecured loans have agreed to extend their support and once the project construction work is
commenced, the creditors support will be further gained.

(f) As per the revised forecast prepared by the management, the operating and financial performance are positive and profitable,

(g) Key executive management is in place with the company ans its parent entities and upon commencement of the additional project
manager / officials will be inducted.

{(h) There are no changes in government legislationthat may adversely affect the company.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(B) Following Investments in Associates have been consolidated using Equity Method of Accounting:

Name of the Group . Country of Share of Ownership  Share of Ownership
Incorporation ! Interest as at Interest as at
_ 31 March 2020 ! _31 March 2019
'Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited * India 25% 25%

[ based on consolidated financial statements
including its subsidiaries is given below] | |
Pranati Niketan Private Limited . India | 25% . 25%
Darshan Nirmaan Private Limited - B India 25% b . 25%

* As at 31 March 2020, Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited holds 50% (2019: 50%) each in Pranati Niketan Private Limited and Darshan
Nirmaan Private Limited respectively.

‘The information relating to the subsidiaries of Brajbhumi Nirman Private Limited (BNPL), an associate are given below:

Name of the Group | Country of | Share of Ownership | BNPL's share of Ownership
Incorporation | Interest as at | Interest as at
. 31 March 2020 31 March-2620
'Rosewood Agencies Private Limited | India : 100.00% : 25.00%
\Neobeam Agents Private Limited '= India 100.00% 25.00%
Mayapur Commercial Private Limited ! India | 100.00% ! 25.00%
Nexus Vintrade Private Limited . India | 100.00% 25.00%
Bahubali Tradecomm Private Limited , India ' 100.00% 25,00%
‘Hopeful Sales Private Limited ' India . 100.00% f 25.00%
Divine Realdev Private Limited ’ India i 100.00% . 25.00%
|Kushal Infraproperty Private Limited | India 100.00% 25,00%
‘Bealle Agencies Private Limited ' India . 100.00% : 25.00%
Suhana Properties Private Limited India | 100.00% . 25.00%
|Saket Mansions Private Limited | India | 100.00% _ 25.00%
| Name of the Group | Country of Share of Ownership | BNPL's share of Ownership
| Incorporation Interest as at Interest as at
1 31 March 2019 . 31 March 2019
|Rosewood Agencies Private Limited India . 100.00% . 25.00%
|Neobeam Agents Private Limited : India : 100.00% 25.00%
|Mayapur Commercial Private Limited ] India _ 100.00% | 25.00%
Nexus Vlntrade Private erlted | India | 100.00% _ 25.00%
Bahuball Tradecomm Private Limited 1 India _ 100.00% 26.00%
Hopeful Sales Private Limited India | 100.00% 25.00%
DIVII‘IB Realdev Private leiied India | 100.00% | 25.00%
Kushar infraproperly Private Limited : India E 100.00% | 25.00%
Bealla Agencies Private Limited | India | 100.00% . 25.00%
Suhana Properties anata Umltad ; India _ 100.00% _ 25.00%
\Saket Mansions Private Limited ! India 100.00% 25.00%

This space has been intentionally left blank
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(d.) Use of accounting estimates, accounting judgements, and assumptions:

Preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions. Such estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assefs and liabilities, the disclosures of conlingent assels and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the year.

The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use
of such assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in the ensuing notes. Accounting estimates could change from
year to year and also actual results could differ from those estimales. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as Management
becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding these estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements
in the year in which changes are made and their effects, if material, are disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions :

(i.) Useful life of Property, plant & equipment:
The determination of estimated useful lives and expected residual values are based on the technical evaluation carried by the Company
and these are reviewed by the Management of the Company at each reporting date.

{ii.) Impairment of financial assets and evaluation of impairment indicators:
The evaluation of applicability of impairment indicators for an assels requires assessment of several external and internal faclors which
could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. As at the balance sheet date based on the historical default rates
absorbed over the expected useful life, the Management assess the fair value of various financial assets and liabilities and their resultant
fair values.

(iil.) Impairment of non-financial assets:

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transaction conducted at arms' length for similar assets or observable market prices / guidance value less incremental cost
for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model, The cash flows are derived from budget for the future
years and do not include any restricting activities not committed for or significant future investments that will enhance the performance of
the assets of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rates used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash flows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

{iv.) Contingencies:
Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal. By their
nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates
regarding the outcome of future events, which may or may not occur.

—

Construction work-in-progress

The Company holds inventories stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Such inventories include land, work in progress and
completed units. Considering the nature of the activity and, in particular the scale of its developments and the length of the development
cycle, the Company has to allocate project-wide development costs between units being built. It also has to forecast the costs to complete
on such developments.

(v.

In making such assessments and allocations, there is a degree of inherent estimation uncertainty; in particular due to the need to lake
account of fulure direct input costs, sales prices and the need lo allocate project-wide costs on an appropriate basis to reflect the overall
level of development risk, including planning risk. The Company has established internal controls designed to effectively assess and
review inventory carrying values and ensure the appropriateness of the estimates made. These assessments and allocalions evolve over
the life of the development in line with the risk profile, and accordingly the margins reflects these evolving estimates. Similarly, these
estimates impact the carrying value of inventory at each reporting date as this is a function of costs incurred in the year and the allocation
of inventory to costs of sales on each property sold.

(vi.) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumplions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and morality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumplions are reviewed at each
reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated
in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality
tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

{vii.) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices
in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are laken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,-a- dagree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liguidity risk, credll r?sk an 'Q,Iatlhty Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. (AN \,
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ZUAR! INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(viil.) LLeases

The Company evaluales if an arrangement qualifies lo be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116 on Leases. Identification of a
lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals)
and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts
and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the
oplion to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease lerm if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The
discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with
similar characteristics. The Company reassess the option when significant events or changes in circumstances occur that are within the
control of the lessee.

(e.) Property, plant and equipment and Depreciation
(i.) Property, plant and equipment
The Property, plant and equipment ('PPE') of the Company are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The cost comprises of the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the assel to its current working condition for the intended use. Any discounts or rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added o its book value only if it increased the future benefits from the existing
assels beyond its previously assessed standard performance.
Recognition principle:
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if:
(i.) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company; and
(ii.) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
De-recognition principle:
Gain/ (losses) arising from the de-recognition of a PPE are measured as the difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the PPE. The resultant gain/(losses) are recognised in the Profit or Loss statement when the PPE is de-recognised.
(ii.) Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on the Straight Line basis over the estimated useful life of the PPE after retaining estimated residual value not
exceeding 5% of the original cost, except for Leasehold improvements and aluminium panels used for construction. Depreciation on
assets used for the project has been considered as part of construclion and development cost. The residual values, useful lives and
methods of depreciation of properly, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
considered appropriate.
Upon adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all its properly, plant and equipment at the Previous GAAP carrying
amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e.. 1 April 2015.
The Company has estimated the useful lives which is detailed as under for each category of PPE:
‘Nama nf Assats [Usaful | ives
\Office Equipment |5 years
[Plant & Machinery (P&M) |8 years
'Furniture & Fixtures |10 years
'Computer and servers ‘5 and 6 years
Matar Vehiclas 110 vaars, |
Leasehold Improvements . |Over the primary lease period (10 years)
Aluminium panel used for construction (P&M) |4 years
Temporary structure 1 year
(f.) Intangible Assets and Amortisation

(i,

—

Intangiblie Assets
Intangible assels acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible assets

are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of intangible asset is recognised as an asset if, and only if:

(i.) it is probable that future economic benefils associaled with the item will flow to the Company; and
(ii.) the cost of the item can be measured reliably,

De-recognition:

Gain/ (losses) arising fram the de recognition of intangibles are measured as the difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the intangibles. The resultant gain/(losses) are recognised in the Profit and Loss statement when the intangible asset
is de-recognised. o

AW e Ly N
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(ii.} Amortisation

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on the
Straight Line basis over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the profit and loss
statement unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not
amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life
1s reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to
finite is made on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets representing computer software is amortised on the straight line basis over a estimated useful economic life of five
years.

Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company had elected to measure all its intangible assets at the Previous GAAP carrying amount
as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1 April 2015.

(g.) Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

(i.) The Company as a Lessee:
The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract
and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease
commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or
restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-
use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the lease term or useful life of right-of-use
assel, whichever is earlier, The esfimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant
and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If thal rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable
lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.
The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made, Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in
statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 on Leases to short-term leases of all assels that have a lease term
of 12 months or leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease coniracts entered by the Company majorly pertains for buildings taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary course. The
Company does not have any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as per the contract.

(i.) The Company as a Lessor:
At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. The Company
recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance
lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net
invesiment in the lease.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the
lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying
asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease
as an operating lease and recognises lease income accordingly.

If an arrangement or contract contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with
customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

{iii.) Transition
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which supersedes the existing lease standard, Ind AS
17 Leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases for both lessees and lessors.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effeclive from the financial year beginning April 1, 2019 and applied the standard lo its leases,
using the modified retrospective method with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard, recognised on the date of initial
application (i.e., April 1, 2019). Accordingly, the Company has not restated comparative information, instead, the cumulative effect of
inilially applying this standard has been recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as on 1 April 2019.

Refer note 2(e) — Significant accounting policies — Leases in the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2019, for the accounting policy pursuant to Ind AS 17.

(h.

Impairment

{i.) Financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109
requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. In determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables,
the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on historical
credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the
receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an
amount equal to the 12-months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

(i.) Non-financial assets (Tangible and intangible assets)
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost
to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss statement.

(i.) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing
cost also includes exchange differences, if any to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrawing costs.

Borrowing costs that are directly altributable to the construction of development property are capitalized as part of the cost lill such time
the property is ready for its intended sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur.

Borrowing costs during an extended period in which it suspends the activities necessary to prepare an asset for its intended use or sale.
Such costs are costs of holding partially completed assets and do not qualify for capitalisation. However, the Company does not normally
suspend capitalising borrowing costs during a period when it carries out substantial technical and administrative work. The Company also
does not suspend capitalising borrowing costs when a temporary delay considering the nature of industry, is a necessary part of the
process of gelling an assel ready for its intended use or sale.

(i.) Foreign Currency Translation
The Campany's financial statements are prepared and presented in Indian Rupees, which is also it's functional currency.

Initial Recognition:

Foreign currency transactions, if any, are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction/ realisation.

Conversion / Reinstatement:

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the initial
transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value denominated in a foreign currency are, translated using the exchange rates that
existed when the fair value was determined.

Exchange Differences:

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary iters or on reporting Company's monetary items at rates different from those
at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as
expenses in the year in which they arise

The gain or loss arising on franslation of non-monetary items measured al fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or

loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI) or profit and loss are also recognized in OCI or profit and loss, respectively).

Page 12 of 48




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(k.) Inventories

The cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase including cost of land, costs of conversion and other costs including borrowing
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Inventories (comprising Land under Development and Conslruction Work-in-Progress) are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost includes expenses, net of taxes recoverable, specifically attributable to construction and development of property intended for sale.
The allocation of common costs is based on the normal level of the activities,

Construction work-in-progress of constructed properties include the cost of land, internal development costs, external development
charges, construction costs, overheads, borrowings cost, development/construction materials and is valued lower of cost/estimated cost
and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and estimated
cosl necessary to make the sale.

{1.) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

{i.) Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating lo a provision is presented in the profit and loss statement net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

(i) Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose exislence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely
rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognise
a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

(m.) Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from development and sale of residential cum commercial properties and related services,
maintenance and consulting. Effective 1 April 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers"using the
cumulative effect transition method being applied to contracts that were not completed as of 1 April 2018.

Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognilion and measurement when the contract has been approved by the parlies,
in writing, to the contract, the parties to contract are committed to perform the irrespective obligations under the contract, and the contract
is legally enforceable. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control over the promised producls or services (‘performance obligations")
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company has received or expects to receive in exchange for these products
or services (“transaction price”). When there is uncertainty as to collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is
resolved.

To determine whether to recoanize revenue, the Company follows a five step model as envisaaed in Ind AS 115 given below:
Identifying the contract with a customer

Identifying the performance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allocating the transactlion price to the performance obligations

Recounizinag revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

(i.) identify the Contract with Customer
The Company evaluates whether a valid contract is satisfying all the following conditions:
All parties have approved the agreement (may be oral or written)
- All parties are committed to approve their obligations.
- Each party's rights are identifiable.
The contract has commercial substance.
Collectability is probable.

(ii.) identifying the performance obligations
The Company evaluates the separability of the promised goods or services based on whether they are ‘distinct’. A promised good or
service is 'distinel’ If both:
* the customer benefits from the item either on its own or together with other readily available resources, and
“itis 'separately identifiable’ (i.e. the Company does not provide a si .iﬁs.‘a;— ‘s; vice integrating, modifying or customizing it)
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

{iii.) Determining the transaction price
The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the (ransaction price. The
transaction price excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The consideration promised include fixed amounts, existence of
any financial component and any other non-cash consideration, or both.

Where the Company has a right to consideration from a customer in an amount that corresponds directly with the value to the customer of
the performance completed to date, the Company recognizes revenue in the amount to which it has a right to invoice.

(iv.) Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations
The transaction price is allocated to the separately identifiable performance obligations on the basis of their standalone selling price. For
services that are not provided separately, the standalone selling price is eslimated using adjusted market assessment approach.

{v.) Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardiess of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is recognized either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Company satisfies performance obligations by transferring
the promised goods or services to its customers.
The main revenue streams for Zuari Infraworld India Limited relate are as under:
- Residential cum commercial properties (constructed properties)
- Development Management Services.
- Sales Commission.
Revenue from sale of residential cum commercial properties (constructed properties)
The Company develops and sells residential cum commercial properties. Revenue is recognised when control over the property has been
transferred to the customer. The properties have generally no alternative use for the company due to contractual restrictions. Enforceable
right to payment does not arise until legal title or posession of the property is deemed to have been passed to the customer. Therefore,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the legal title has been passed to the customer or pocession of property is deemed to have
been passed lo the customer. Each unit of the flats or properties are classified as a separate performance obligation and revenue is
recognised upon legal transfer of asset to buyer or when the pocession of property is deemed to have been passed to the customer.
The revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract. In most cases, the consideration is linked with the process of
construction and does not involve any significant financial component.
The Company has not adjusted the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing compenent. In the view of
the Management of the Company, the contract with a customers would not have a significant financing component as there is no
difference between the promised consideration and the cash selling price of the residential units (as described in paragraph 61 and 62 of
Ind AS 115) had the same been sold on full cash basis.
Income from sale of services
Income from service contracts which is in the nature of fees for specified periods are recognised on accrual basis to the extent the
services have been rendered and invoices are raised in accordance with the contractual terms with the customers and recoveries are
reasonably certain.
Sales Commission from sale of plots/ residential units
Commission from sale of plots/ residential flats upon sale of the plots/ flats as per the terms of contract and recoveries are reasonably
certain.
Other income
Other income comprises of interest income, dividend income and gain/loss on investments. Interest income is recognized on accrual
basis using the effective interest method. Dividend is recognised as and when the right to receive payment is established by the reporling
date, which Is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

(n.) Taxes on income

(i.) Current income tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid lo the tax authorilies
using own estimates in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid fo the taxation authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are lhose that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax refating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive

income or in equily). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situalions in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(ii.) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused lax credits and any unused tax
losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss statement is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity).

{0.) Retirement and other Employee Benefits

(i) Provident Fund
Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the Profit and Loss
statement of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution
payable under the scheme.

{ii.} Gratuity
Gratuity liability under the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972, are defined benefit obligations and are provided for on the basis of actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method, made at the end of each financial year. The gratuity liability is not funded.

Compensated Absences

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates by the Management considering the entitlements outstanding as
at the reporting date. Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial
year. The acluarial valualion is done as per projected unit credit method.

(iii.

Remeasurements:

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss stalement in subsequent periods. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Financial Instruments

(p.

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and liabililies are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are direcily attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

{i.) Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is lo
hold these assets to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assels give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

{ii.) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured al fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding and selling financial assets.

The Company has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of equity investments not held for trading
in other comprehensive income.

(ii.) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost or alt fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in statement of profit and loss,

(iv.) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments recognised by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received net off direct issue cost,

(V.

(vi.) Financiai guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the halder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fa|r:!§lye ad]usted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is meamfré@\at&hg- igher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recogmsgcf iéas cu'mula\g Komsatlon
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

(a.) Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders (after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharehalders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(r.) Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. Chief
operating decision maker reviews the performance of the Company according to the nature of business which primarily comprises of
development of real estate projects , both residential and commercial.

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting financial
statements of the Company as a whole.

{s.) Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capital represents the nominal (par) value of shares that have been Issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are
deducted from share premium, net of any related income tax benefits.

Retained earnings are adjusted for the following:
- Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability-comprises the actuarial losses from changes in demographic and financial assumptions

and the return on plan assets
All transactions with owners of the parent are recorded separately within equity.

Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities when the dividends have been approved in a general
meeting prior to the reporting date.

(t) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprises cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with an original
maturity periods of three months or less.

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net
of outstanding bank overdrafts if any as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

(u.) Investments
Investments in subsidiary, Joint Ventures and Associates are accounted at their cost in the separate financial statements. Investment in
preference shares in Associates and mulual funds are accounted for at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) at the reporting date.
{v.) Recent Accounting pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA') notifies new standards or ammendments to the existing standards. There were no such new
standards or ammendments which have been notified or made applicable with effect from 01 April 2020.

i}
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, uniess otherwise slated)

3 Property, plant and equipment

3.1 Tangible assets

Particutars Plantand = Office Leasehold Furniture and| Temporary

| Equipment | Equipment | Improvements Computare Fixtures Structures Vehicles Told)

Deemed Cost

As at 01 April 2018 6.77 57.20 129.21 15.98 45.22 0.85 13223 387.45
Additions - 5.83 | 3.65 - 1.29 - - 10.78
Disposal | B B - - - 2 - %
Foreign currency transition differences - - - - = - “ -
As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 6.77 63.03 | 132.86 | 15.98 46.51 0.85 132.23 398.23
Additions 121.39 1.69 | E 0.49 - - - 123.57
Disposal | - - - - - - - -
Foreign currency transition differences - | 2.74 | - - - = | 2147 23.91
As at 31 March 2020 ; 128.16 | 67.46 ' 132.86 | 16.47 46.51 0.85 | 153.40  545.71
Accumulated depreciation | | ; | |
As at 01 April 2018 | 3.58 27.64 31.73 9.13 15.70 0.00  24.59 112.36
Charge for the year 1.02 11.85 13.97 233 5.34 E 16.94 51.45
Disposals/adjustments = - - = - = - -
Foreign currency transition differences = - - - = A 3 .
As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 | 4.59 39.50 45.70 11.46 21.04 | 0.00 41.53 163.81
Charge for the year 29.83 12.32 14.55 1.48 | 5.86 - 18.01 82.04
Disposals/adjustments - - - - - E - -
Foreign cuirency lransition differences - 1.61 | - - - - 7.34 8.96
| As at 31 March 2020 | 34.42 | 53.42 ; 60.25 | 12.93 26.90 0.00  66.88  254.81
Carrying amount (net)
As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 | 2.18 | 23.54 | 87.16 | 4,52 | 25.47 | 0.85 | 90.70 | 234.42
As at 31 March 2020 | 93.74 | 14.04 | 72,61 | 3.54 | 19.61 | 0.85 86.52 290.91

Note: Also refer Note 26 of the consolidated financial statements for amount of depreciation transferred to construction work-in-progress.

3.2 : Other Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets Camputer Total
Software |
Deemed Cost ' |
As at 01 April 2018 . 22.06 | 22.06
Additions 5 .
Disposal 3 =
| As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 | 22.06|  22.06
- Additions ; - -
Disposal = = |
As at 31 March 2020 22.06 | 22,06
Accumulated depreciation -
As at 01 April 2018 20.26 | 20.26
Charge for the year 043! 0.43
Disposals/adjustments - -
As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 20.69 | 20.69 |
Charge for the year 0.37 | 0.37 |
Disposals/adjustments - -
As at 31 March 2020 | 21.06 = 21.06 |
| Carrying amount {net) '
As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 1.36 |
As at 31 March 2020 _ 0.99 |
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
{All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

3.3 : Right of Use Assets (Rol)

Particulars ROU  Total

Deemed Cost !

As at 01 April 2018 - -

Additions = | -

Disposal - -

As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 256.70 | 256.70 |
Additions - - |

Disposal - |
| As at 31 March 2020 | 256.70 r 256.70 |
Accumulated depreciation |

As at 01 April 2018 - -

Charge for the year - -

Disposals/adjustments - -
As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 . -

Charge for the year 42.78 42.78

Disposals/adjustments - -

As at 31 March 2020 | 42.78 42.78
Carrving amount {net) '
As at 31 March 2019/ 01 April 2019 256.70 | 256.70
As at 31 March 2020 213.92 | 21392 |
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless olhierwise stated)
4 |nvestments As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

4.1 Non-current
{iy ~Investments in equity instruments carried at cost (Unquoted)
investment in Associates

Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited

As at the beginning of the year 697.49 717.75
Adjustment for share of profit/(loss) in Associales (1.75) (20.26)
695.73 697.49

Adjustment for Goodwill on Consolidation 1,590.01 1,590.01
2,285.74 2,287.49

The Company holds 10,00,000 (2019:10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each, issued at a premium of Rs 179.40 per share,

Darshan Nirman Private Limited
As at the beginning of the year (0.40) (0.40)
Adjustment for share of profit/(loss) in Associates (refer note below)

(0:40} (0:401

Adjustment for Goodwill on Consolidation 0.36 0.36
(0.04) (0.04)

The Company holds 2,500 (2019:2,500) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each.

Pranati Niketan Private Limited
As at the beginning of the year {0.34) (0.34)
Adjustment for share of profit/(loss) in Associates (refer note below)

{0234} [0.39)

Adjustment for Goodwill on Consolidation 0.36 0.36
0.02 0.02
2,285.73 2,287.48

The Company holds 2,500 (2019:2,500) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each.

Note: The interest in associates is the carrying amount of the investment in the associate determined using the equity method. During the
year since the enlity's share of losses in two of its associates equals or exceeds ils interest in the associate, the entity has discontinued
recognising its share of further losses.

(i)  Investments in redeemable non-cumulative optionally convertible preference shares

Unquoted Investments in preference shares in associate carried at fair value through Profit or Loss: (fully paid)

Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited (Refer Note 4.4. below) 672.00 696.25
[5,00,000 shares of Rs 100 each, fully paid, Date of Maturity 30 November 2023
(1% Redeemable Non-Cumulative optionally convertible preference shares)
{Initial Cost : Rs.500 lakhs)

672.00 696.25
Note: As per the audited consolidated financial statement of the associate entity the investment in optionally convertible preference
shares have been considered as compound financial instrument.

(i) Investments in mutual funds (Quoted)
Investments at fair value through Profit or Loss:

ICICI Prudential Fixed Maturity plan Series (77-1473 Days Plan C) - 686.65
[Nil units (2019:50,00,000 units) at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity May 25, 2019]
ICICI Prudential Fixed Maturity plan Series (78-1130 Days Plan T) - 1,264.47
[Nl units (2019:1,00,00,000 units) at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity April 25, 2019]
ICICI Prudential Fixed Maturity plan Series (78-1156 Days Plan T) - 628.33
[Nil units (2019:50,00,000 units) at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity May 29, 2019]
SBI Debt Fund Series B-36 (1131 Days) - 1,067.19
[Nil units (2019:85,00,000 units) at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity May 06, 2019)
5Bl Debt Fund Series C - 1 (1100 Days) Direct Growth 1.676.27 1,685.04
11.50,00,000 units (2019: 1,50,00,000 units) at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturily June 26, 2020
ICICI Prudential Corporate Bond Fund - Direct plan - Growth 2,813.79 -
[1,30,81,249 units (2019: Nil units) at Rs 20 per unit]
SBI Debt Fund Series C - 23 (1100 Days) Direct Growth 2,319.42 2.123.28
{2.00,00,000 units (2019: 2,00,00,000 units) at Rs10 per unit, Date of Maturity September 03, 2021)
SBI Magnum ultra short duration fund Direct Growth = 0.25
[Mil units (2019: 6.06 units) at Rs.3,845/- per unit |
5Bl Debt Fund Series C - 16 (1100 Days) Direct Growth 1,495.43 1,371.85
(1,26,70,900 units (2019:1,26,70,900 units) at Rs.10 per unit, Date of Malturity June 01, 2021]
SBI Magnum low duration fund Direct Growth 1,156.27 -
{43,965 units (2019: Nil units) at Rs.10 per unit]
9,461.17 8,827.06

12,418.90 11,810.79

Note: The above balance of investment in mutual funds are as /fej tﬁe statementiaccounts from that fund.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(All Amounis in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

4.2 Summary of Investment and their valuation (Also, refer note 36):

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Investment Class :Method of Valuation As at As at
o | 31 March 2020 = 31 March 2019
Unquoted equity Instruments |Carried at cost (deemed cost) | 2,285.73 2,287.48
Unquoted preference Instruments Discounted cash flows method® (fair value) | 672.00 696.25
Mutual funds _'I‘\_!Iarket observable inputs (fair value) 9,461.17 8,827.06
] 12,418.90 11,810.79

* based on the valuation report issued by an independent firm of chartered accountants.

Investments in mutual funds

Investments in mutual funds are held under lien in favour of Yes bank Limited, GIFT City for providing finance facility to Zuari SJM
Properties LLC, Dubai, a step down subsidiary. All the investments in mutual funds are carried as non-current as they are expected to
either be renewed / re-invested on their maturity. Further, Investment of funds in mutual funds will not meet the contractual cash flow test
(i.e. SPPI test) as the contractual cash flows (i.e. Dividends or redemption amount represented by the NAV) will not just be solely interest
and principal. Therefore, the same has been classified as Fair Value through profit and loss (FVTPL). (Also refer note 30.3 of the
consolidated financial statements)

The details of Investments in mutual funds sold during the year are given below:

Descriptions For the year ended 31 March 2020 For the year ended 31 March 2019
| Carrying value | Sale Proceeds | Gain/income | Carrying value | Sale Proceeds  Gainfincome
ICIC] Prudential Fixed Maturity | 686.65 | 694.41 7.76 = | = 1 -
 ICICI Prudential Fixed Maturity 126447 1,270.23 5.76 = | - -
ICICI Prudential Fixed Maturity 62833 | 63535 7.02 = =1 S
SBI Debt Fund Series 106719 | 1,074.61 7.42 | - -] -
| 8Bl Magnum Ultra Short Fund ; 025 | 0.27 0.02 | = | - | -
| $BI Liquid Fund Direct Growth 10000 | 100.33 033 - | = | -
| LGD Yes Liquid Fund : | - = | 1,000.00 | 1,006.72 6.72
| SBI Debt Fund Series | - - - | 125493 1,267.09 | 12.16
! ICICI Liquid Money Market Fund . - | - - | 208.00 | 206.15 | 0.15
SBI Magnum Ultra SDF | -~ - - 104975 1,099.09 49.33
| SBI Short Term Fund | = = | - | 3,658.39 3,671.45 | 113.06
: 3,746.89 3,775.21| 28.32 7,069.07 7,250.51) 181.44

Investments in Redeemable optionally convertible Non-cumulative Preference Shares:

Company has made investment in 1% Redeemable optionally convertible Non-cumulative Preference Shares of Brajbhumi Nirmaan
Private Limited, an associate, These investments in shares does not satisfy contractual cash flow test as they are optionally convertible
into equity shares and their dividends are linked to profits eamed. Accordingly, the Company has classified these investments in shares at
Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). The fair valuation for this purpose was carried by an Independent firm of Chartered
Accounlants.

Investment by Zuari Infraworld SJM Properties LLC, Dubai

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the step down subsidiary company has made subscription for 50% share in the issued
share capital of Burj District Development Ltd ("JV Company"), Cayman Islands made up of 25,000 shares of B class of US$ 1 each as
per JV agreement. The joint venture is engaged to carry out any activities which is not prohibited by the Companies Law ( 2011 revision) of
Cayman Islands.

The JV Company has not opened bank account and hence the share capital is not contributed by the subsidiary company. The JV
Company's incorporation and renewal expenses are accounted in subsidiary's books of account. The JV Company hold 1 share in Burj
District One Limited, Jebel Ali Offshore Company, Dubai, UAE, which owns a plot of land on which the project "St Regis Residencies” is
being developed by the subsidiary company. Post completion of the project, profitability and its sharing between the JV partners will be
separately determined extracting qualifying costs and revenue from that company's account.

The subsidiary company's interest in an joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in the financial statements.

Accumulated losses of Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, a subsidiary company.

The subsidiary company has incurred a loss of AED 15.59 lakhs (equivalent Rs. 321.15 lakhs) during the year {2019: AED 32.45 lakhs
(equivalent Rs. 610.95 lakhs)) and has accumulated losses of AED 70.76 lakhs (equivalent Rs.1457.65 lakhs) (2019: AED 55.16 lakhs
{equivalent Rs.1038.52 lakhs)) as of that date resulting in deficit in equity funds. This situation is not in compliance with U.A.E. Federal
Law No.2 of 2015. The deficit is due to start-up phase of the project and the parent entities and the joint venlure partners have funded the
projects in kind. They have agreed to continue their support. The revised cash flow forecast shows positive and profitable financial
performance.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5 Loans As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Unsecured, Considered Good
51 Current
Loan to business associate (carried at cost) (Refer Note below) 288.40 -

288.40

Note: This represents unsecured and non-interest bearing loans given to a business associate which is repayable on demand, accordingly

classified as current by the Management.

6  Other financial assets As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Unsecured, Considered Good
6.1 Non-current
Security deposits (carried at amortised cost)* 31.00 28.76
Security deposits (carried at cost)* 240 31.15
33.40 59.91
6.2 Current
Security deposits - Current (Carried at cost)* 73,60 26.04
Interest accrued and due - Others (refer note 7.7. below)* 33.72 33.72
Interest Accrued but not due 5.43 5.09
Advance to employees* (refer note 6.5. below) 55.34 55.49
Expenses Recoverable (refer note 6.6. below)* 157.33 157.33
Net Investment in sublease 201.07 -
Unbilled Revenue - Service Contracts - 173.93
526.48 451.59
* These balances are subject to confirmation.
6.4 Includes service income accrued and not billed to related parties;
Zuari Global Limited, India - Sales and Development Management Commission - 57.05
& 57.05
6.5 Includes advance to related parties;
Puja Poddar, Key Managerial Personnel of Subsidiary Company and relative of a director of the 39.41 36.01
Holding Company
6.6 Includes expenses recoverable from related parties;
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited, India 157.33 157.33
157.33 157,33
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T Other Assets As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Unsecured, Considered Good
7.1 7.1. Non-Current
Advances recoverable in cash or kind (refer note 7.3 & 7 4 below) 639.61 846.63
Capital Advance (refer note 7.10. below) 4,336.60 3,964.38
Goods and Service Tax Refund (refer note 7.6. below) 188.19 188.19
Karnalaka VAT - refund receivable 32.01 32.01
Service tax - refund receivable 10.35 10.35
Less: Provision towards service tax refund (10.35) (10.35)
5,196.42 5,031.21
7.2 Current
Advance to vendors (refer note 7.7. below) 2,507.81 2,576.84
Goods and Services tax input credit (Refer Note 7.5. below) 508.24 463.27
Prepaid expenses (refer note 7.8. below) 283.73 327.90
Other receivable (Refer Note 7.9. below) 136.46 155.34
Credit of Input VAT 114.29 79.28
Prepaid lease-current (security deposit paid) - 1.94
3,550.53 3,604.57

7.3 Includes mobilisation advances to a sub-contractor aggregating to Rs. Nil (2019: Rs 207.02 lakhs) in respect of which the sub-contractor
vendor has furnished bank guarantee to the extent of Rs Nil (2019: Rs 210.56 lakhs). This bank guarantee which was valid up to 30 June
2019 was encashed by the company during the year and was adjusted against the advance.

7.4 Includes advance payments made by the Company under the Development Management Agreement to agencies which are entitled to
certain percentage of income calculated in the manner specified therein. The advance payments made aggregated to Rs. 639,61 lakhs as
at 31 March 2020 (2019: Rs, 639.61 lakhs) and these will be adjusted in the year when the agency becomes entitled to share of income as
per the agreement. One of the operating creditors of one of the Agency company has initiated insolvency proceeding against that
Company. The management does not expect any significant effect of the same on its carrying balance and expects to adjust/recover the
same in full and accordingly no adjustment is considered necessary at this stage and these balances are subject to confirmation from that
party.

7.5 Goods and Service Tax Input credits carried in the books includes input tax credits aggregating to Rs. 52.02 lakhs (2019: 36.83 lakhs)
relating to advance payments to vendors and unpaid vendors bills beyond time period stipulated under GST Law, which will be claimed in
the returns in the subsequent periods when the company is eligible to claim such credits under the provisions of the GST Law.

7.6 Represents Goods and Service Tax paid on export of services which is expected to be claimed as refund. The Company is in the process
of filing refund application and expects to realise the same in full.

7.7 Includes recoverable advances paid to a sub-contractor amounting to Rs.2,246.49 lakhs (2019: Rs 2,246.49 lakhs). The Management is in
negotiation with that party for its recovery including interest accrued Rs.33.72 lakhs (2019: Rs.33.72 lakhs) as disclosed in Note 6.2 and is
confident that this advance will be ultimately fully recovered by the Company or through other companies of the Adventz Group. Hence in
the view of the Management no provision is considered necessary at this stage.

7.8 Includes Rs.228.71 lakhs (2019: Rs.283.22 lakhs) on account of brokerage & sales commission paid to an agency for services, on gross
sale consideration receivable from customers. As per the agreement, in the event of non-completion of sale transaction, such commission
is refundable by the agency. The commission paid is charged to the Profit & Loss Statement as and when revenue is recognised on a
propartionate basis.

7.9 Other receivables includes from related parties;

Adventz Trading DMCC 37.85 56.04

Other receivables also includes recoverable from Indian Fumniture Product Limited, a subsidiary of the holding company as per the
unconditional undertaking given by the said company in respect of sale of residential unit to one of the customer.

7.10 This includes advance amount paid Rs. 4,326.00 lakhs (2019: 3,953.78 lakhs) to a related party (Joint venturer) as per Property

Development Contract towards purchase of land on which "St. Regis Residencies" project is being developed by the company. The
balance amount of Rs.24,514 lakhs (AED 118 million considered at rate of Rs.20.60 / AED as at the reporling date) will be paid on
completion of the project. The total value of the land is taken at Rs.28,840 lakhs (AED 140 million considered at rate of Rs.20.6 /| AED as
at the reporting date) as per the valuation. The land value will be accounted in the books on registration of the project with RERA. During
the previous year this amount was disclosed as advance for land in the financial statements of the subsidiary.

AN
{EANGAL

Page 22 of 48



ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(Al Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless olherwise stated)

8

inventories As at As at

(valued at lower of cost or net realizable value) 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Completed units ( Refer Note 8.1. below) 2,395.34 4,392.84

Construction Work-In-Progress (includes cost of Land , Borrowing Cost and Project Consiruction 26,015.42 22,113.44

and Development Cost) (Refer Note 8.2.and 8.4 below)

Development Work-In-Progress relating to subsidiary (Refer Note 8.4 below) 30,375.18 2197113
58,785.94 48,477.42

Represents residential units in respect of which company has entered into agreement for sale with the respective customers, amounts
received against these agreements by the company has been reported as advance from customers in Note No. 19. Pending receipt of
balance consideration and execution of absolule sale deed effecting the transfer of legal litle/deemed handover of the property, the same
1s reported as Inventory.

Includes Rs.2,980.86 lakhs (2019: Rs.2,630.63 lakhs) being cost incurred towards project in Goa managed by M/s, Zuari Global Limited
which is pending formalising the terms and conditions. These balances are subject to confirmation from that party however, the
Management of the company expects these costs to be recovered in full.

The Management has reviewed the carrying value of its construction work-in-progress by assessing the net realisable value of the project
which is determined by forecasting sales rates, expected sale prices and estimated costs to complete (including escalations and cost
overrun). This review by the management did not result in any loss and thus no adjustments/ provisions to the carrying value of project
work-in-progress was required and external valuation was not considered necessary by the Management. In respect of early slage
projects, the underlying fair vaiue of land based on valuation report of chartered engineer was considered for the purpose of determining
the net realisable value and the carrying value of the construction wark-in-progress was found lo be less than the nel realisable value so
ascertained.

As per the consolidated financial statements of Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, UAE, no major construction work activities are carried out
during the year, the management has not considered appropriate to carry out a detailed valuation of development work in progress as of
31 March 2020 by an external professional valuer. The management has decided to carry out professional valuation of development work
in progress after obtaining revised approval from authorities and post appointment of contractor which will happen before the second
quarter of the current financial year 2020-21.

Refer Note No. 13 for the information on construction work in progress pledged as security by the company.

9 Trade receivables As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Unsecured, Considered Good
9.1 Current
Trade receivables - Related Parties (refer note 9.1. below) 404.02 499.04
Trade receivables - others* 56.14 2417
460.16 523.21
9.2 Receivables from the related parties;
Zuari Global Limited - 95.02
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 404.02 404.02
404.02 499.04

9.3

9.4

*Balances are subject to confirmation

The Management of the Company expects full realisation of these receivables, accordingly no allowance towards non recovery is
considered necessary by the Management.

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor
any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a direclor or a
member.

Refer Note No. 13 for the information on trade receivables pledged as security by the Company.

10

Cash and bank balances As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Cash and cash equivalent
Cash on hand 0.59 0.51
Balances held in banks in current account 148.02 205.89

Other balances held with bank
Deposits held with banks with more than 3 months but less that 12 months maturity period 538,16 500.00

686.77 706.40

Note: These balances are as per the statement of account a?

o
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11 Share capital As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
114
{0 Authorised
5,00,00,000 (2019:5,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 5,000.00 5,000.00
1.50.00,000 (2019:1,50,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 1,500.00 1,500.00
6,500.00 6,500.00
(i) Issued, subscribed & paid up
4,65,50,000 (2019:4,65,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 4,655.00 4,655.00
1,14,50,000 (2019:1,14,50,000) Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable 1.145.00 1,145.00

Preference Shares of Rs 10 each issued at premium of Rs. 90 each.
(Also, refer note 13.9. below )

5,800.00 5,800.00
11.2 Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
| Particulars ' As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
(shares of Rs. 10/- each) | Nos.  Amount(Rs) | Nos. Amount (Rs.)
At the beginning of the year 4,65,50,000 | 4,655.00 4,65,50,000 4,655.00
! Issued during the year — - - - | -
] Outstanding at the end of the year L B 4,65,50,000 4,655.00 4,65,50,000 | ~ 4,655.00
11.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company as at 31 March 2020 _
Name of the Shareholder As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
o | No's. % holding No's. % holding
Zuari Global Limited, the Holding Company | 4,65,50,000 ‘ 100% 4,65,50,000 100.00%
(Including 10,000 equily shares jointly held) | i

Note: As per the records maintained by the Company including the registers of members/ shareholders, the above share holding
represents both legal and beneficial ownership.

11.4 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:
Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares are entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of the equity shares held by
the Shareholder.

11.5 The company has not issued any securities converlible into equity/preference shares.

11.6 For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared :
No shares were allotted as fully paid up pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash.
No shares were allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares.
No shares were bought back.

11.7 There were no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment.

11.8 There were no calls unpaid or forfeited shares.

Refer Note 13.9. below for details of Cumulative Compulsarily redeemable preference shares issued by the Company.

This space has been intentionally left blank
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12  Other equity As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

12.1 Deemed equity on fair-value adjustment to Non-convertible cumulative redeemable preference Shares:

Equity component of redeemable Preference Shares 562.11 562.11
Income tax effect on the interest portion on Preference shares (146.15) (146.15)
415.96 415.96

Also refer note 13.9. below for detailed disclosure on preference shares.
12.2 Security Premium Account:

As at the beginning and end of the year 10,305.00 10,305.00
10,305.00 10,305.00

Securily premium represents premium on issue of cumulative compulsarily redeemable preference shares.

12.3 Balance in profit and Loss Statement

As at the beginning of the year. (1.745.23) (674.19)
Adjustment pursuant to adoption of Ind AS 115 - (514.53)
Income tax effect on above adjustment = 133.78
Adjustment pursuant to adoption of Ind AS 116 (109.18) -
Income tax effect on above adjustment 28.39 -
Add: Profit for the year before OCI (257.26) (694.28)
Add: Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans, not reclassified to profit or loss (0.06) 4.00
Net deficits in the profit and loss statement (2,083.34) (1,745.23)
12.4 Foreign currency translation reserve
As at the beginning of the year. {53.38) 1.86
Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of foreign subsidiary (106.73) (55.23)
{160.11) (53.38)
8,477.51 8,922.35

The Remeasurements gains in respect of employee benefits included above are as under;

As at the beginning of the year. 18.16 14.16

Remeasurements gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans (0.08) 5.40

Income tax effect on above 0.02 (1.40)

Balance carried forward 18.10 18.16
13 Borrowings As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

13.1 Long-term borrowings:

(i) Secured Loans
Term Loans from banks:

Yes bank limited (refer 13.3. below) 1,010.19 1,010.19

Yes Bank Ltd, IFSC Banking Unit (refer 13.4. below) 22,697.90 20,744.89

Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 16.2. helow) {1.010.19) -
22,697.90 21,755.08

Term Loans from others:

LIC housing finance limited (refer note 13.5. below) 16,419.69 15,425.84
39,117.49 37,180.93

(ii) Unsecured Loans

Inter-Corporate Deposits from related parties (refer note 13.6. below)

Zuari Global Limited (carried at amortised cost) 3,577.79 2,309.99

Akshay Poddar 1.801.28 761.40

Globalware Trading & Holdings Limited, UAE 469.68 376.55

Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 16.2. below) - (2,309.99)

5,848.76 1,137.95

Other Loans (refer note 13.8)

Adventz Finance Private Limited (carried at amortised cost) 1,733.00 1,572.69

Fairy Ryde Limited 1,127.91 -

Purshottam Kanji Co 1,236.00 1,129.65

Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 16.2. below) . -

4,096.91 2,702.34

Liability component of compound financial instrument
Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 1,058.66 928.51
(Also, refer note 13.9 below)

50,121.83 41,949.73
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13.2 Short -term borrowings:

{i) Secured Loans
Term Loans from banks
Vehicle Loan 72.52 117.22
72.52 117.22

{ii) Unsecured loans

Inter-Corporate Deposits from related parties (refer note 13.6. below)

Adventz Trading DMCC 64.79 .
Indian Furniture Products Limited 30.01 -
94.80 -
Inter-Corporate Deposits from (refer note 13.7. below)
Anchor Investment Private Limited (carried at Amortised cost) 5 309.65
Meenakshi Tea Co Limited (carried at Amortised cost) - 206.44
Sree Ram Plywood Manufacturing Co Pvt Ltd (carried at Amortised cost) 400.00 -
Texmaco Infrastructure & Holdings Limited (carried at Amortised cost) 600.31 542.02
Adventz Properties Ltd 8.24 188.28
Adventz General Trading LLC 8.24 -
Adventz Investments Limited 14.42 -
Innovation Management Solutions DMCC (refer note 13.8 below) - 278.71
1,031.22 1,525.09
1,198.54 1,642.30

13.3 Yes Bank Limited - Term Loan
Term Loan facility with a sanctioned limit of Rs 1,000 lakhs to refinance the promoter loans and Inter Corporate deposits with a
maximum tenor of 24 months and repayble on 19 July 2020. The said term loan facility is secured by charge on Development fee
receivables and Corporate Guarantee from Zuari Global Limited, the holding company executed in favour of the bank. The outstanding
balance as at 31 March 2020 is Rs. 1,010.19 lakhs (2019:Rs. 1,010.19 lakhs).

13.4 Yes Bank Ltd, IFSC Banking Unit
Finance facilly avialed by Zuari SIM Properties LLC, Dubai step down subsidiary com prising of term loan facility with the total sanctioned
limit of Rs.45,320.00 lakhs [AED 220 million at rate at the reporting date of Rs.20.60 per AED (USD 60 million)] (2019: Rs.41,420.50
lakhs [AED 220 million at rate at the reporting date of Rs.18.83 per AED (USD 60 million)]) and Treasury (swaps) upto Rs. Nil (2019:
Rs.207.10 lakhs [AED 11 million at rate at the reporting date of Rs.18.8275 per AED (USD 3 million)]) from Yes Bank Limited, IFSC
banking unit, GIFT city, Gujarat, India towards project development related expense.,
Term loans are secured as described herein below and bear interest of 6 months USD LIBOR plus 4.95% p.a.. The loan amount is
repayable after 72 months in one bullet payment from the total draw down
Securities offered:
- Charge on current assets both present and future owned by Zuari Infraworld S J M Properties L.L.C, UAE
- Charge on share of project cash flow including reimbursement and surplus.
- Mortgage of land in Goa owned by Zuari Global Ltd ("Ultimate parent company”) amounting to USD 620 lakhs,
- Pledge of liquid debt mutual funds unit owned by group companies amounting to USD 132 lakhs .
- Pledge of listed India shares held by New Eros TradeCom Limited amounting to USD 73 lakhs.
- Corporate guarantee provide by group Indian holding companies amounting to USD 400 lakhs.

In addition, there are various conditions and financial covenants attached to the bank facilities, which are in the normal course of
business.

On 31 March 2020, the banker has reduced the sanctioned loan amount to the amount drawn as above. Such reduction is being
negotiated by the Management.

13.5 LIC Housing Finance Limited

Term loan facility of Rs.20,000 lakhs for takeover of outstanding loan of Rs.13,000 lakhs from Federal bank limited and as a top up for
construction finance for Zuari Garden City Phase I, Il & Il project which is repayable over a period of 60 months with 36 months
moratorium for repayment of principal from the date of first disbursement with right to accelerate payment based on the review of cash
flows, This loan is secured by equitable mortgage on the Land and Building to be constructed under project name 'Zuari Garden City' in
area measuring to 50 Acres and 35 Guntas (excluding sold units), Project receivables and further secured by Corporate Guarantee
issued by Zuari Global Limited, the Holding Company. There are other conditions and financial covenants attached to this bank facility,
which are in ordinary course of business. The loan outstanding as at 31 March 2020 is Rs.16,419.59 lakhs (as at 31 March 2019 :
Rs.15,425.84 lakhs).

13.6 Unsecured Inter-Corporate Deposits from related parties
(i) Zuari Global Limited, Holding Company
Unsecured term loan from Zuari Global Limited, the holding company to meet the working capilal needs of the Company. The unpaid
loans which was due for payment during the year was rolled over and renewed for a further period up to 31 December 2021, without any
changes to the existing terms and condition, detailed as under.

|Particulars . Outstanding | Loans (:lurlngir Repaid Interest Qutstanding Due Date”
01 April 2019 | the Year accured and |31 March 2020 (inci.

7 ! : ! dug  int.accured)

|Loan 1-4 at 8% p.a. 733.00 | - = | 16.57 749.57 31-Dec-21

|Loan 5 at 8% p.a. 339.99 | - ! - 24.55 | 364.54 31-Dec-21

]Loa_n_22 at12% p.a. . 500.00 = | 186.82 22.73 | 335.91 31-Dec-21

[Loan 30 at 12% p.a. 412.00 | - - 44.62 | 456.62 31-Dec-21

Loan 31-32 at 12% p.a. | 325.00 =] 35.20 360.20  31-Dec-21

Loan 33-36 at 14% p.a. | - | 1,940.00 | 1001 68.07 1,310.97 | 31-Dec-21

Total I 2,309.99 1 1,940.00 | 3\;& 211.73 | 3,577.79
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(ii) Adventz Finance Private Limited

(iif)

Unsecured general purpose loan for working capital purposes for Rs.2,000 lakhs from Adventz Finance Private Limited, a group
company carries interest rate of 14% p.a. The loan along with interest which was due on 30 June 2020 was rolled over during the year
for a further period up to 31 December 2021 and accordingly is reclassified as non-current during the year. The loan outstanding
including interest accruals as at 31 March 2020 is Rs.1,733.00 lakhs (31 March 2019 : Rs.1,572.79 lakhs).

Other loans from related party taken by subsidiary company

This represents unsecured and 12% (0 to 12%) per annum interest bearing loans availed from related parties which are repayable within
a period of 2 years. The parties has also agreed to extend the financial support to the Company by not demanding payment of their
outstanding dues till such time as the company's equity is restored

13.7 Other Unsecured Inter-Corporate Deposits
Unsecured short-term inter corporate deposits from the following parties to meet working capital requirements of the Company. The
details of the same is given below.
Party Name | Amount Amount | Rate of Date / due date| Interest Accrued As at 31 March
borrowed | Repaid during|  Interest for Repayment | and not due 2020
during the the year (including accrued
vear | | | interest)
Anchor Investments I i
Meenakshi Tea f |
Company Limited ' - | 200.00 ! 14.50% 01-May-19 | - . -
Sanghi Steel Udyog { | |
Private Limited | 500.00 500.00 ; 14.50% 25-Jul-19 _ - -
Sree Ram Plywood i ‘ E
Manufacturing Co 1,050.00 | 650,00 | 15.00% 12-Aug-20 x 400.00
Private Limited | | i - |
Texmaco Infrastructure | 500.00 ‘ 500.00 12.00% Repayable on 100.31 600.31
& Holdings Limited i ’ ' - demand ' '
13.8 Other Unsecured Loans
This represents unsecured and 12% (0 to 12%) per annum interest bearing loans availed from related and non-related parties which are
repayable within a period of 2 years.The parties has also agreed to extend the financial support to the Company by not demanding
payment of their outstanding dues till such time as the company's equity is restored
13.9 Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

{iv)

|[Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference

Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 10 each, issued ati As at As at
premium Rs 90 per share 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
At the beginning of the year 1.14,50,000 1,14,50,000
Issued during the year - il -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,14,50,000 1,14,50,000

Shares holding more than 5% as at the beginning and end of the reporting year

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019

Shares of Rs 10 each, issued at premium Rs 90 per In No's In % InNo's In %
Mr. Saroj Kumar Poddar 85,00,000 | 74% 85,00,000 74%
Texmaco Infrastructure & Holdings Limited 29,50,000 26% | 29,50,000 26%
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,14,50,000 100% | 1,14,50,000 100%

Rights, preferences & restrictions attached to Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares:

The Company has only one class of non-convertible preference share having a par value of Rs 10 per share, carrying coupon rate of
8.5% per annum which are cumulative in nature and redeemable on 31 March 2025 (70,00,000 Shares), 31 March 2021 {15,00,000
Shares) and 31 March 2022 (29,50,000 Shares) respectively. During the year the Company has extended the redemption period of
70,00,000 preference shares which was due on 31 March 2020 to 31 March 2025. Each holder of preference shares is entitled to one
vote per share on resolutions placed before the company. These shares are redeemable at a price band of Rs 125 - Rs 150 per
preference share.

Pursuant to Schedule 1l of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act"), for companies whose financial statements are drawn up in compliance
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Indian Accounting Standard 32 - Disclosure of Financial
Instruments, Non-convertible redeemable preference shares which are settled in cash needs to be classified as 'financial liability' and not
‘equity’. Accordingly company has computed the fair value of these preference shares considering the effective interest rate (EIR) at 14%
and the portion computed as 'Borrowing' amounting to Rs.1,058.43 lakhs (2019 : R5.928.51 lakhs) has been classified under 'Long-term
Borrowings' and the portion computed as the deemed equity amounting to Rs. 415.96 lakhs (2019 : Rs.415.96 lakhs), net of taxes has
been reported under 'Other Equity'.

With respect to premium received on issue as well as the additional premium payable on redemption of preference shares no
adjustments/ disclosures has been carried out as contemplated in Ind-AS 32 and Ind-AS 109 read with Schedule Il of the Act, since
such classification of the ‘securities premium account' into 'borrowings' or 'other equity' will be inconsistent with the provisions of seclion
52 of the Act which stipulates the manner in which the securities premium account can be ulilised. Also the additional premium payable
on the redemption has not been recognised in the absence of the accumulated profits since recognition of such a liability will be violative
of section 55 of the Act.

Considering above, the Company has been legally advised that no further recognition or adjustments to the premium amounts are

required in view of the specific provisions of section 52 and 55 of t!]é___-c_*(i'-@é‘ rdingly, no adjustments as required under Ind-AS 32 and
Ind-AS 109 read with Schedule 11 of the Act are made in respect.of the pr‘érz‘llﬁﬁ_‘-payable on redemption
s f L\ |
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14 Lease Liabllities As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

141 Non-Current
Lease Liability 491.75 -
491.75 -

14.2 Current

Lease Liability 65.92 -
65.92 .
557.67 -

14.3 Other Notes on leases

The Company has adopted ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2019 and applied the standard to its leases,
retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard, recognised on the date of initial application (April 1, 2019).
Accordingly, the Company has not restated comparative information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard has
been recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as on April 1, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of Rs.256.70 lakhs, 'Net investment in
sublease’ of ROU asset of Rs.214.78 lakhs and a lease liability of Rs.580.66 lakhs, The cumulative effect of applying the standard was
debited to retained earnings, which amounted to Rs.80.79 lakhs (net of tax effect on the same Rs. 28.39 lakhs). The adoption of this
standard has resulted in an increase in cash inflows from operating activities and corresponding increase in cash outflows from financing
activities on account of lease payments. The details of leases for the office premises in this regard are as under.

(i) The movement in lease liabilities is as follows:

Particulars | For the year ending
S - | March 31 2020
Balance at the beginning* I 580.66
|Finance cost accrued during the year o T84T
Payment/payable towards lease liabilities : | 128.20
Balance as at the end 530.63

*excluding refundable rent deposit of Rs,27.03 |akhs carried at amortised cost.

(i.) The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2020 on an undiscounted basis are as follows :

|Particu|ars As at
March 31 2020
Less than one year 136.09
One year to five years l 614.89
more than five years s
Total - 750.98
(ii.) The movement in net investment in sublease is as follows: )
Particulars For the year ending
March 31 2020
Balance at the beginning 214.78
Interest income accrued during the year | 29.23
Lease receipts | 42.94
Balance as at the end ; 201.07

(iv.) The details of the contractual maturities of net investment in sublease of right-of-use asset as at 31 March 2020 on an
undiscounted basis are as follows :

Particulars Faor the year ending

- 31 March 2020
Less than one year | 47.24
One year to five years 241.14
more than five years _ E
Total 288.38

(v.} The Company has incurred Rs.13.24 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2020 towards expenses relating to short term leases and the
subsidiary has charged the lease expenses to development work-in-progress. The subsidiary has charged lease rent to development
work in progress.
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15  Trade payabies As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
15.1 Non-Current
Retention Meney - non current (carried at cost)* 40.07 39.01
40.07 39.01
15.2 Current
Retention Money - current (carried at cost)* refer note 15.4. below 292.22 234.59
Dues to related parties (carried at cost) refer note 15.3. below 133.87 79.25
Dues to micro & small enterprises (carried at cost)* refer note 15.5. below 2.08 4,56
Dues to others (carried at cost)” refer note 15.4. below 442847 855.96
- 4,856.63 1,174.36
15.3 Due to Related Parties comprises of due to;
Simon India Limited 36.93 36.93
Zuari Global Limited 93.96 39.83
Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited 1.62 1.52
Zuari Finserv Limited (Formerly known as Zuari Finserv Private Limited) 1.46 0.97
133.87 79.25
15.4 Includes retention money Rs.131.23 lakhs (2019 : Rs.131.23 lakhs) and other trade payables Rs.25.48 lakhs (2019: Rs.25.48 lakhs) to
one of the sub contractors in respect of which the Managemenlt is in negotiation with party for full and the final settlement. The said
balance is subject to confirmation from that party.
15.5 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(MSME Act) based on the informalion available with the Company are as under;
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act 1.68 4.28
Interest accrued and due to suppliers on above amount 0.06 0.10
Payment made to suppliers beyond appointed day during the year 6.93 4.31
Interest paid to suppliers during the year - -
Interest due and payable to suppliers towards payment already made during the year 0.34 0.18
* Balances are subject to confirmation
16 Other Financial Liabilities As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
16.1 Non-Current
Other financial liabilities (carried at amortised cost)
Rent Deposit - 12.93
Deferred Rental on security deposits (fair value adjustment) - Non-current 11.99
Payables for capital purchases - 228.76
- 253.68
16.2 Current
Other financial liabilities (carried at cost)
Current maturity of long term loans (refer note 13) 1,010.19 2,309.99
Interest accruals on loans (refer note 16.3) 1,192.71 1,056.99
Refundable deposit (refer note 16.4) 1,000.00 -
Other Deposits 14.96 14,96
Due to employees 149.28 97.14
Due to related parties (refer note 16.5 below) 173.26 26.74
Due to others 0.44 0.91
Others:
Deferred Rental on security deposits (fair value adjustment) - Current portion = 2.37
3,540.84 3,509.12
16.3 Includes interest payable to related parties of subsidiary company;
Akshay Poddar, Relative of a Director of Holding Company 127.78 25.42
Adventz properties Limited, UAE - 377
Globalware Trading & Holdings Limited, UAE 122.86 48.34
250.64 77.52
16.4 Refundable deposits received from M/s. Mathias Construction Private Limited for the proposed development of land/property owned by
Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited in respect of which Zuari Infraworld India Limited will acquire the right of lease of the land/praperty.
16.5 Due to related parties comprises of dues to;

Mr. Alok Banerjee

Mr. Anshul Amit Bansal

Mr. C G Ramegowda

Ms. Nishu Kakkar

Mr. Vinay Varma, Key Managerial Personnel of Subsidiary
Ms. Puja Poddar

26.47 8.57
10.50 2.42
- 0.68
0.35 -
20.58 -
115.36 15.06
173.25 26.74
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17 Provisions As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
17.1 Non-Current
Provision for gratuity obligation 31.97 38.69
Provision for compensated absences 12.35 15.14
44.33 53.72
17.2 Current
Provision for gratuity obligation 1.16 2.91
Provision for compensated absences 0.51 2.53
Staff end of service benefils 44.83 39.82
46.51 45.26
Also, refer note 37 for detailed disclosures on employee benefit plans.
18  Deferred tax (Asset) / liability (net) As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
18.1 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Unrealised gain on investment in mutual funds carried at fair value through profit or loss 265.07 314.58
Unrealised gain on Investment in preference shares carried at fair value through profit or loss 4472 51.03
Lease liabilities 8.71 -
Timing differences on benefit obligations through OCI 0.02 1.40
Financial liabililies and assels carried al amorlised cosl;
- Interest on preference shares 98.44 56.29
- Unwinding of security deposit received - 0.53
416.96 423.83
18.2 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 22.27 18.23
Provision for employee benefits obligations 11.98 15.38
MAT Credit Entitlement 50.17 50.17
Unrealised Profit on DMC fees 0.76 0.76
Financial liabilities and assets carried at amortised cost;
- Unwinding of security deposit received - 0.08
Others 61.37 119.37
146.56 203.99
Unused Tax Losses 267.88 449,00
Luess: Not considered for deferred tax purposes (267.88) (449.00)
270.40 219.83
Also, refer note 28 for other tax related disclosures.
18.3 The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set-off current tax assets and current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same lax authority.
18.4 As the management expects that the interest on Non converlible cumulative redeemable Preference shares will not be allowed as a
deduction, the income tax impact on the same has been recognised in Other Equity, since the initial recognition was in Other Equily.
19 Other liabilities As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Statutory dues 105.32 89.71
Advances from customers relating to;
- Completed units pending registration or transfer of possession 2,304.66 4,339.82
- Construction work-in-progress 5,194.86 3,415.08
- Maintenance charges 14.73 46,79
- Other customer advances (refer note 19.2. below) 1,035.18 626.43
Advances from related party 59.94 -
Others 31.52 28.81
8,746.21 8,546.64
19.1 Advance from related party comprises of;
Zuar Global Limited 59.94 -
19.2 Includes advances of Rs.446.23 lakhs (2019:Rs.279.52 lakhs) in respect of cancelled residential units in respect of which the Company

is in negotiation with parties for selling units of other projects against which these amounts are expected to be adjusted and Rs.318.00
lakhs (2019: Rs.313.50 lakhs) collected from the bUYBfS.;,mWéths' f"}f \\membership charges fees which will be adjusted against lhe
74 W S L

expenses incurred in this regard. &
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20 Revenue from operations For the year ended  For the year ended 31
31 March 2020 March 2019
Sale of residential units 2,275.08 1,346.57
Development management fees 220.02 232.51
Sales commission on sale of plots/residential units 38.10 177.37
Maintenance charges* 75.67 1.07
Other operating revenue 4.99 27.78
2,613.85 1,785.30
* Net of expense Rs. Nil (2019: Rs.47 .44 lakhs),
21 Other income For the year ended  For the year ended 31
31 March 2020 March 2019
Interest Income on ;
Deposits with Bank 43.42 5.72
Income tax refund - 18.76
Rent from sub-lease” (refer note 14) - 2.97
Gains from redemption of Mutual Fund 28.32 181.44
Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through Profit and loss 582.15 638.66
Adjustment on amortisation of security deposit 2.24 2.07
Unwinding of financial liability, security deposit from sub lease - 1.25
Exchange gain 415.42 55.17
Balances no longer required - 0.45
Other miscellaneous income 0.09 0.07
1,071.63 906.56
* Rent from sub-lease reported above are net of expenses Rs.Nil (2019:Rs.36.07 lakhs)
22 Project construction and development expenses For the year ended  For the year ended 31
31 March 2020 March 2019
Architect Fees 106.25 385.72
Depreciation on assets - Projects 30.84 4.82
Civil Work 4,148.79 433.28
Site Office Expenses 9.94 0.02
Project Staff Costs 12077 0.91
Managerial remuneration and expenses 453.16 120.08
Rent project office 166.57 151.46
Markeling Expenses 113.78 73.84
Property Tax 4.00 7.56
Infrastructure Expenses 4.60 2,199.44
Miscellaneous project Expenses 86.81 130.19
Foreign exchange translations differences on consolidation in respect of inventories 2,519.55 1,080.49
7,765.07 4,587.81
Add: Borrowing cost incurred during the year 4,405.56 6,985.56
Add: Employee benefit expenses transferred to construction work in progress 161.82 §22.20
Add: Other expenses transferred to construction work in progress 52.83 223.63
12,385.28 12,619.20
23  Changes in inventories For the year ended  For the year ended 31
31 March 2020 March 2019
Completed units of stock
Completed units at the beginning of the year pursuant to Ind AS 115 4,392.84 5.639.61
Completed units at the end of the year 2,395.34 4,392.84
Changes in completed units during the year 1,997.51 1,246.77
Construction Work-in- progress
Construction work-in-progress at the beginning of the year 44,084.57 29,203.17
Add: adjustment pursuant to adoption of Ind AS 115 - 2,307.95
Less: Recovery of cost incurred towards project manged by holding company (45.61) -
Adjusted Inventory at the beginning of the year 44,038.96 31,511.12
Add: Construction cost incurred during the year 12,385.28 12,619.20
Less: Recovery -
Less: Modificationfrework charges charged to profit and loss during the year (33.64) (45.75)
Construction work-in-progress at the end of the year 56,390.60 44,084.57
Changes in construction work in progress (12,351.64) (12,573.45)
Total (Increase) / Decrease (a+b) (10,354.13) (11,326.68)
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24  Employee benefit expenses For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2020 March 2019
Salaries and wages 390.81 903.03
Contribution to provident and other funds 24,71 23.80
Graluity 13.47 13.91
Compensated absences 3.84 8,58
Staff welfare expenses 11.53 3.72
444.36 953.04
Less: Employee benefit expenses transferred to construction work in progress (161.82) (822.20)
282.54 130.84
25 Finance costs For the year ended  For the year ended 31
31 March 2020 March 2019
Interest expense:
Interest on borrowings 5,016.36 7.936.64
Interest on MSME 0.11 0.28
Fair value adjustment pursuant to Ind AS:
Interest on lease liability (refer note 14) 48.68 B
Interest on security deposits - 0.16
Interest on non-converlible cumulative redeemable preference shares 130.15 113.75
5,195.30 8,050.83
Less: Borrowing cost transferred to construction work in progress (4,405.56) (6,985.56)
789.75 1,065.28
25.1 Capitalisation of the Borrowing cost is nol required lo be suspended when substantial technical and administrative work is carried oul or
when there is a temporary delay which is a necessary part of the process of getting an asset ready for sale. The Management is of the
view that the slow progress of various real estate projects are temporary in nature considering the nature of the industry and the
economic conditions prevailing across the industry. Accordingly, capitalisation (transfer to inventory) of interest cost is not suspended
during the year except for certain early stage projects in respect of which interest cost is suspended with effect from March 2020
considering various developments.
26  Depreciation and amortization expenses For the year ended  For the year ended 31
31 March 2020 March 2019
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment 82.04 51.45
Amortisation of intangible assets 0.37 0.43
Amortisation of right of use assets 42.78 -
125.19 51.88
Less: Depreciation on leasehold improvements attributable to sub-lease income o (4.68)
adjusted against sublease income.
Less: Depreciation & amorlisation transferred to construction work in progress (30.84) (4.82)
94.35 42.39
27  Other expenses For the year ended  For the year ended 31
31 March 2020 March 2019
Rent 13.24 100.12
Travel and conveyance 61.51 70.10
Legal and professional fees 79.30 81.42
Communication and internet charges 18.75 26.44
Office Expenses 72.88 119.50
Repairs and maintenance 23.64 2241
Auditors remuneration 16.02 10.80
Recruitment expenses, net 0.55 5.37
Advertising and publicity 79.42 89.97
Rates and taxes 14.50 12.34
Commission & Brokerage 66.86 214.49
Maintenance and Security 143.03 97.32
Insurance 45.98 34.94
Directors sitting fees 4.70 5.35
Miscellaneous expenses 5.63 10.36
Balances written-off, net 1.6 11.55
647.16 912.48
Less: Other expenses transferred to construction work in progress (52.83) (223.63)
594.33 688.85
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27.1 Remuneration to Auditors' reported above includes
Statutory Audit Fees (relating to previous year Rs.0.87 lakhs (2019:Nil))
Tax Audit Fees (relating to previous year Rs.0.23 lakhs (2019:Nil))
Certification fees
Fees of Subsidiary Company Auditors

917 5.00
1.20 0.75
1.30 0.50
4.35 4.55
16.02 10.80

28 Income Tax

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
March 31 2019

Income tax expense 60.28 4.00
Income tax of earlier year 9.63 2.60
Deferred tax charge/(credit) 78.95 139.41
148.86 146.00
28.1 Income tax expense for the year reconciled to the accounting profit For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 March 31 2019
Profit before tax 243.22 175.52
Income tax expense calculated at 26% (2019 ; 26%) 63.24 45.64
Adjustments for:
Gain on fair value adjustments to preference shares - 40.08
Expenses not considered for tax purposes. (1.03) -
Gain on fair value adjustments to Mutual funds taxable at differential rate (192.46) 50.47
Interest portion fair value adjustment to preference shares issued 76.00 -
Other adjustments 67.43 1.27
Tax effect on unused tax losses not recognised 65.78 10.32
Tax expenses of earlier year debited to profit and loss 9.63 2.60
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) of earlier year debited to profit and loss 60.28 (4.37)
148.86 146.00
28.2 The tax effects of timing differences that resulted in changes in deferred tax are For the year ended For the year ended
as follows: 31 March 2020 March 31 2019
Fair valuation of investment in mutual funds (49.52) 112.44
Unwinding of security deposit paid 0.08 0.04
Interest accrued on preference shares issued (Adjustment pursuant to Ind-AS) 42.16 (29.58)
Difference between accounting base and tax base of tangible & Intangible assets (4.04) (0.24)
Unwinding of security deposit received (0.53) 0.28
Temporary differences on benefit obligations 2.02 (3.29)
Fair valuation of investment in Preference shares (6.31) 51.03
Gain on sale of flats recognised as per Ind AS 115 58.00 17.10
Fair valuation of leases 37.10 -
MAT Credit entittement - (8.37)
78.95 139.40

28.3 Deferred lax assets arising from the carry forward of unused tax losses not are recognised in these financial statements as there is no
convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future against which the unused tax losses can be utilised by the

Company, which is considered appropriate by the Management.
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29

291

Disclosure of Interest in subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates:

Disclosure of Interest in the following subsidiaries:

Name Country Ownership Interest of ZIIL (%) Method used to
of As at As at account for
Incorporation 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 investments
Zuari Infra Middle Easl Ltd UAE 100% 100% Line by line

consolidation

29.2 Disclosure of Interest in the following associates:

29.3

(a)

{b)

Name Country Ownership Interest of ZIIL (%) Method used to
of As at As at account for
_ Incorporation 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 investments
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited India 25% 25% Equity Accounting
Darshan Nirman Private Limited India 25% 25% Equity Accounting
Pranati Niketan Private Limited India 25% 25% Equity Accounting

Also, refer Note 2(c) for detailed disclosure and accounting treatment.
Note: As at 31 March 2020 Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited holds 50% (2019: 50%) of Darshan Nirman Private Limited and 50%

(2019: 50%) of Pranati Niketan Private Limited.

Information regarding Associates:
i. Carrying amount of investment in Associates As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Darshan Nirmaan Privale Limited (0.04) (0.04)
Pranati Nirmaan Private Limited 0.02 0.02
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 2,285.74 2,287.49
ii. Share of Profit/(loss) of Associates As at As at

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Darshan Nirmaan Private Limited
Pranati Nirmaan Private Limited
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited

(1.75)

(20.26)

Note: Also refer note 4 of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020,
29.4 Summarised financial information of the joint venlures, based on its Ind AS financial statements and reconciliation with the carrying

amount of the investment in consolidated financial statements are set out below:

DARSHAN NIRMAAN PRIVATE LIMITED

i. Summarised Balance Sheet As at As at

31 March 203_0_ 31 March 2019
Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents 277.33 277.42
Non-current financial liabilities (279.66) (279.53)
Equity (2.33) {2.11)
Proportion of the Group's ownership 25% 25%
Group's Share in Net Assets (0.58) {0.40)
Value of Goodwill on consolidation 0.36 0.36
Carrying amount of the investment (0.22) (0.04)
iil. Summarised Profit and Loss Statement For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Other Expenses (0.22) (0.51)
Profit/{loss) before tax {0.22) {0.51)
Income tax (expense)/credit - -
Profit/(loss) for the year (0.22) (0.51)
Other Comprehensive Income # -
Total comprehensive income (0.22) (0.51)
Proportion of the Group's share 25% 25%
Group’s share of profit/(loss) for the year (0.05) (0.13)
PRANATI NIRMAAN PRIVATE LIMITED
i. Summarised Balance Sheet As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents 217.87 217.95
Non-current financial liabilities (219.61) (219.48)
Equity (1.74) (1.53)
Proportion of the Group's ownership 25% 25%
Group's Share in Net Assels (0.44) (0.34)
Value of Goodwill an consolidation 0.36 0.36
Carrying amount of the investment (0.07) p 0.02
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{c}

il. Bummarised Profit and Loss Statement

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Oiher Txpenses {0.22) 17
Profit/{loss) before tax {0.22) 017
income tax {expense)credit - -
Profit/{loss) for the year {0.22) 017
Other Comprehensive income - -
Totai comprehensive Incomes (0.22} 0.17
Praporlion of the Group's share 25% 25%
Group's share of profiti{loss) for the year {0.05) 0.04
BRAJBHUMI NIRMAAN PRIVATE LIMITED
i. Summarised Balance Sheet As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents 18,085.28 16,814.74
MNon-current assets 42.13 47.58
Current tiabilities including financial liabilities (12,007.63) {11,050.28)
Non current financial liabilities (2,844 54) {2,529.91)
Less: Deemed Equily {421.54) (421.54)
Equity 2,853.70 2,860,60
Proportien of the Group's ownership 25% 25%
Group's Share in Nel Assats 713.42 71515
Value of Goodwill on consolidation 1.590.01 1,590.01
Adjustments for unrealised profits {17.66} {17.66)
Carrying amount of the investment 2,285.77 2,287.49
Surmmarised Profit and Loss Statement For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue 9.00 115.98
Cther Income 0.31 0.21
9.31 116.19
Purchase of Stock in trade 1,287.42 1,675.10
Change in invenlories of finished goods, work in progress and stock in trade) {1,284.41) {1.512.48)
Employee Benefits Expense 0.30 (145
Finance Cost 0.74 20.47
Depreciation and amortization expense 1.88 214
Other Expenses 10.76 10.98
16.67 196.68
Profit{loss) before tax {7.36) (80.49)
inceme tax (expense)credit (0.35} 0.57
Profit for the year {7.01) {81.06)
Other Comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income {7.01}) {81.06)
Proportian of the Group's share 25% 25%
Group’s share of profit/{loss) for the year {1.75) {20.26)

Note: The above furnished Informatien are extracted from the audited financia! statements of that associate entities for the year endad 31

March 2020,
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30 Commitments and Contingencies

30.1 Contingent Liabilities (not provided for)

Particulars - _ | 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Dividend on Non Convertible redeemable cumulative preference shares not yet declared 439.31 411.94
income Tax demand for FY 2016-17 against which company has filed rectification, pending| 59,86 =
lrectiﬁcalion no provision is considered necessary at this stage.

Tax demand for defaults under Section 201 of Income Tax Act, 1961 as per TRACES portal 5.94 | 6.13

of Income tax website, against which company is in the process of filing rectification.

'Customer claims not acknowledged by the Parent Company . 37.98 | 32.68

As per the audited consolidated Financial statements of Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited, an associate entity, disputed
‘tax demands to the extent not provided for is as under: e

/(a.) Income Tax demand pertaining to AY.2015-16 (FY 2014-15) pending before| 427.66 | 427 .66
Commissioner Income Tax (Appeals) Kolkata. Against this demand, Parent Company has|

deposited Rs.27.46 lakhs (2019: Rs.25.00 lakhs ) |

(b.) Value added Tax demands for period 2015-16 and 2014-15 pending before Additional - 9.24
[Commissioner, Mathura

As per the audited Standalone financial statements of Darshan Nirmaan Private Limited, an associate entity for the year ended 31
MArch 2020 some cases have been filed in the Court of Tehsildar, Mathura; in respect of some of the land purchased by the
Company. The Company's management believes that the impact of these Cases will be insignificant and will not affect ownership of
that Company's Land holdership.

30.2 Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Project construction and development, net of advances aggregates to,

Zuarl Infraworld India Limited, Parent Company 6,745.10 3,489.92
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, Subsidiary Company 25,920.45 23,795.51
(including amounts reported in Note 7.10 of the consolidated financial statement)

32,665.55 27,285.43
30.3 Corporate Guarantees and pledge of assets:

The Company has executed Corporate Guarantees jointly with the Zuari Global Limited, the holding company in favour of Yes Bank
Limited for extending financing facility to Zuari SJM Properties LLC, Dubai, a Step-down subsidiary of the Company. The amount of
finance facility extended is USD 630 lakhs (In Indian Rupees 47,061 lakhs, considering 1 USD = Rs 74.70 as at the reporling date
(2019: USD 630 lakhs (In Indian Rupees 44,056 lakhs, considering 1 USD = Rs 69.93).

(a) The Company's share of the value of Corporate Guarantee is USD 200 lakhs (using | 14,940.00 | 13,986.00
\closing exchange rate of Rs.74.7 per USD as at reporting date (2019: USD 200 lakhs using |
Iclosing exchange rate of Rs.69 per USD)). [

[(b) The company has also provided security by way of pledge of mutual funds held in the| 9,461.17 | 8,826.81 |
name of the Company (fair value as at reporting date) for the loan referred to in (a) above. |

31 Earnings Per Share ("EPS")

Basic Earnings Per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent
by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year, There are no dilutive potential equity shares,
accordingly the Diluted EPS are also calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during as at the end year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the computation of basic and diluted EPS :
(No. of shares in absolute numbers)

|Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
'Profit before OCI attributable to equity holders of the parent company | (257.26) (694.28)
[Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing EPS (Basic & Diluted) { 4,65,50,000 | 4,65,50,000
'Eaming/(Loss) Per Share (Basic and Diluted) (Rs.) | (0.55) (1.49)
Face value per share (Rs.) ; | 10.00 10.00
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32 Impact of Covid-19
As per the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020

The outbreak of Global pandemic Covid-19 has resulted in the Government of India undertaking drastic measures for containment
of the disease including enforcing compulsory full lockdown. In view of these measures, the operations at the company was fully
shutdown from March, 23 2020 and the company was able to resume its operations during May 2020 with limited manpower in
phased manner with necessary approvals from the appropriate authority. The incremental costs incurred by the company to adhere
to the standard operating procedures notified by the Government / Authorities was not significant.

The current lockdown owing to the coronavirus crisis has hugely impacted the world economy as well as a majority of sectors across
the globe, including real estate. The management has considered the possible effects that may result from the Covid-19 pandemic
on the carrying value of various assets including inventory, investments and loans to the subsidiaries after taking into account
various internal and external information upto the date of approval of these financial statements and have concluded that they are
recoverable based on the expected future performance of the Company and it's subsidiaries. The Company has also assessed
various scenarios and assumptions and based on the current eslimales, the management of the Company expects that the carrying
amount of these assets, as reflected in the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, are fully recoverable and that no provision/
adjustment is required.

Further, considering the effect of ongoing pandemic siluation the regulatory authorities have extended the timelines for completion
of ongoing projects under RERA regulations and the Management of the Company is confident of meeting the extended timelines
for completion.

Considering the present financial position of the Company and its ability 10 raise funds, the Management of the Company doesnot
forsee any adverse impact on its ability to continue as going concern and meeting its liability as and when they fall due.

The impacl assessment of Covid-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainities associated with its nature as well as its duration
and the Management will continue to monitor any events/changes to future economic conditions. Accordingly, the impact may be
different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

As per the Consolidated financial statements of the Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, a subsidiary company for the year
ended 31 March 2020

The breakdown of Global pandemic novel corona virus (COVID-19) has caused significant disruption to the business and economic
activity across globe. Though there were no significant changes during the year, due to COVID-19 pandemic at the year end, the
external circumstances have changed drastically. As the situation is fluid and rapidly evolving, it is not practicable to provide a
quantitative estimate of the potential impact of this outbreak on the group at this stage.
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33  Related Party Disclosures
33.1 Details of related party and their relationship with the Company;

Sl.  Name of the related party

=
o

0o~ ;A m:l\:_—-

| Zuari Global Limited
[ Zuari Infra Middie East Limited, UAE
Zuar{ Infrawor{d SJM Properties LLC, UAE
Bur} Dlstrict Development Limited, Cayman Islands
| Burj District One Limited, UAE
| Zuari Management Services Limited
Slmon india Limited
' Forte Furniture Products India Privalte Limited
| Zuari Finserv Limited (formerly known as Zuari Finserv Private Limited)
| 10 | Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited
11 Darshan Nirman Private Limited
12 | Pranati Niketan Private Limited
13 | | Adventz Trading DMCC
14 | Globalware Trading & Holdings Ltd, U.A.E
1_5_ Indian Furniture Products Limited. UAE
16 | Green Tree Property Management Co. LLC. U.A. E
17 | Narayanan Suresh Krishnan, Director (resigned w.e.f. March 02, 2020)

Nature of relationship with the Company

| Holding Company
| Subsidiary
| Step down Subsidiary
| Joint Venture (JV) of Step down subsidiary
| Subsidiary of the JV of Step down subsidiary
| Fellow Subsidiaries
| Fellow Subsidiaries
| Fellow Subsidiaries
| Fellow Subsidiaries
| Assaciates
| Associates
Associates
| Entities having common management control with subsidairy
Enlttles having common management control with subsidairy
Enlttles having common management control with subsidairy
| | Joint Venture of Step down subsidiary
Key Management Personnel

~ 18 | R S Raghavan, Director {appointed w.e.f. March 02, 2020)
19| L M Chandrashekaran (appointed w.e.f. March 02, 2020}
20 | Sunil Sethy, Independent Director (resigned w.e.f. March 19, 2020)

, 21  Krishan K Gupla Independent Director (remgned w.e.f. March 19, 2020)

| 29 | Alok Banerjee, CEO & Director (additionally appointed as Director w.e.f.

March 02, 2020)
23 | Anshul Amit Bansal, Chief Financial officer
| 24 | C G Ramegowda Company secrelary (resngnad w.e.f. Sept 05, 2020)
| 25 lehu Kakkar, Company secretary (appointed w.e.f. February 20, 2020)
| 26 | Vinay Varma
27 | Saroj Kumar Poddar
28  Akshay Poddar

29  Puja Poddar

33.2 Details of transactions with related parties:

| SI. |Particulars
No ) . B
1 |Payment made on our behalf by the Company:
|Zuari Global Limited
2 |Sannca Charges / Managamant Fees Paid
|Zuari Finserv Limited (Formerly known as Zuari Finserv Private Limited)
3 |Purchase of furnitures (PPE)
|Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
4 |Recovery of cost incurred towards project handled by
\Zuari Global Limited
5 Service Charges / Management Fees Income
Zuari Global Limited - Development Management Cormmission
{Zuari Global Limited - Sales Commission

| Key Management Personnel
| Key Management Personnel
| Key Management Personnel

| Key Management Personnel
Kay Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
| Key Management Personnel
| Key Management Personnel of subsidiary
. Director of holding company
Person having significant influence & relative of
\director of holding company.

" Person having significant influence in subsidiary &
|relative of director of holding company.

Year ended | Year ended 31
31 March 2020 ; March 2019
. I 577
|
0.45 | 0.90
E ‘ 1.29
| -
4561 ‘ L
184.87 93.52
26.27 45.99
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33.3 Compensation paid to Key management personnel compensation:

334

Sl. |Particulars
No

6 ilnter—Corporate Deposits Taken - Liability
|Zuari Global Limited

|- Accepted
- Repayment

Globalware Trading & Holdings Ltd

- Accepted

|- Repayment
|Akshay Poddar
[ Accepted

- Repayment

{Indian Furniture Products Limited

- Accepted
|- Repayment

| Adventz Trading DMCC

- Accepted
.- Repayment

7 Interest on ICD (Expenses)
Zuari Global Limited
8 |Interest on loans taken from entities having common management control
Adventz properties Limited
|Globalware Trading & Holdings Ltd
9 'Guarantee Commission
| |Zuari Global Limited ; _ - _
10 |Interest on loan taken from person having significant influence

|Akshay Poddar

Sl. |Particulars

;NO |

1 iShort-tarm employee benefits
|Alok Banerjee, CEO & Director (additionally appointed as Director w.e.f. 02 Mar 2020)
|Anshul Amit Bansal, Chief Financial officer

C G Ramegowda, Company secretary (resigned w.e.f 05 September 2020)

|Nishu Kakkar Company secretary (appointed w.e.f. 20 February 2020)

Vinay Verma, Key Management Personnel of subsidiary

Puja Poddar, Person having significant influence in subsidiary & relative of director of]| 92.85
|holding company.

2 IRetirament benefits (Provident fund and Gratuity)
|Alok Banerjee, CEO & Director (additionally appointed as Director w.e.f. 02 Mar 2020) | 22.27
|Anshul Amit Bansal, Chief Financial officer
C G Ramegowda, Company secretary (resigned w.e.f 05 September 2020)
|Nishu Kakkar Company secretary (appointed w.e.f. 20 February 2020)

3 Sitting fees

\Directors sitting fees to Non-executive Directors

Total compensation

Year-end balances

Si. Particulars

INo

1 |Trade payable

Year ended |

31 March 2020 :

[
1,940.00 |
883.93 |

737.48

| 968.20

33.02
3.01

105.02
40.22 |

293.50

65.69

62.51

93.88

[ Year ended
| 31 March 2020
|

83.98

28.08

5.42

| 0.47
| 34.82

5.26
0.26
0.02

4.70

278.14

As at
31 March 2020

Year ended 31
March 2019

4,358.00
4,256.01

85.67
53.50

685,32
402.91

80.96
80.96

201.65

3.64
46.71

42.86

24.56

Year ended 31
March 2019

97.37
23.92
13.23

17.71

22.16
4.46
1,82

5.35
286.02

Asat
31 March 2019

'Simon India Limited 36.93 36.93
Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited 93.96 1.52
Zuari Finserv Limited (Formerly known as Zuari Finserv Private Limited) 1.52 0.97
\Zuari Global Limited 1.46 39.83
2 |Other payable
|Alok Banerjee, CEO& Director (additionally appointed as Director w.e.f. 02 Mar 2020) 26.47 8.57
Anshul Amit Bansal, CFO 10.50 2.42
C G Ramegowda, Company secretary (resigned w.e.f 05 September 2020) | 0.68
\Nishu Kakkar Company secretary (appointed w.e.f. 20 February 2020) 0.35 -
3 |Advances pald
|Zuari Global Limited 59.94 -
4 |Trade receivable
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 404,02 404.02
Zuari Global Limited | - 95.02
5 |[Expenses Recoverable
|Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 157.33 157.33
6 |Loans from related parties:
Zuari Global Limited 3,577.79 2,309.99
Adventz Trading DMCC 64.79 -
|Giobalware Trading & Holdings Ltd 469.68 376,55
{Indian Furniture Products Limited, U.A.E 30.01 -
|Akshay Poddar 1,801.28 761.40
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335

Sl. |Particulars
No

7 Interest payable on Loans from reiated parties:

|Globalware Trading & Holdings Ltd

As at
31 March 2020

Terms and conditions

122.86
|Akshay Poddar 127.78
8 |Advance for Land
|Green Tree Property Management Co. LLC. U.A.E. - 4,326.00
9 !Othar receivable
\Adventz Trading DMCC 37.85
10 |Remuneration payable / dues to employees
Vinay Varma 20.58
|Puja Poddar 115.36
11 |Advance to employees
Puja Poddar 39.41
12 |Other year-end balances
|(a) Included in Project Work-in-Progress
Zuari Global Limited 2,980.86

(b) Service Income accrued and not billed
Zuari Global Limited

As at
31 March 2019

46,71
2542

396438

56.04

15.06

36.01

2,630.63

57.05

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and in the normal

course of business.
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34  Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprise of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, security deposits and
employee dues. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to provide guarantees
to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables and cash and short-
term deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company's senior management is supported by the finance team that advises on financial risks
and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. Further, the company is primarily operating in the real
estate sector which is subject to The Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 (RERA).

34.1 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and
commadity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and investments in mutual
funds.

(i.) Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced porifolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. Term
Loan facility from LIC Housing Finance Limited and Yes Bank Limited is subject to fioating rate of inlerest based on MCLR, while
the barrowings from the related entities carry interest at a fixed rates. In case of subsidiary Company except for vehicle loan and
loan from related parties other than carrying floating rate of interest.

|Interest sens'itivity analysis Outstanding Increase/ Effect on profit
: Loan facility decrease in before tax
| subject to basis points

| ~ _— e , floatina rates
|For the year ended 31 March 2020

 Increase in base points | 17,429.78 | +50 | 87.15
' Decrease in base points ' 17.429.78 50 (87.15),
|For the year ended 31 March 2019 | . |
! Increase in base points 16,436.03 | +50 | 82.18 |
Decrease in base points 16,436.03 S50 (82.18)
(ii.) Foreign currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's
operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Parent Company's net investments
in foreign subsidiaries.

(iii.) Equity price risk
The Company's non-listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of
the investment securities, The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves all Investment decisions.

34.2 Credit risk
Credil risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade recewables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments.

Trade receivables

(i.) Sale of units (Villas/ Villaments & Appartments):
Customer credit risk is managed by "CRM team" subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relaling to
customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer dues with respect to Customers demands are regularly monitored for
proactive actions.

(il.) Development Management Fees:
Apart from real estate activities, the Company also provides Project Development services. The Trade Receivables includes dues
from these activities aggregated to Rs.404.02 lakhs (2019: Rs 499,04 lakhs)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for these entities. The Company does not hold
collaterals as security, The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as Nil, as ils customers
are related and are part of the same group and with respect of sale of flats & villas the sale deed is executed only after the
realisation.
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34.3 Liquidity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds regularly and is directly monitored by CFO of the company

The Company's objective is to maintain balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans and
Debt Preference Shares.

The management expects lo renew/rollover all of the short term debts/borrowings that are falling due in next 12 months. Further
the Company is confident of increased operational cash inflows from bookings of flats/villas/apartments and is also ensured of
continued support from its Holding/ Associates Companies and the Promoters.

The management aiso obtained consent from the preference shareholders for extension of the redemption of preference shares
which are due for redemption on 31 March 2020. These preference shares are now due for redemption on 31 March 2025,

34.4 Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all olher equity

reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure
their ability to continue as going concern and maximise the shareholder value,

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments as at 31 March 2020:

Particulars Ondemand | <3month 3to12 monthsi 1to3years = >3years Total
|
‘Borrowings | 600.31 ! 25,179.08 1,548.88 \ 20,680.08 | 5,002.01 53,010.36
(Incl. Debt portion of - :
| Preference Shares)

|
|Lease liabilities ‘ = ‘ 24.21 72.64 321.59 ] 139.22 | 557.67
Trade payables 34.30 | 440,05 4,270,86 | 53,93 | . 97.56 4,896.70
| Other financial liabilities | 8.93 | 16.13 297 47 43741 177070  2,530.64
Total | 643.54 | 25,659.48 6,189.86 21,493.01 7,009.49 60,995.37

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments as at 31 March 2019:

|Particulars | Ondemand | <3month 3to12months 1to3 yea;rs ' > 3 years Total
isormwings l
\(Incl. Debt portion of
Preference Shares)

52693  2,826.08 2,140.34 | 6,169.05 10,427.84 22,090.24

| .
Trade payables | 0.65 | 849.50 244.22 | 99.64 - | 1,194.01
Other financial liabilities | 163.71 | 0.56 | 0.33 255.16 419.76
Total _ 527.57 |  3,839.29 2,385.13 | 6,269.02 | 10,683.00 23,704.02

As per the consolidated financial statements of Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, a subsidiary Company

The primary objective of the subsidairy company capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order
to support its business and maximise shareholders value. The subsidiary company manages its capital structure and make
adjustments to it in light of changes in the business conditions. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the year ended 31 March 2020. Capital comprises share capital in cash and kind (which is not measured) and accumulated
losses and is measured at deficiency of asset of AED 70.66 lakhs (equivalent to Rs.1,455.59 lakhs) as at 31 March 2020
{Previous Year deficiency of asset of AED 55.06 lakhs (equivalent to Rs."_1 ,134.23 lakhs).
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35 Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the financial instruments
Particulars Carrying value
| As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss

Quoted mutual funds 9,461.17 8,827.06
Preference Shares held in Associate Company 672.00 696.25
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Interest accrued and due 33.72| 33.72
lInterest accrued and not due 543 5.09
|Expenses Recoverable - Related parties 157.33 157.33
Loans and advances 288.40) -
|Unbilled Revenue - Service contracts - 57.051
Unbilled Revenue - Others - 116.88
|Net investment (Sub-lease) 201.07 -
Security deposils 31.00 28.76
Trade Receivables 460.16 523.21
|Cash and cash equivalents | 686.77 706.40|
Advance to employees ! 55.34| 55.49
Financial assets carried at cost !

|Investment in Associate 2,285.73 2,287.48
Security deposits 76.00 57.19
[Total | 14,414.12! 13,551.90
|Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
'LIC Housing Finance Limited | 16,419.59 15,425.84
Yes Bank Limited - 1,010.19
'Yes Bank Ltd, IFSC Banking Unit | 22,697.90| 20,744.89/
Vehicle Loan 72.52 117.22!
Preference shares (debt portion) 1,058.66 928.51
Security deposit towards sub lease i - 12.93
Loan from related parties : 5,943.56 1,137.95!
 Other loans 5,128.13 4,227.43
Refundable deposit 1,000.00/ -
Deferred Rental on security deposits | -| 14.36
Current maturity of long term loans 1,010.19 2,309:99
'Lease liability 557.67 :
Other payable to related parties 173.25 26.74|
Other deposits 14.96 14.96
Dues to employees 149.28 97.14
Payables for capital purchases A 228.76
Interest accruals on loans 1,192.71 | 1,056.99/
Trade payables ! 4.897.14 1,214,290
Total ] _ 60,315.57 48,568.20

Other Notes:

(i.) The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, retention money, inter
corporate deposits, loan to related party and trade payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

(ii.) The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(a.) The fair values of the unquoted Preference shares have been estimated using a DCF model and considering the future cash
outflow in this regard, based on a independent valuation . The valuation reguires management to make certain assumptions about
the model inputs, including forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates
within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management's estimate of fair value for these unquoted Preference
shares.

(b.) The fair values of the Company's interest-bearing borrowings and loans approximates to their carrying amounts i.e., costas at
the end of the reporting year. The own non-performance risk ?,m—\” ] awas assessed to be insignificant.

A\

Page 43 of 48



ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

36 Fair Hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets:

Assets: Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets observable inputs | unobservable inputs
. | B (Level 1) | (Level 2) 1 (Level 3)
Investments in Mutual funds 9,461.17 | 9,461.17 - -
(8,827.06)| (8,827.06) 3 =
Preference shares heid in Associate 672.00 | - - 672.00
- (696.25)| - | = | (696.25)|

(i.) Amounts in the parenthesis represent previous year.
(ii.) There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.
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37

Gratuity (Employment benefit plan)

[Particulars | As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Current | Non-current Current Non-current
Value of Plan - Gratuity (Un-Funded) 1.16 31.97 | 291 | 38.59
Gratuity:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuily plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gels gratuity on
departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service,

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status
and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

\Employee Attrition Rate (Past Service)

PS: 0 to 18 years . 3%
PS: 18 to 30 years : 2%
PS: 30 to 42 years : 1%

(i.) Netemployee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost) for the year ended:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
Current Service Cost 1047 11.31
|Net Interest Cost | 3.00 | 2.60
Expense recognised in profit and loss statement | 13.47 13.91
{ii.) Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation:
Particulars i As at As at
— ) - - 1 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
|(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumplions i 0.28 | -
|{Gain)lloss from change in financial assumptions | (4.86)| (0.05)
Experience (gains) / losses | 4.65 (5.35)
Total actuarial (gain)/loss ) 0.08 | (5.40)
(iii.. Other comprehensive income _
\Particulars As at ' As at
! B 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019 |
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for the period | 0.08 | (5.40)
{Asset limit effect o | =y =
Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in (OCI) | 0.08 (5.40)
(iv., Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows:
|Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 { 31 March 2019
|Opening defined obligation 41.50 36.61
|Current service cost 10.47 | 11.31
lInterest cost 3.00 2.60
Contribution paid (21.91)) (3.63)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations 0.08 | (6.40)
Defined benefit obligation 33.14 41.50
(v.) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company's plans are shown below:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
'Mortality IALM (2012-14) Ult. IALM (2006-08) Ult.
Interest / Discount Rate 6.77% 7.50%
Rate of increase in compensation First two years - 8% 9%
— = | 3rd year onwards - 6.5%
\Expected average remaining service | 15.66 8.7
!_Bene_ﬁt_p_f normal retirement considered as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Rs. 20 Lakhs ' Rs. 20 Lakhs

PS: 0 to 40 years: 8%
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(vi., A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at the reporting date is as shown below:

‘Gratuity Plan As at 31 March 2020 . As at 31 March 2020

Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases

Sensitivity Level +1% increase | -1% decrease +1% Increase ! -1% decrease
impact on defined benefit obligation 30.11 | 36.75 36.02 30.67
\Gratuity Plan As at 31 March 2019 [ As at 31 March 2019

/Assumptions Discount rate ! Future salary increases
!Sans_lﬂv_i_t_y_l_.e_\_rgl_ B +1% increase _{ -1% decrease +1% increase | -1% decrease
|Impact on defined benefit obligation 39.20 | 44.11 43.95 39.30

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a
result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

(vii. The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particulars | As at As at

_ | 31 March 2020 ! 31 March 2019
‘Within the next 12 months . 1.16 | 2.91
|Between 2 and 5 years | 17.78 | 28.91
\Between 5 and 10 years | 4.40 | 9.19
Total expected payments 1 23.35 41.01

Note: The above disclosures are based on the valuation report by an independent actuary and relied upon by the auditors
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
{All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

39

Segment Information
Information regarding Operating Segment Reporting as per Ind AS-108
The Chief Financial Officer monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about

resource allocation and performance assessment. Accordingly, the Company has identified only one segment i.e., real estate sector
as its reportable segment for the purpose of Ind AS 108.

Real Estate segment (RE) is into development, sale, management and operation of all or any part of townships, housing projects,
including leasing of self owned commercial premises and also rendering development management services and thus entire
business has been considered as a single operating component by the Management.

39.1 The following table presents assets and liabilities information for the Company's operating segments as at year end:

'Geographical information | Non-current assets | Revenue from operations
As at As at ifor the year ended for the year ended
31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019
lIndia ' ~ 1,353.53 1,282.06 2,613.85 1,786.30
|Outside India (Dubai) ; 4,392.66 | 4,036.31 | - | -
5,746.19 | 5,318.37 | 2,613.85 1,785.30
Note:

Non-current assets disclosed above are excluding Investment in subsidiaries & Associates, financial instruments, deferred tax
assets, post-employment benefit assets etc.

39.2 Revenue from the customers contributing more than 10% of the total revenue are given below:

40

M

Particulars For the year endec For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
|Customer A o ' = _ 139.51
|Customer B ; i ] 270.38
Customer C I . 400.00
|- 4+ +
Total _ - 809.89
Note:

There are ne customers who individually contribute more than 10% of the total revenue of the Company. Accordingly, no
disclosures has been made in this regard.

Disaggregation of revenue [
[Particulars | For the year ended 31 March 2020 |  For the year ended 31 March
i : India : Outside India India . Outside India
|Sale of residential units I 2,275.08 | - | 1,346.57 -
iDeveIopment management fees | 220.02 | =_| 232,51 -
‘Sales Commission cn sale of plots/residential units 38.10 | - 177.37 -
Maintenance charges | 75.67 | = 107 .
|Other Operating revenue | 4.99 l - | 27.78 -
Total , 2,613.85 | - 1,785.30 -
Accounts of most of the trade payables, trade receivables, loans & advances and customer advances are subject to confirmation
and management does not except any material adjustments had the confirmation were received. In the opinion of the Management
none of the assets, other than property plant and equipment, have a value lower on realisation in the ordinary course of business
than the amount at which they are stated in these consolidated financial stalements.
(Signatures to notes 1-2 & 29 to 41)
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